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DB INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENTS LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT
For the year ended 31 December 2022

The Directars of DB International Investments Limited (the "Company"} present their annual report and audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022. These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable UK law and UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard {*FRS") 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework'.

The primary activity of the Company is to act as a holding company.

The Company is one of the subsidiaries of Deutsche Bank Aktiengeselischaft ("Deutsche Bank AG"). Deutsche Bank AG and its subsidiaries are
collectively referred to as "the Group” for the purpose of these financial statements.

Results and dividends
The results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022, after providing for taxation, show a loss of €3,068 (2021 €92 profit).

The loss for the year is driven by net foreign exchange loss and bank charges offset by interest income.
No gividend is paid or proposed by the Directors dunng the year {2021: €71,000,000).

Events after the balance sheet date
On 13 June 2023, the Company declared and paid a dividend of €1,000,000 to its parent, DB Overseas Holdings Limited (‘DBOH").

Plan to liguidate

The Directors intend t¢ close the company within the next 12 months and transfer its net assets to the other Group entities, and for that reason
they decided to prepare the financial statements on a basis other than going concern. This does not have any effect on the financial statements as
assets and liabilites are expected tc be settled at book value, given that recoverable amounts are the carrying amounts and that those
approximate fair value.

Future outlock

The Directors took the decision during the year to liquidate the Company following the plan initiated to transfer the ownership of the Company's
subsidiary, Deutsche Global Markets Ltd. (‘DGM”) and Deutsche Securities Israel Ltd {"DS1"), which sit under a multi-layered ownership structure
to Deutsche Holdings (Luxembourg) S.a.r.l ("DHL") in order to simplify the ownership chain and enable existing and future excess profits to flow
more efficiently to the Group. This does not have any effect on the financial statements as all balances are expected to be recovered at carrying
value.

On 24 February 2022, Russian troops started invading Ukraine. In response to that multiple jurisdictions, including the EL and UK, have imposed
econgmic sanctions to Russia and a large number of companies annaunced voluntary actions of ceasing operations with Russia (and in ceriain
cases Belarus). Despite these events taking place at a time of significant global economic uncertainty the adverse effects to the economy are not
expected to have a significant effect on the Company,

The Directors have also considered the current turmoil within the banking sector, further to the collapse of a US bank and the distress of other EU
banks, and conseguently to the broader economy resulting in higher inflation and intarest rates but concluded that this will not have a significant
impact on the Company as all balances are intergroup and the Company will continue to be supported by the Group as mentioned above.

Principal risks and uncertainties
The risks faced by the Company are predominantly internal to the Group and include interest rate and credit nsk stemming from its funding
activities. As a wholly owned subsidiary within the Group, these and other risks are managed within the risk and control functions of the Group.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the overall management of the risks faced by the Company.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have considered the impact of the physical and transition risks of climate change and the rising
inflation and interest rates and have concluded that these do not have a material impact on the net financial position in these financial statements
as at 31 December 2022

Directors

The Directors of the Company who held office were as follows
B.J. Pallas

C.C. Snailham

Company Secretaries
J.L. Bagshaw
AW. Bartlett



DB INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENTS LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT {continued)
For the ended 31 December 2022

Statement of Directors' responsibilities in regpect of the Directors’ Report and the Financial Statements
The Directors are responsibie for preparing the Directors’' Report and the Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directars to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Accardingly, they have elected to prepare the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and UK Accounting Standards (LK Generally Accepted Acceunting Practice), including FRS 101
Reduced Disclosure Framewaork .

tHindar enmpany law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and farr view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In preparing these financial statemants, the Directors are
required to.

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

. make judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant and reliable;

. state whether they have been prepared in acecordance with UK Accounting Standards;

. assess the Company's ability to continue as a gaing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and use the going

concem basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no reahstic alternative but
to do so. For the reasons stated in the Director's Report and Note 1, the financial statements have not been prepared on a going concern
basis.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactions,
disclose with reascnable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with Companies Act 2006.

They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company and 1o prevent
and detect fraud and other irregularities. The Directors have confirmed that they spent time appropriate to thewr responsibilities on the affairs of the
Company during the year.

Disclosure of infermation to auditor

The Directors of the Company whe held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there is
no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor is unaware; and the Directors have taken zll steps that they cught to have taken as
directors to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that information.

Qualifying third party indemnity provision
As at the date of approval of the financial statements, and during the year, a gualifying third party indemnity provision was in force for the benefit of
the Cempany's Directors.

Auditor
Pursuant to sechon 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditor will be deemed to be reapoointed and Emst & Young LLP will therefore continue
in office.

Small companies exemption
The Company has taken advantage of the small companies exemption and has not prepared a Strategic Report nor included a business review
within the Directors' Report.

By order of the Board of Directars

..x_,_‘.r—" __‘t - ":— R
CUTTTEN i e

Benjamin Pallas (Director)

Registered office

23 Great Winchester Street
London

EC2P 2AX

United Kingdom

Date: 31 July, 2023

Company number. 03363552



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DB INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENTS LIMITED
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of OB International Investments Limited for the year ended 31 December 2022 which comprise Profit
and Loss Account, Statement of Total Comprehensive Income, the Balance Sheet and the Statement of changes in equity and the related notes 1
to 14, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in thewr preparation is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards includng FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework” (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).

In pur optnion, the financial statements:
e give atrue and tair view at the company’s altairs as at 31 December 2022 and ot its loss ter the year then endeg,
= have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
e have been prepared (n accardance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC's Ethical Standard and the provisions available for small entities, in the circumstances set out in note 1 to the financial
statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Emphasis of Matter — Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 1 to the financial statements which explains that the directors intend to liquidate the company within twelve months
from the date of the approval of these financial statements, and therefore do not consider it to be appropriate to adapt the going concern hasis of
accounting in preparing the financial statements. Accordingly. the financial statements have been prepared on an other than going concem basis
as described in Note 1. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other information
The other information comprises the infarmation included in the annual report. other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.
The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual repont.

Cur opinion oh the financial statements does naot cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this repart, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and. n doing so, consider whether the other information 1s materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit ar otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives to a material misstatement in the
financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other
information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing o report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our epinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
= the information given in the directars’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the
financial statements; and
s the directors’ report has been prepared in accerdance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified
material misstatements in the directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our
opinion:

+ adeguate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited
by us: or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; ar
certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by iaw are not made; or
we have nat received all the infarmation and explanations we require for our audit
the directors were not entitied to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the small companies’ regime and take advantage
of the small companies' exemptions in preparing the directors' report and from the requirement to prepare a strategic report.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DB INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENTS LIMITED
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors' responsibilities statement set cut on page 2, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial staterments and for being satsfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicabie, matters related to going concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstaternents
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was congidered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities,
outlined abave, to detect irregularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not
detecting one resulting from errar, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or
through collusion. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below. However, the
primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with govermnance of the entity and management.

e We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the company and determined that the
most significant are the requirements as set out by Companies Act 2005.

» We understood how DB Internaticnal Investments Limited is complying with those frameworks by making enquiries of management
and those charged with govemance to understand how the Company maintains and communicates its policies and procedures by
evaluating the corroborating documentation.

s We assessed the susceptbility of the Company's financial statemnents to material misstatement, including how fraud might occur by
enquiring with management and those charged with governance and by considering their incentives to manage earnings or influence
the perceptions of stakeholders.

s Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify noncompliance with such laws and regulations. Our
procedures involved testing specific manual adjusting journal entries, where we exercised a heightened level of professional
scepticism and included an element of unpredictability in the nature, timing and extent of our testing.

A further gescription of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website at
https: /iwww.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description farms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a bedy, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006, Our audit
work has been undertaken sc that we might state to the company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report
and for no ather purpose. Ta the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility 1o anyone other than the company and
the company’'s members as a nody, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Eoati LLP

Rhys Taylor {(Seniar statutory auditor)
for and an behalf of Ermst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditar
Date: 31 July 2023



DB INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENTS LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Far the year ended 31 December 2022

Note 2022 2021

€ €

Interest receivable and similar income from group undertakings ] 684 -
Interest payable and similar expenses to group undertakings 5 (1,896) (1.888)
Net foreign exchange (less)gain {2,146) 2,502
Net impairment los;s 7 (348) {405)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (3,706) 209
Tax credit/{(charge) on (loss)/profit 8 638 (117)
{LOSS)/PRCFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR {3,068) 92

The (Jass)/profit far the year has arisen from continuing operations.

The notes on pages 9 to 14 form part of these financial statements.



DB INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENTS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 Dacember 2022

2022 2021

€ €

(Loss)/profit for the financial year (3,068) 92
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE {LOSS)INCOME FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR {3,068) 92

The comprehensive (loss)income for the year has arisen from continuing operations.

The notes on pages 9 to 14 form part of these financial statements.



DB INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENTS LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2022

Note 2022 2021
€ €
FIXED ASSETS
Shares in group undertakings 9 165,696 165,696
166,696 166,696
CURRENT ASSETS
Group relief receivable 10 501 -
Cash at bank and in hand 11 1,428,150 1,431,839
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,428,651 1,431,839
CREDITORS: Amounts falling due within one year
Group relief payable 12 - {120}
- (120)
NET CURRENT ASSET 1,428,651 1,431,719
NET ASSETS 1,534,347 1,897,415
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital 13 2 2
Profit and loss account 1,594,345 1,697 413
1,594,347 1,697,415

The notes on pages 9 to 14 form part of these financial statements.

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with the small companies regime and were approved by the Board of Directars and

signed on its behalf by

1

T
- e o T T

Benjamin Pallas (Director)

Dated: 31 July 2023

Company number: 03368552



DB INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENTS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Called up Share

Profit and Loss

Capital Account Totai

£ £ £

Balance at 1 January 2022 2 1,597,413 1,597,415

Loss for the financial year - (3,068) (3,068)

Balance at 31 December 2022 2 1,594,345 1,594,347
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Called up Share Profit and Loss

Capital Account TYotal

€ € €

Balance at 1 January 2021 2 72,597,321 72,697,323

- 92 92

- (71,000,000) {71,000,000)

2 1,597,413 4,597,415

Balance at 31 December 2021

The notes on pages 9 to 14 form pan of these financial statements.



DB INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENTS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2022

1 NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - OTHER THAN GOING CONCERN BASIS

Fundamental accounting concept

The financial statements have been prepared on a basis other than going concern reflecting the intended closure of the company within
the next 12 months and transfer of its net assets to other group entities at book value. No adjustments have been made to the book
value, given that recoverable amounts are the carrying amounts and that those approximate far value.

The Directars taok the decision during the year to liquidate the Company following the plan initiated fo transfer the ownership of the
Cuormpeny's subisidiary, Deulsche Global Markets Lid, ("DGM™) and Deutsche Secunties Israel Lid ("SI, which sit under a mult-layered
awnership structure to Deutsche Holdings (Luxembourg} S.a.r.| (‘DHL") i order to simplify the ownership chain and enable existing and
future excess profits to flow more efficently to the Group. This does not have any effect an the financial statements as all balances are
expected to be recovered at carrying value.

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting pelicies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in relation to the
financial statements.

Basis of preparation
These Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice including FRS 101
'‘Reduced Cisclosure Framework’ ("FRS 1017).

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have considered the impact of the physical and transition risks of cimate change and
the rising inflation and interest rates and have concluded that these do not have a material impact on the net financial position in these
financial statements as at 31 Cecember 2022,

In these financial statements, the Company has applied the exempticns available under FRS 101 in respect of the following disclosures:
& A cash flow statement and related notes;

« Disclosures in respect of transactions with whoily owned subsidianes,

» Disclosures in respect of the transactions with related parties, and

& The effects of new but not yet effective [FRSs.

As the Company is not a 'Financial Institution’, as defined by the Financial Reporting Council, it has applied the exemptions available for
disclosures required by IFRS 7, IFRS 13 and IAS 1.

The financial statements have been presented in Euros, the functional currency of the Company, and all values have been rounded o
the nearest Eura (€).

The Directors have taken the decision during the year to liquidate the Company. Accordingly, the Directors prepared the 31 December
2022 financial statements on an other than going concern basis. Under this basis, the assets have been measured at recoverable value
and liabilities at settlement value. There is no effect on the financial statements as assets and liabllities are expected to be settled at
recoverable value and settlement value, respectively.

Following the complation of intermal administrative matters pertaining to the liquidation of the Company, the Company will be liguidated
within 12 months of appraval of these financial statements.

The executive directors of the Company are members of the Group defined contribution pension schemes coperated by DB Group
Services (UK) Limited ("DBGS"): details of which are disclosed in the financial statements of that entity. The Company has no objigation
to pay employee retirement benefits, and has no commitment or guarantee ta indemnify DBGS for retirement benefit liabilities.

The Company is incorporated, registered and damiciled in England and Wales (UK) as a private imited company, limited by shares.
DBOH. a company registered in England and Wales, is the Campany's immediate controlling entity.

Deutsche Bank AG, a company incorporated in Germany. is the parent company, the ultimate controlling enlity and the parent
undertaking of the largest and smallest group of undertakings for which group financial statement are prepared, in accordance with
IFRSs. lis registered address is Taunusanlage 12, Frankfurt am Main. 60325, Germany. Copies of the Group financial statements of this
company are available to the pubtic and may be obtained from Winchester House, 1 Great Winchester Street, London, EC2N 208,



DB INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENTS LIMITED

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

{a) Group financial statements

(L

{c}

{d

{e]

(9

(h

—

As the Company is a wholly owned subsidiary undertaking of DBOH, itself a wholly owned indirect subsidiary undertaking of
Deutsche Bank AG, which is incorporated in the European Union ("EU"} and which publishes consolidated financial statements, the
Company is exempt under Section 401 of the Companies Act 2005 from the requirement to prepare group financial statements.
These financial statements present information about the Company as an individual undertaking and not about its group.

Changes in avvuunling pulicy
There were no amendments to the accounting standards that are effective for the year ended 31 December 2022 that would have a
material impact to the Company.

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on an other than going concern basis. This means assets are canied at recoverable
value and liabilities at settlement value, respectively.

There is no offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities in these financial statements.

Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain

Foreign cumency transactons are translated into Euros at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. Any manetary
assets and liabilities are subsequently re-translated at the year-end closing rate with any translation differences being taken through
the profit and loss account.

Current and deferred taxation
The charge ar credit for taxation 1s based on profit or loss for the year and takes into account any taxation deferred because of
temporary differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes.

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered fram, or paid
to, the taxation authonties. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively
enacted, by the reporting date in the countnes where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilites are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or
the liabilty 1s settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Shares in group undertakings
Shares in group undertakings, are stated at cost less impairment.

Impairment of financial agsets

A financial asset cannct be reported at more than what the Company can recover from it (the recoverable amount), either from using
it (value in use) or selling it (fair value lass cost of disposal). If the asset's carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount, the
asset is deemed impaired and an impairment [oss must be recognised in the profit and less account.

The Company follows a 3 step approach to determining impairment:

1. Assess whether there 15 any indication of impairment.

2. KFanyindication of impairment exists, the recaverable amount of the asset must be estimated. This will involve
a) determination of the unit of valuation for impairment purposes; and
b) determination of the recaverable amount.

3. If the recoverable amount (defined as the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use) is below the carrying
amount of the asset, then the camrying amount must be written down to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment
loss.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of these financial statements requires the Directors to make estimates and assumptions for certain categories of
assets and liabilites. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disciosure of
contingent assets and liabifities at the balance sheet date, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from management's estimates.

10



DB INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENTS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
{h} Critical accounting estimates and judgements
The significant accounting policy of the Company that involves crtical accounting estimates relates to the impairment of shares in
group undertakings (Note 1 (g)).
3 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
The Company does net have any employees. The staff involved in the Company's operations are all employees of the Group. Their total
staff costs are borne by other Group companies without recharge. Directors' costs are borne by Deutsche Bank AG, London 8ranch.
Consequently, no staff costs have been included in these financial stataments (2021: €Nil}.
Auditor's remuneration for services rendered to the Company have been bome by another group undertaking.
2022 2021
€ €
Audit of these financial statements 16,614 15,955
16,614 15,955
4 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS, TRANSACTIONS AND INTERESTS
a) Emoluments
All Directors are paid by a fellow group undertaking.
2022 2021
€ €
Directors’ emoluments a7s 346
Amounts receivable under long term schemes 10 11
388 357
€ €
Company contributions to money purchase pension schemes 18 17

During the year, 1 (2021: 1) Directors received shares or payments under long term incentive schemes totalling €9.7 (2021: €10.51).

Number Number
of Directors of Directors
2022 2021
Retirement benefits are accruing to the following number of Directors under
Money purchase schemes 2 2

No Director exercised share options under long term incentive schemes.

b) Transactions

There were no amounts ocutstanding to the Directars of the Company as at 31 December 2022 (2021: £nil) or at any point during the year
ended 31 December 2022. In this instance, the term Directors also covers individuals connected to directors as defined by 5.252 of the
Cempanies Act, 2006.

c) Interests

None of the Directors had any other disclosable interest in the shares or debentures of any UK greup undertaking at the end of the year,
or were granted or exercised any nght to subscribe for shares in, or debentures of, any UK group undertaking during the year.

11



DB INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENTS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2022

§ INTEREST RECEIVABLE AND SIMILAR INCOME FROM GROUP UNDERTAKINGS
2022 2021
£ €
Interest income on depaosits 684 -
684 -
6 INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR EXPENSES TO GROUP UNDERTAKINGS
2022 2021
€ €
Bank charges (1,896) {1,888)
{1,896) {1,888)
7  NET IMPAIRMENT LOSS
2022 2021
£ £
Expected credit losses on cash at bank held with group undertakings {(348) (405)
{348) (405)
B TAX CREDIT{CHARGE) ON (LOSS)/PROFIT
(a) Analysis of tax on profit
2022 2021
£ €
Current taxation
Group refief credit/(chargej for the year 538 (117)
Total tax credit/{charge) on profit 638 (117)

The standard rate of tax for the year, based on the UK standard rate of corporation tax is 19% (2021:19%). The actual tax charge for the
year differs from the standard rate for the reasons set out (n the following reconciliation.

{b) Current tax reconciliation

2022 2021

€ €

{Loss)/Prefit before taxation {3,706} 209

Tax an {lass)/profit at standard rate (2022; 19%; 2021; 19%) 704 (40)
Tax adjustrments for non-taxabie tems:

Connected party loan impairment (66) 7

Total tax credit’{charge) on {loss)/profit 638 (117)

The Finance Bilt 2021, which announced an increase in the UK corporation tax rate ta 25% from 1 April 2023, was substantvely enacted
an 24 May 2021, This will increase the Company's future current tax credit/(charge) accordingly.

12



DB INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENTS LIMITED

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022

9 SHARES IN GROUP UNDERTAKINGS
2022 2021
€ €
At 1 January 165,696 165,696
At 31 December 165,696 165,696
Direct group undertakings
Number and Class of 2022 2021 Registered
Name of Company Shares Owned % Holding % Heoldin Address Nature of Business
Deutsche Investments 1,000 Ordinary Shares 100 100 Herikerbergweg 88, Holding company
(Netherlands) N.V. of EUR 453.78 each Jupiter Building,
Amsterdam,
Netherands
Deutsche Global Markets Limited 99 Ordinary Shares of 1 1 45 Rothschild Trading comparny
ILS 0.1 each Boulevard, Alrov
Tower, 15th Floor,
Tel Aviv, Israel
Indirect group undertakings
Number and Class of 2022 2021 Registered
Name of Company Shares Owned % Holding % Holding Address Nature of Business
Deutsche Global Markets Limited 9 801 Ordinary Shares 100 100 46 Rothschild Trading company
of ILS 0.1 each Boulevard, Alrov
Tower, 15th Floor,
Tel Aviv, Israel
10 GROUP RELIEF RECEIVABLE
2022 2021
€ €
Group relief receivahle 501 -
501 -
11 CASH AT BANK AND IN HAND
2022 2021
£ €
Cash at bank held with Deutsche Banx AG 1,428,803 1,432 244
Less expected credit losses {753) (405)
1,428,150 1,431,839
12 GROUP RELIEF PAYABLE
2022 2021
€ €
Group relief payable - {120)
- {120}

13



DB INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENTS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2022

13 AUTHORISED AND CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

2022 2021
No. of Shares No. of Shares
Autharised shares:
Ordinary shares of £1 each 1,000 1,000
1,000 1,000
2022 2021
£ £
Authorised capital:
Ordinary shares of £1 each 1,000 1,000
1,000 1,000
2022 2021
No. of Shares No. of Shares
Allotted, called up and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of £1 each 2 2
2 2
2022 2021
€ £
Allotted, called up and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of £1 each (historical rate on 1 January 2010
at which capital was translated to Euros was €1,19) 2 2
2 2

The helders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and entitled to ane vote per share.

14 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

On 13 June 2023, the Company declared and paid a dividend of €1,000,000 to its parent, DBOH.

14



," 7 ’ 4 4 3
N8R/ \ feloriankl /Va R\ ot

Deutsche Bank

CACPHIGNM®
At2 31/03/2023
COMPANIES HOUSE




Content




Deutsche Bank Combined managemeni repor
Annual Financial Stalements
of Deutsche Bank AG

Combined management report

In line with the provisions of sect. 315 para 5 HGB (German Commercial Code, “Handelsgesetzbuch”) logether with sect. 298
para 2 HGB, the management report of Deutsche Bank AG has been combined with the management réeport of Deutsche
Bank Group. The combined management repont is published in the Annual Report 2022 of Deutsche Bank Group. It is filed
with and subsequently published by the German Federal Gazette (Bundesanzeiger).

The Annuat Report is also made available under www.db.com/irfen/annuat-reports htm.
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Balance sheet as of December 31, 2022

Balance sheet as of Dacember 31, 2022

Assels in € m. Dac 21, Dec 31,
2023 2021
Cash reserve
a) Cash on hand 1,793 1,628
b) Balances wilh cantral banks 67159 151,543
thereof: with Deutsche Bundesbank 4,968 28,738
58.952 153,171
Debt instruments of public-secior entities and bills of exchange eligibre for refinancing at
central banks
a) Treasury bills. discouniable Treasury notes and similar debt instruments of public-
sector entilies 636 648
thereof: efigibie for refi 1g at Deulsche Bundesbank 340 153
b} Bills of exchange 17 21
851 663
Receivables from banks
a) Morigage loans B1 o
b) Loans o of guaranleed by pubhc-sectar entibes 59 124
c) ather recewables 172,761 79,230
172,881 79.354
thareof repayable on demand 108,372 20,057
receivables coltateralized by securities 6479 6,418
Receivables from customers
a) Morgage loans 97,740 B4 726
B)  Loans te or guaranteed by public-secior enlilies 4,545 6,183
<) olher receivables 351477 334,247
453.762 435.166
thereol” receivebles collateraiized by securities 13,984 10.438
Bonds and other fixed-income securities
a) Monegy markel instruments
aa} of public-sactor issuers 174 280
thereol. eligible as collateral far Deulsche Bundesbank 1] 1]
ab) of alher 1ssusrs ¢} 469
thereal: eligible az collaleral fdr Deutsche Bundesbank 0 ]
174 750
b}  8ongds and notes
ba) of public-seclor issuers 37,626 26977
thereol: efgible a5 collatesas for Oeutsche Bundesbank 9,613 4.3514
bb)  of other issuers 32,674 32,355
thereof: eligible as cotiateral (or Deulsche Bundesbank 23.308 24.680
70,300 58,333
c)  Own dettinstruments 0 0
nominai amouns 0 2
70,474 60.083
Equity shares and gther variable-yieid securities 4318 396
Trading assets 234 670 248,705
Parlicipating interests 153 176
{hereal: in banks it 1
in financial services instituons 48 43
(rvesiments in affiialed companias 30,774 26,343
thereol: in banks 5510 5,438
in financial services insklulions 219 204
Assets held in trust 2,804 2.161
thereaf: Loans on a lrust basis 387 444
Intangible assets
a) Self-developed inlangible assets 2,484 2641
b) Purchased intangible asseis m 435
c) Goodwil! 14 17
d) Down-payments for injangible assets 4 a
3.230 3,092
Tangible assets 1,402 1,208
Sundry assets 5,844 5.862
Prepaid expenses
a) from the issuanca and 1oan business 12 2
b) other 924 862
936 BE4
Deferred tax assels 5,366 3.304
Overfundad plan assets 5 553
1.052.043 1.020.109

Total assels
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Dec 31, Oec 33,
Liabifites and Sharehotders’ Eguity in € m, 2022 2021
Liabifities 10 banks
al  ragistered Marigage Plandbriele issued 125 88
b) regisiered public Seciov Plandbrisle issued 0 1]
) other liabilties 148,430 151,514
148.565 151,602
\hereo!: repayable an damand 8,499 57 923
ragistered covered bonds ace. to DELB ransiton law 274 380
Liabililies 1o cusiomens
a1 rag Aortgage Plandbriete issued 2,131 227
b) regisierad public Sector Pfandbriele issued 43 a3
4] savings deposits
¢a)  wilh agreed notice period af three months 56,816 £9.352
chl  wilh agreed notice periad of more than three maaths 2818 3,009
59,634 §2.36
g} other iabikties 45),448 428.476
525,304 493,204
thereof: repayable on demand 345035 333746
registered covered bonds acc. 1o DELE transition law 2210 2,909
Labilities in certificate larm
2) bonds in issue
a3) Mangage Pfandoriefe 8,809 6,737
ab)  Public Sector Plandvriets ¢ 0
acl  elner oads 78035 71431
83.843 77,188
t}  other fabifities in certificaie form 3246 2512
87,000 79,581
nereol: Moagy market ipsiruments 2726 1841
own acceptances and promisgory noles in crculalion 40 105
Trading tiabititres 178,394 157,089
Liabitities hetd in wrust 2804 2,183
thereof 1oans an a trusl basis 387 444
Sundry Fabilltes 37337 33.201
Defarred ncome
a) iram e issuance and lpan pusINess 487 250
] other 533 725
1,020 976
Prowisians
a}  Provisions for pengions and similar abligations. 2,241 50
%) Provisions for laxes 458 577
cj ather provisions 4,759 5.345
7,457 5,872
Subardmated fiabiities 12,761 8.762
Participation rights cagitat 30 36
therecl: payable within 2 years 10 10
Instrurments lor Additional Tier 1 Regulatory Capilal 9,013 8.597
Fung fpr general banking risks 2,944 2944
therecl: Iradingrelaled special ressrve according 10 Secton 3402 [4) HGB 1.476 1476
Capital and reserves
a) subscribed capnal 5.291 5281
less nduanal par yaiue 6f own shares 74 2
5217 5.289
conditional ¢apital € Om. (Dec 31, 2021 € 563m)
1] Capial reserve * 20,938 20,938
ct Revenue reserves .
©a)  stalulory reserve 13 13
cdi  other revenue reserves 5.887 7.704
8.806 77
] Drgtributable profit doss) 3,569 969
. 19,623 Ja 913
Tot1al Labililles and sharsholders' equily 1,052,343 1,020,109
Conlingenl habinlies
8) contingenl habidiies from rediscounied bills of exchange 0 1]
b) Liabtilies from guaraniees and ingemnily agreementis 62,785 56.181
<} Lablity anising from the plovision of codlateral far third-party fiabihies ] 0
_ 52,785 56.181
Omer obligations
)  placement and underwnling abligations Q 1
c) Ifrevocaple loan commiuments 158,116 131513
158,116 131,693
4
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Income statement for the period from January 1 to
December 31, 2022

in€m . 2022 2021
Interest ingome from
a) Lending and maney markel business 22441, 11.447
thereol; negalive inlerest incame from landing
and money market pusiness an T8
B} Ffixed-ingoma securues and government-inscribed debt 1,770 1,512
23911 12,959
interest expenses 15,550 5.369
thereof: negalive inlerest axpenses 1.123 1,066
8,361 7.590
Currant incorme from
a) Equity shares ang clher variable-yield securilies 246 338
b)  Parucipating inleresis 16 3
¢ us in affitistad compani 1,147 7a2
1,409 1,089
Incoma from profit-pooling, profit-transfer and partial profil-ransfer agreements 4 354
Cammission income 8767 9,052
Commussion expenses 2,672 2.240
£.095 53811
Net trading result 28498 1,266
Ihergo!l release of radng-related special reserve according to section J40e (4) HGS 0 Q
Dther operating income ! 7.176 1.532

Administrative expenses
a) Siaff expenses

aa) Wages and salaries 4,687 4,758
aby Compulsary social securly conlributions end expenses for pensions and oiher employee benefits 2,032 1,246
5,720 8.005
thereo!; lor pensions € 1,310 m, (2024, 570 m.}
b}  Other administrative rxpenses 8,540 9,181
) 15.358 15.185
Depreciation, amoruization and write-downs of and value adjusiments 1o tangible and inlangible asseis i 1,241 1455
Othar operatng expenses B.484 2,092
Write-downs of and value adjustments lo claims and cenain securities as well as additions o provisions for
loan losses 1.596 4
Write.downs of and value adjustments lo participating interests, invesiments in affilialed companies anc
securities trealed as fined assels 0 258
Income from write-ups and disposal gains on participating interests. invastrments in affilialed companies and 2189 0
secunities Ireated as fixed assels
Expenses from assumplwon of losses 281 1a5
Releases frarmiAddiions (=) to the fund lor general banking risks o 2,200
Result frem erdinary aclivities . 3,599 1,663
Extraordinary income 114 36
Extvaordinary expenses 19 181
Exiraardinary resuylt 95 (145)
Income taxes (1,895} (4B5)
Ihereo!: deferred tax benefl € 2.040 m. (2021, deferred tax benelt € 643 m )
Other taxes, unless reported under "Other operaling Expenses” a3 as
{1.913) 400)
Netincome (loss) 5,506 1919
Prafit carned forward from the previous year 562 2]
€069 15919
Wilhdrawal irorn capital reserves 0 0
Allgcauons to revenue reserves
- 10 olher revenye reserves 2,500 950
2,500 950

Distributable profit 3,569 969
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General information

Deutsche Bank AG's legal name is Deulsche Bank Aktiengeselischaft and it is incorporated in Frankfurt am Main. It is
registered in the Commercial Register of the District Court Frankfurt am Main under registration number HR8 30000,

The annval financial statements of Deutsche Bank AG for the financial year 2022 have been prepared in accordance with the
German Commercial Code ("HGB") as well as the Statutory Order on Banks’ and Financial service institutions’ Account(s
{"RechKredV"). Company-J4aw regulations have been complied with. Far the sake of clarity, the figures are reported in million
euros (€). Due to rounding, numbers presented throughout this document may not add up precisely to the totals the bank
provides and percentages may not precisely reflect the absolute figures,

Basis of presentation

Accounting policies for:

Receivables
Receivables which are held with a trading intent are accounled for as described in the separale paragraph “Trading activities”.

Receivables from banks and customers which dc not qualify as trading assets ate generally reported at their nomina} amount
or at acquisition cost less necessary impairments, If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease in impairmen! can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment is reversed through the income stalement.

Risk provisioning

Provisioning for loan losses comprises impairments and provisions for 2!l identifiable credit and country risks, for inherent
default risks and the provision for general hanking risks. Provisions for credit risks are reflected in accardance with the
prudence principle at the amount of expected [0sses.

The transfer risk for loans to barrowers in foreign states (country risk) is assessed using a rating system that takes into agcount
the economic, political and regional situation. When recognizing provisions for cross-border exposures to certain foreign stales
the prudence principie is applied.

Provisions for inherent credit risk are reflected in the form of general value adjustments in accordance with commercial law
principles. in additon, general banking nisks are provided for pursuant to Section 340f HGB. The offsetting option availabile
under Section 340f {3) HGB has been utilized.

The caiculation of expected luss is based on the parameters probability of defaun (PD), loss given default (LGD) and exposure
at default (EAD). For the latter parameter, all risk relevant contracts are included. The calculation of the LGD cansiders the
development of collateral values which are cluslered by regions, in paricular for properlies. Credit risk for off-balance
exposures such as guarantees and loan commitments are presenled as provisions. The credil risk projection is supplemented
by macro-aconomic factors {for example growth rates of GDP and unemployment rates in Eurgpe and US) to better reflect the
portfolio risk.

The bank recognizes a credit loss aflowance al an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. This represents the
portion of lifetime expected credit losses from default events that are expected within 12 months of the reporting date,
assuming that credit risk has not increased to trigger an impairment

The bank recognizes an additional credit loss allowance 1o reflect lifetime expected credit losses far Financial Assets which
are considered o have experienced a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Using the IFRS 9 methodclogy,
this requires the computation of expected credit losses based on fifetime PD, lifetime LGD and lifetime EAD that represents
the probahility of default cccurring over the remaivny lifelime of the Financial Asset.

For those Financial Assets that are credit-impaired, the barnk recognizes a loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses, reflecting a Probability of Default of 100%. via the expected recaverable cash flows for the asset.
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On an ongoing basis and as part of the Group's overall control and governance framework, the Group assesses at each
reporting period whether any overlays to its IFRS 9 model are required. This modet monitoring framework considers whether
there are risks not capiured in the madel, such as a sudden change in the macroeconomic environment, and identifies any
model limitations or routine model enhancements that have not yet been fully reflecled. Overall, the model monitoring
framework ensures that the Group reports management’s best estimate of its expected credit losses at each reporting date.

Securities

Bonds and other fixed income securities as well as equity shares and other variable-yield securities which are held for trading
purposes are accounted for as described in the separate paragraph “Trading activities”,

Certain holdings of bonds and other fixed-income securities for which the intent is to hold them for the foreseeable future are
classified as non-current assets and accounted for using the moderate lower-of-cost-or-market rule. This means that the
respective securities are carried at acquisition cost less other than temporary impairment.

If bonds and other fixed-income securities are neither held for the foreseeable future nor form part of the trading portfolio, they
are classified as current assets and are accounted for using the strict lower-of-cost-or-market rule. This means that they are
carried at the tower of acquisition cost or market respectively attributable value.

The same applies to equity shares and other variable-yield securities which, if they are not part of the trading portfolio, are
generally accounted for as curreni assels.

Securities are written up pursuant to the requirement to reinstate original values if the reason for the write-up can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the write-down was recognized.

Embedded derivatives

Some hybrid conlracts contain both a derivalive and a non-derivative componerdt. ln such cases, the derivalive cormponent is
referred to as embedded derivative, with the non-derivative component representing the host contract. Where the econormic
characteristics and risks of embedded derivatives are nol closely related to those of the host contract, and the hybrid contract
itself is not carried as a trading activity at fair value through profit or loss, the embedded derivative is bifurcated following
general principles of derivative accounting. The host contract is accounted for at amortized cost or seftlement amaount,

Credit derivatives

Credit derivatives held or incurred with a trading intent are accounted for as described in the separate paragraph “Trading
activities”.

Dther credit derivatives held which qualify as coliateral for incurred credit risk are not accounted for separately, but rather
taken into account in the risk provisioning for the underlying transaction.

Trading activities

Financial instruments (including positive and negative markel values of derivalive financial instrumenis) as well as precious
metals which are heid or incurred with a trading intent are recognized al fair value less risk adjustment. In addition o the value-
at-risk adjustment a de-facto limit on profit distribution for net trading P&L exists because each fiscal year a certain portion of
net trading revenues has to be allocated to a trading-related special reserve which is part of the fungd for general banking risk.

Fair value is defined as the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
knowledgeable, willing and unrelated parties. other than in a forced sale or liquidation. Where available, fair value is based on
observable market prices and parameters ar derved from such prices or paramelers. The availabibty of observable data varies
by product and market and may change over time. Where observable prices or inputs are not availabie, valuation technigues
appropriate to the particular instrument are applied.

If fair value is estimated by using a valuation technigue or derived from observable prices or parameters, significant judgment
may be required. Such estimates are inherently uncertain and susceptible to change. Therefore, actual results and the financial
positton may differ from these estimates.

The fair valuation of financial instruments includes valuation adjustments for close-out casts, liquidity risk and counterparty
risk as well as funding considerations for uncollateralized trading dervatives.
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in erder to reflect any remairng realization risk for unrealized gains, the resuit of the fair value measurement is reduced by a
risk adjustment, which is deducted from trading assets. The risk adjustmentis based on value-at-risk which is calculated using
a holding period of ten days and a confidence level of 98%.

The trading-related special reserve is provided for by taking at leasl 10% of the net trading revenues {after risk adjustment)
and must not exceed the total amount of net trading revenues of the respective fiscal year. It has to be provided for until the
trading-related special reserve corresponds to 50% of the (ive-year average of net trading revenues after nsk adjusiment,

The reserve may onily be consumed to either release an amount exceeding the 50% iimit or 1o cover net trading iosses.

Financial instrumenis and precious metals held for trading are separately presented as "Trading assets™ or "Trading fiabilities™
on the face of the balance sheet. Forward contracts to buy or seil commodities do basically not qualify as financial instruments
and can therefore not be assigned to trading assets.

Any changes in fair value after risk adjustment of trading instruments are recagnized as "Net trading result”. Interest income
and interest expenses are presented within interest result.

Under certain canditions, trading derivatives are offset against cash collateral posted by counterparties. On an individual
counterparty basis, such derivatives qualify for offsetting which have been contracted under a master agreement with a credit
support annex ("CSA"} and daily exchange of cash collaleral. For each counterparty. the amount offset includes the positive
and negative market values of derivatives as well s the collaleral paid or received. '

Valuation units (hedge accounting)

In instances in which for accounting purposes assets, liabilities, pending transacticns or highly probable forecasted
transactions (hedged items) and financia! instruments (hedging instruments) are designated in a valuation unit lo achieve an
offsel for changes in fair value or cash flows attribulable 1o the hedged risk the general measurement rules are not applicatle.
Valuation units are recognized generally in form of micro hedges. Statistical analysis, regression analysis and the critical-term-
match method are apphed lo assess prospective effectiveness. The bank generally utiizes the freeze method, which means
that offsetting value changes related to the hedged risk are not recorded. Consequently, negative fair value changes related
to the same type of risk are not recegnized during the period of the hedge unless a net foss, i.e., negative ineffectiveness,
arises which is recognized as a proviston for imminent losses.

Interest income and interest expense under the hedging instrument (e.g. an interest rate swap) is generaily presented nel of
the Interest income/expense of the hedged item in the income statement. This resuits in a presentalion of the income/ expense

taking nto account the hedged resuit of the valuation unit in its entirety.

For the purpose of hedge accounting forward contracts o buy or selt commodides are treated as financial instruments

Reclassifications

Receivables and securities have to be classified as trading activilies, liquidity reserve ar non-current investments at inception.
A reclassificalion into trading after initial recognition is not permitted and a reclassification from trading activities is only allowed
f the inlenmt changes due o exceplional markel condihons, especially conditions thal adversely affect the ability 1o trade.
Furthermore, financial instruments held with a trading intent may be designated subsequently as hedging instruments into a

valuation unit.

A reclassification between the categories liguidity reserve and non-current investments accurs when there is a clear change
in managemaent intent after initial recognition which is documented.

The reclassifications are rmade when the inlent changes and at the fair value as of the reclassificatron date.
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Participating interests and investments in affiliated companies

Participating interests are recognized either at cost or utilizing the option avalable under Section 253 HGB at their lower fair
value.

investrments in affifialed companies are accounted for at moderate lower-of-cost-or-market. This means that write-downs are
only recognized if the impairment is considered other than temporary.

To determine the tair value of aflfilialed voimpanies, a discounted cach-flow modet is applied. The model discounts the expected
free cash-flows for a five year horizon using a risk-adjusted snterest rate. For the time after the five year period, the sustainable
plan development is projected to determine the terminal value. The valuation includes measurable synergies for certain
affiliated companies.

Participating interests and investments in affiliated companies are written up pursuant to the requirement to reinstate originai

values if the reason for the wrile-up can be objectively related to an event occurring after the write-down was recognized The
offsetting option available under Section 340c (2) HGB has been ulilized.

Tangible and intangible assets

Tangible and intangible assets are reported al their acquisition or manufacturing cost less any depreciation or amortization.
Self-developed brands, mastheads. publishing titles, custormer lists and sirnilar intangibie assets are not recognized.

Write-downs are made for any impairment that is lixely to be permanent.

Tangible and infangible assets have to be written up if the increase in value can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the write-down was recognized.

Low-value assets are written off in the year in which they are acquired.

Derecognition of assets
An assel 15 generally derecognized when legal ownership is transferred.

However, if the setler irrespective of the assel's legal transfer retains the majority of risks and rewards of ownership, the asset
is not derecognized,

Securities lending/borrowing transaclions and securities transferred within repurchase agreements remain recognized in the

transferor's balance sheet. Therefore, the securities lent and securities transferred are not derecognized by the transferor
because he remains exposed to the majarity of risks and rewards of ownership.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognized at their settlement or nominal amounts. Zero bonds issued at a discount are reported at their present
value, using the original effective interest rate.

Instruments qualifying as additional tier 1 capital

The instruments issued qualify as liabilities and are recognized at their settlement or nominal amount. Interest is accrued
based on the expected payments to the inveslors holding the instruments. :
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Provisions

Provisions for pensions and similar obligations are recognized in accordance with acluanial printiples Pension provisions are
calcuiated using the projected unit credit method and using the average market rate for an assumed remaining term of 15
years as published by the German Federal Bank unless the pension plan's remaining term is shorter.

The bank is employing specific mortality assurmplions to determine the defined benefit ohligation for its defined benefit pension
plans in Germany. The mortality expectations from the “Richttafeln Heubeck 2G18G” are adjusted to the Deutsche Bank
specific martaity experience of employees and pensioners.

Assets which are ‘exclusively used to seltie pensions and similar obligations and which are controlled neither by Deutsche
Bank AG nor any creditor (ptan assets) are fair valued and offset with the respective provisions. Overfunded obligations are
recognized on the balance sheet as a net asset after offsetting of provisions. For underfunded pension obligations and
obligations from the bank's internally financed plans, the relevant provisions are made.

If the settlement amount of pensions and similar obligations is solely based on the fair value of securities held as non-current
finrancial assels, the provision is measured at the fair value of these securities if the fair value exceeds the guaranteed
minimum.

Other provisions for uncertain liabilities or for onerous contracts (excluding trading activities) are recngnized at thair expeeted
settlement amnunt applying tho principles of prudent commercial judgment. Provisions for uncertain liabilities are discounted
if the related cash outflows are not expecled to arise within twelve months after lhe balance sheet date. The unwind of the
discounting effect is recognized as interest expenses if the provision results from the banking business or as other expenses
if the provision does not result from the banking business.

The assessment whether to recognize a provision for imminent losses from pending transactions comprises an evaivation
whether a net loss is probable to arise for all interest-earning and interest-bearing assets and liabilities, respectively, which
are not held with a trading intent, i.e., all positions within the banking book exisung as of the reporting date.

The assessment whether a net loss is probable in respect of interest-earning and interest-bearing positions within the banking
book requires comparing expected future net interest income and expected future directly attributable fees with expected
future funding and credit risk expenses as well as future expected adminisirative expenses associated with the interest-earing
and interest-bearing positions as of the reporting date.

The agsessment of a potential provision is aligned with the internal management of the interest-related posilion in the banking
book. For interest-related positions in the banking bock a present value based approach is used and supplemented by an
analysis of the historic cost coverage of risk and administrative costs by net interest surpluses for the positions hedged against
interest rate risk.

Deferred taxes

Deterred tax assels and deferred lax liabilities on temporary differences between the accounting and tax base for assels,
liabilities and accruals are offset against each other and presented net on the balance sheet as either delerred tax assets or
deferred 1ax liabilities. In determining deferred lax assets unused tax losses are taken into account, but anly to the exient that
they can be utilized within the following five years.

Treasury shares

If Deutsche Bank AG acquires its own shares {lreasury shares) they are deducted at cost from capital and distributable
reserves on the face of the balance sheet with no gain or loss being recognized in the income statement.

If such treasury shares are subsequently sold the previously mentioned deduction is reversed and any amount exceeding the
anginal acquisitians costs is to be recognized within capital reserves whereas aloss on the subsequent sale is to be recognized
in revenue reserves.
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Currency transiation
Currency translation is consistent with the principles set forth in Sections 256a and 340h HGB.

Assets denominated in foreign currency and treated as fixed assets, but not separalely covered in the same currency, are
shown at historical cast unless the change n the foreign currency rate 1s other than temporary so that the assets have to be
written down. Other foreign currency dencminated assets and liabilities and outsfanding cash deals are translated at the mid
spot rate at the balance sheel date, and forward exchange deals at the forward rate at the balance sheel date.

The definition of those positions in foreign currency for which the bank applies the special coverage method according to
Section 340h HGB reflects internal risk management procedures.

The accounling for gains and losses from cumency transiation depends on to which foreign currency positions they relate,
Gains and losses from currency translation of trading assets and trading liabilites as well as gains and losses from the
translation of positions which are specifically covered are recognized in the income statement. The same applies to foreign
currency positions which are not specifically covered but have a remaining term of one year or less. In contrast, for foreign
currency positions which are not specifically covered and have a remaining term of more than year in accordance with the
imparity principte only the losses from currency translation are recognized. The result of currency transiation is included in the
net trading result and in other operating income and expenses.

The items on the balance sheels and the income statements of foreign branches are translated into euros at mid-rates at the
respective balance sheet dates (ciosing-rate method). The difference arising from translating balance sheet items at the mid

spot exchange rate, whereas income statement items are translated at (weighted} average exchange rates is reflected in other
operating income or expenses in the income statement.

Contingent liabilities and irrevocable loan commitments

Contingent liabilities and irrevocabie (oan commitments are recognized at their notional amount, net of any cash collateral and
provisions recognized in the balance sheet.

The risk of loss from the utilization of contingent liabilities is reduced by the existing ability to assert recourse claims against
the relevant customer and is thus based on the customer’s credn risk.

Irrevacable loan commitments represent the undrawn portion of lending commitments that cannot be cancelled uncohditionally
by the bank. They are included in credit risk monitoring.

11
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Notes to the balance sheet

Maturity structure of receivables

in €m. Dec 31. 2022 Dec 31, 2021
Ciher Receivables from banks without receivables repayable on demand 64,509 59,063
with a residual period of
up lo three months 23,528 19,434
more than three monbs and up to ong year 9,573 10.417
mare than one year and up 1o five years 18,329 18,383
more than five years 13,088 10,829
Receivables from customers 453,762 435,186
with a residval penad of
up to three months 174,112 150.984
more than theee months and up 1o one year 44,929 52825
maore thar one year and up to live years ' 114,367 108,543
more than five years 116,079 115,995
with an indefinite period 4,275 6,818
Securities

The table below provides a breakdown of the marketable securities contained in the listed balance sheet positions.

lisled unkstad
in€m. Oec 31, 2022 Dac 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2022 Dec )1, 2021
Bonds and other fixed-income securiies 40,542 30.152 29,932 29,931
Equily shares and olher varnable-yield secunties 143 143 18 10
Participaling interests 0 4] 4] 0
Investments in affiliaied companies 0 0 0 Q

Of Ihe bonds and other fixed-income secunties of € 70.5 blllion: € 5.1 billiont malure in 2023.

Bonds and other fixed-income securities classified as fixed assets are accounted at amortized cost as Deutsche Bank intends
to hold these securities for the foreseeable future. The total carrying amount value for these bonds and other fixed-income
securities as of the reporting date amounts to € 43.8 billion and relates to the strategic liguidity reserve, which is managed by
Group Treasury. it contains high guality government, supranational and agency bonds. As of December 31, 2022 this portfolic
contains assets with a carrying value of € 20.8 billion, for which the currenl market values are in total by € 2 1 billion lower
than the carrying values.

Bonds and other fixed-income securities ciassified as cument assets are accounted according o the strict lower-of-cost-ar-

market rule. As of December 31, 2022 the net income from these securities was negative € 646 million. It included 2 partial
mitigation by realized gains of € 1.1 billion from interest rate swaps used to economically hedge these securities

Investments in investment funds

The following table shows a breakdown of holdings in German and foreign investment funds by investment purpose where
the fund units held exceeded 10%.

Deg 31, 2022

Ditference

between lair
valse and Cistabulion «
in€m. Carrying value Fair value carrying value 2022
Equity funds v u u 0
Bond funds 72 72 0 0
Mixed flunds 297 297 0 [4]
Total 370 370 0 0

The invesiments in the funds were assigned to trading assets. Their carrying values corresponded to their fair values.



Deuische Bank Notes to the batance shael
Annual Finangial Slatenments Trading assets and liabllities
of Deutsche Bank AG

The conditions 1o postpone the redemption of fund units may vary from fund to fund. They may be based on a minimum asset
value or make il discretionary to the fund directors. Restrictions for daily redemption of the fund uniis relate to cases where
too many investors try lo redeem ai a specific point in time. In these cases the funds might postpone the redemption until such
time thal they can fulfill the redemption request.

Transactions subject to sale and repurchase agreements

The book value of assets reported on the balance sheet and sofd subject to a repurchase agreement in the amount of
€ 18.1 billion related exclusively to securities sold under repo agreements.

Trading assets and liabilities

Financial instruments held with a trading intent

The following table provides a breakdown of trading assets and trading liabilities.

Dec 31, 2022

in €m. Trading assels  in&€m Trading habilities
Derivative finangial instruments 96.328 Derivative financial instauments 84,993
Receivables 73,246  Liabilities 93.402
Bonds and other fixed-income securities 61,176

Equity shares and other variable-yield securilies 3,278

Sundry assels . 870

Risk adjustment {229)

Total 234,670 Total 178,394

The basic assumptions to detiermine the fair value using accepted valuation methods are presented in detail in the section
"Basis of presentation™.

Derivatives held for irading purposes that were traded under master netting agreements together with a credit support annex
allowing for daily exchange of collateral were netted for each Deutsche Bank AG external counterparty in the balance sheet.
Tne netting for each counterparty encompasses both the carrying amount of the derivatives and the collateral provided. This
invelved offsetting positive fair values of € 186.2 billion {2021: € 221 .1 billion) with negalive fair values of € 203.9 billion (2021:
€ 213 .6 hillion) on derivatives held for trading with the associated receivables (€ 15 .8 billion, 2021: € 31.2 billion) and liabilities
(€ 33.5 billion, 2021: € 23.7 billion) from collatera! provided. Please refer to the section “Basis of presentation” regarding the
offsetting.

The subsequen! table breaks down the derivatives valued at fair value which correspond o trading derivatives, by type and
volume.

Dec 31. 2022
in€m, Notional amount
OTC products 40,986,375

inlerest rale-linked transaclions 31696479
exchange rate-linked transaciions 7.692,387
credit defivatives 1.511.612
equity- and mdex-irked transactions 21,448
other (ransactions 64 450
Exchange-traded products - 903,765
interes! rate-linked transactions 642,519
equily- and index-linked ransactions 212818
exchange rale-linked iransactions 23,656
other transactions - 24,772
Total 41,880.141

The amount, timing and the reliability of future cash flows are impacted by the interest rate envircnment, by the development
in the equity and debt markets as well as by credit spreads and defaults.
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Deutsche Bank Notes to the balance shest
Annual Financial Stalements Derivative financial instruments
of Deutsche Bank AG

Method and assumptions and risk adjustment amount
The calculation of the risk adjustment is based on the model to calculate the regulatory value-at-risk which incorporates
financial instruments held or incurred for trading purposes. The valuation of trading assets might require various valuation

adjustments e.g. for liquidity risks which are explained under "Basis of presentation” in the section “Trading activities”.

The calculation of the value-at-risk adjustment ("VaR-adjustment™) is based on a halding period of ten days and a confidence
level of 99%. The observation period ts 261 trading days.

In addition to the regulatory VaR-adjustment the risk adjustment was supplemented by additional risk figures related to
Deutsche Bank's own credit risk which is not covered by the VaR calculation.

The absoiute amount of the risk adjustment is € 229 million.
Change of criteria for the classification of financial instruments as trading

During the year 2022 the criteria related to the assignment of financial instruments 1o trading assels and liabilities remained
unchanged.

Subordinated assets

The table below presents an overview of the subordinated assets contained in the respective balance sheet positions.

nEm. Dec 31, 2022 Dec 31. 2021
Recevables from banks 845 845
Receivables from customers ] a 0
Bonds and gthar fixed-income secuntias M7 1,955
Trading assets . 2,281 2,354

Derivative financial instruments

Forward transactions
Forward transactions outstanding at the balance sheel date consisted mainly of the following types of transactions

- interest rale-linked transaciions' forward deals inked to debl instruments, forward rate agreements, interest rale swaps,
interest futures, option rights in centificate form, oplion deals and option contracts linked to interest rates and indices

- exchange rate-linked transactions: foreign exchange and precious metal forwards, cross-currency swaps, option rights in
certificate form, option deals and option contracts linked to foreign exchange and precious metals, foreign exchange and
precious metal fulures

- share-/index-related transactions: equity forwards and futures, index futures, option rights in certificate form, option deals
and option contracts linked to equities and indices

- credit dernvatives: credit default swaps (CDS), total return swaps (TRS). credit linked notes {CLN)

The abave types of transactions arg entered into almost exciusively to hedge interest rate, exchange rate and market price
fluctuations in trading activities.
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Deutsche Bank Netes to the balance sheel
Annual Financial Statemenls Valuation unis (hedge accounting)
of Deutsche Bank AG

Derivatives not accounted for at fair value

The subsequent lable presents derivative financial instruments recorded as banking book derivatives that are generally not
accounted for at fair value.

Oec 31, 2022

Noiicnat Carrying value Fair value

in€m amouni pasilive negalive posilive negalive
OTC products

interest rate-related transactions 3.109477 9,454 7,199 53,427 53,579

exchange rate-related transachions 56,214 484 58 2,195 2644

credit desivatives 4,280 2 76 1 76

other transacitions 43 0 0 .0 12

Total 3,170,014 9,938 7,333 55,633 56,281

The carrying values of derivatives generally not recorded at fair value are reported in "Sundry Assets”™ and "Sundry Liabilities”.

Valuation units (hedge accounting)

Deutsche Bank AG enters inlo valuation units via fair value hedges, to protect itself essentially through interest rate swaps
and options against fair value changes of fixed rate securities resulting from changes in market rates.

In case credit derivatives in the banking bock do not gualify for lpan collateral treatment, hedge accounting is applied in line
with pronauncement IDW RS BFA 1.

Additional risks resulting from bifurcatable derivatives embedded in hybrid financial instruments are hedged as well via micro
hedge relationships. . .

In addition to the cases described above Deutsche Bank hedges commaedity risks via micro- and partfolio-hedge relationships.

The subsequent table provides an overview of the hedged items in valuation uhits including the amount of hedged risks. For
hedged assets and hedged liabilities the carrying vaiue is presented as well.

Dec 31. 2022
n€m. Carrying value Ampuni ol hedqed nsk
Secured assets, tolal 7.596 (598)
Secured liabilties. tolal 102,184 5,696

Motional amounl Amount of hedged nsk
Pending transaclions . 31,202 878

The amount of hedged risk, if negative, represents the cumulative decrease in fair value for assels respectively the cumulative
increase of fair value for liabilities since inception of ihe hedge relationship that were nat recognized in profit and loss net,
after considering hedges. Positive amounts of hedged risk comespond to the cumulative increase in fair value of assets
respectively the cumulative decrease in fair value of liabilities that were not recognized in profit and loss net, after considering
hedges.

Using foreign exchange forwards and swaps, Deutsche Bank AG contracts fair value hedges of foreign-exchange risks of its
branches dotalional capital and profitloss carried forward representing the net asset value exposed to foreign exchange risk.
The carrying amount of the net hedged position amounts to € 11.5 billion. The amount of hedged risk is positive € 1.2 billion.
The final offset of the mirroring spot rate changes takes place at the peint in time when the dotational capital i1s redeemed.

In instances where the contractual terms of hedged item and hedging instrument are exactly offsetting, both prospective
assessment of eflectiveness and retrospective measurement of ineffectiveness of a valuation unit are based on the matching
of critical terms. In addition the bank may utilize statistical methods and regression analysis for the assessment of prospective
effectiveness. Deutsche Bank AG compares the amounts of the changes of fair values of hedged ilems and hedging
instruments (doliar-offset method}). The valuation units are generally established over the remaining maturity of the hedged
items.
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Creutsche Bank Notes to the balance sheel
Annual Financial Staiements Trust business
of Deutsche Bank AG

Information on affiliated, associated and related companies

Affiliated companies and refated
in€m Dec; 31, 2022 Pec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2022 Dec 31, 2023
Receivables from banks 54,841 49736 0 0
Receivables from customers 46,465 86,466 39 50
Bonds and cother fixed-income Securilies 26.386 27.308 9 2
Liabilities o banks 30172 27579 4 6
Liabilities lo customers 21,888 21,867 10 22
Lizbilities in certificate farm o ] 0 0
Subardinaled liabililies 1.087 1,055 Q Q

A complete list of the Shareholdings of Deutsche Bank AG (including companies, where the holding equals or exceeds 20%
and holdings in large corporations, where the holding exceeds 5% of the voting rights) ¢an be found in the Note

“Shareholdings”.

Trust business

Assets held m st

Lizbilities held in ryst

in € m. Dec 31, 2022 Dec 34, 2021 in€m. Dec 31. 2022 Dec 31, 2021
Receivables lrom banks 2.417 1,797 Labiliiesto 251 282
banks .
Receivables trom customers 387 444 Liabilities to
customers 2.553 1.880
Bonds and other fixed-income
secunties 9 0
Egquity shares and other
variable-yield securiles 0 Qg
Parlicipating interesls o] Q
Sundry assels 0 Y
Total 2,804 2,161 Toial 2,804 2,161

Receivables from banks are mainly related to deposits from cuslomers placed on their behalf with third party banks.
Reacetvaples from customers are mamly loans which were funded by development banks or puble bodies for specific purposes,

ingluding loans to support clients during the COVID-19 pandemic.
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Newtsche Bank MNotes lo the balance sheel
Annual Financial Statements Prepaid vxpensas and delerred income
of Deulsche Bank AG

Fixed assets

The following schedule shows the changes in fixed assels.

Diepreciation/amortixation, wnte«

Acquisiion/manulactunng costs downs and vafua adjusimanls Book value
Balance Balance Batance
at Addi- thergin thergin at al
Jan t, tions / Dis- Cumu- current dis- Dec 31, Dec 31.
in&m. 2022 Transflers posals lative year posals 2022 2021
Intangible assels 9,475 1,086 21 7,210 992 22 3,230 3,092
Sell-developed
intangible assels 7,323 1.044' Ll 5477 844 7 2,884 2,641
Purchased intangihle assels 1,434 42 15 1,728 145 15 331 435
Googwill 719 1] '] 704 2 0 14 17
Down-paymenis ] 0 0 o o] 1] 0 1]
Tangible assets 4,389 436 156 3,268 251 152 1,402 1,208
Land and buildings 234 {71) 85 27 5 52 512 g5
Office fumiture and equipment 4.155 507 70 3,240 247 100 1,351 1114
Leasing assels 0 0 ] "] 0 0 0 o
Changes
Pariicipating interesls {23) 153 176
Invegiments in affiliated
companies 4.4313 30,774 26.343
Maney market instrumenis 0 0 0
Bonds and cther lixed-
income securities 9.360 43,823 34,463
thereof: included in valualion units accarding
1o Section 254 HGB ] 0 0
Equity shares and other
variable-yield securilies ()] 0 0
thereo!" included in
valuation units according
1o Section 254 HGB a 9 0
The aptian te combine financlal assets gursuant 1o Section 34 (3] RachKredV has beaen utlized. Exchanga rate changas al foreign b w ing frem i

al ciosing rates have heen recognized in acguisdion/manuiacturing cosis (balance al Jasyary 1, 2027} and in cumylative uepreaahunlamomzahon write-downs and value
adjusiments
' Addilions lo sell-developed inlangible assels refate to sel-developed software
? Land and buildngs were used as part of our gwn activites
s i alfili igs increased by € 4.4 billion to € 30,8 billion: this ingrease was atlibulable 1o write-ups of € 4.4 billon and 3 positive impact of foreign
curency translation of € 0.3 bilhon, pardy offsel by wnte-downs of € 0.3 billion; furthermore, Capilal increases of € 0.4 billion were compensated by capital repayments of the
same amount

Intangible assets

The goodwill reported under intangible assets is amortized over its estimated useful life of between five and 15§ years. Its
determination is based on economic and crganizational factors such as future growth and praofit prospects. mode and duration
of expected synergies, leveraging customer base and assembled workforce of the acquired business. Software classified as
an intangible asset is amortized over its useful life, which extends over a period of up to 10 years.

Sundry assets

Sundry assets of € 5.8 billion mainly consist on Receivabies from collateral of € 2.7 billion, tax claims of € 1.4 billion as well
as Receivabtes from profit pooling agreements of € 0.4 billion.

Prepaid expenses and deferred income

Prepaid expenses include discounts between the issuance and redemption amount for liabifities of € 61 million.

Deferred income includes discounts according to section 340e section 2 HGB in the amount of € 53 miilion.
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Deutsche Bark Notes (o the balance shael
Annuat Financial Stalements Maturity structure of lisbilities
of Deuwtsche Bank AG

Deferred taxes

Deferred taxes are determined for temporary differences between carrying amounts of assets, liabilities and accruals
according 1o HGB accounting and their tax bases when i is anlicipaled that such differences will reverse in subsequent
reporiing periods. In this context, tlemporary differences of consolidaled tax group subsidiariesipartnerships where Deutsche
Bank AG is a sharehalder/partner are included in the determination of Deutsche Bank AG's deferred takes as well. ln addition
unused tax losses are taken into account when determining deferred tax assets to the extent that they will be utilized within
the following five years. The measurement of deferfed taxes is based on the combined income tax rate of the tax group of
Deutsche Bank AG which is cuirently 31.3%. The combined income tax rate includes corporate tax, trade tax and solidarity
surcharge. -

By contrast, deferred taxes arising from temporary differences in German investments in the form of a partnership are
measured based on a combined income tax rate which includes only the carporate income tax and solidarity surcharge: this
currently amounts to 15.83%.

Deferred taxes in foreign branches are measured with the applicable statutory tax rates which are mainly within a range of
20% and 33%.

ln the reporting period an overall deferred tax asset of € 5 4 pilion was presented an the balance sheet. Significant contributers
were — Deutsclhie Bank AG - "dornesilc bank”, Inciudihg deterred 1aXes of consolidated tax group subsidiaries and Deutsche
Bank AG New Yark Branch. These are mainly based on unused {ax losses and temporary differences, the latter mainty relating
to staff related obligations and fair value measuremenils of ioan pertfolios and trading books.

Maturity structure of liabilities

i€ m. Dec 31, 2022 Oec 31, 2021
Liabiliies 10 banks wilh agreed penod of nolice periot 35,056 93,677
with a residual period of
up to three months 40,761 44,4599
maore than three months and up o one year 20,908 29.011
more than one year and up to five years 11,549 9,904
mare than five years 11.838 10,263
Savings deposits with agreed nolice period of mare than three months 2,818 3,009
with a rasidual pericd of
ug@ to three months . 1,194 1,342
mare than threa months and up to one year ’ 1,567 1,598
more (han one year and up Io live years 57 &9
more than five years 0 o
Other liatiilities to customers with agreed periad or notice period 120,625 a7.060
with a residual periad of
up to three months 62,016 52,985
more than three months and up (o one year 40,713 29531
maore than one year and up lo five years - 11121 6872
more than five years 6,775 7,671
Otner liabilities in certificate form 3,246 2512
with a residual period of
up 1o three monihs 830 1,445
more than three months and up 1o one year 2,415 1,083
more than one year and ug o five years 2 4
nore than five years 0 o

Of the 1ssued bonds and nates of € 83.8 bithon. € 160 billon mature in 2023,



Deutsche Bank Noles to Lhe balance sheet
Annual Financrat Statements Pensions and similar.obligations
of Deutsche Bank AG

Liabilities for which assets were pledged as collateral

For the following liabilities assels were pledged as collateral in the amount stated in the table.

" E&m. Dec )3, 2022 Dec 21, 2021
Liabilities to banks 22,924 19,180
Liabikles to cuslomers 841 1,252
Teading kabilities 1,918 2073
Qther tiabilities 1} Q

Sundry liabilities

Sundry liabilities of € 37.3 billion mainly contain liabilities due to failed derecognition amounting ta € 28.6 billion, cash collateral
received amounting lo € 2.2 billion, other sundry liabilities amounting to € 1.9 billion, habilities for specially covered FX
positions according to section 340h HGB amounting to € 1.2 billion, operating expenditure to be paid amounting to € 1.2 billion
as well as FX revaluation effects far dotational capital and P&L carried forward amounting to € 1.2 billion

Pensions and similar obligations

Deutsche Bank AG spoonsors post-employment benefit plans for its employees (pension plans) which conlain defined
contribution as well as defined benefit plans.

The majority of the beneficiaries of these pension plans are located in Germany. The value of a participant’s accrued benefit
is hased primarily on each employee’'s remuneration and length of service.

December 31 is the measurement date far ali defined benefit plans. All pians are vaiued using the projected unit-credit method.
The valuation requires the application of certain actuarial assumptions such as demographic developments, increase in
remuneration for aclive staff and in pensions as well as inflation rates. The discount rate is determined pursuant to the rules
of Section 253 (2) HGB.

ASSUMPLONS USed far pension plans Dec 31, 2022 Dec 31. 2021
Discount rate . 1.62% 1.76%
Inflation rale 2.64% 227%
Rate of nominal increase in future compensatian levels 2.83% 2.50%
Rate of nominal increase for pensions in payment 3.02% 2.17%

modified Richitafeln modified Richitafeln

Mortality/disabtlity tables Heubeck 2018 G Heubeck 2018 G

The obligations from these defined benefit pension benefils are, for the most part, externally funded. Overfunded obligations
are recognized on the balance sheet as a net asset after netting of provisions. For underfunded pension cobligations and
obligations from the bank’s internally financed plans, the relevant provisions are recognized.

For defined contribution plans in Germany, where Deutsche Bank AG and other financial institutions are members of BVYV.
the subsidiary liability of employers covers the benefit payments and their legally required increases.

Furthermore, prowsions are recognized for other similar iong-term obligations, primarily in Germany. for example, for

anniversary years of service or early retirement schemes. The bank funds these plans on a cash basis as the benefits are
due.
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Deutsche Bank Notes 10 the balance sheel
Annual Financial Statements Other provisions
of Deutsche Bank AG

Pension plans

tn € m, Dec 31, 2022 Dac 3i. 2021
Pension abligalion {recognized in the Financials) 10,620 9.768
Notional pension abligation based on 7-year-average discount rate . 11,098 10,424
Income recegnized due 10 discounl rate difference , 478 656
Fair value of ptan assets 8,185 10,271
thereof:
cosl of plan assets 9,729 8.711
total of unrealized gains within plan assels 0 560
Net overfunded amaunt at year end {2,236) 502
Net pension asset {2,236) 502
thereot:
recognized as "Cverfunded plan assets related lo pension plans” 5 553
recognized as “Provisions for pensions and simitar obligations™ 2,241 50

As in prior year, the valuation principles according to section 253 (6) HGB result in a valuation difference between the defined
henefit abligation recognized in the financials using the 10-year-average discount rate and the 7-year-gverage discount rate.
This difference of € 478 million is subject to dividend blocking provisions,

Pens:on pians

€ m. 2022 2021
Reiurn from pian assels {1,115) 282
Interest costs for the unwind of discount of penslon obligations 380 784
Net inlerest income (expense) {1,476} {482)
thereof. recogrized as “Other operaling income” 4 0
thergof. recognized as 'Other operating expenses” {1.479) (482)

Other provisions

n € m. Oec 31, 2022
Provisians for loan iosses 534
Provisians for imminent losses 241
Remaining other provisions 3.984
Total ather provisions 4,759

The remaining Other provisions are set for the following (main) types of risk:

Staff related provisions have been set up lo reflect additional compensaton ang benefits to employees. They relate to variable
payments and deferred compensabion, share-based compensation, obligations for early retirement and others. The provided
amount tgtals € 2.7 billion per year end 2022.

Restructuring provisions arise out of restructuring activities. The Group's strategic transformation aims to significantly improve
sustainable returns to shareholders by focusing on our core businesses, reducing our adjusted costs and enabling faster
decision making and execution. The provision for these activities is € 162 milion per year end 2022.

Reguiatory Enforcement provisions arise out of current or potential claims or proceedings alleging non-compliance with lega!
or regulatory responsibiliies, which have resufted or may result in an assessment of fines or penalties by governmenial
regulalory agencies, self-requiatory organizations or other enforcement authorities. The provision for this risk is € 517 million
per year end 2022

Civil Litigation provisions anse out of current or potenlial claims or proceedings alleging non-compiliance with contractual or
other legal or regulatory respansibilities, which have resulted or may result in demands from customers, counterparties or
other parties in civil litigations. The provision for this risk is € 253 million per year end 2022.

Operalional provisions arise oul of operational risk and exclude civil litigalion and regulatory enforcement provisions, which
are presented as separate classes of provisions. The provision for this risk is € 21 miilion per year end 2022. Operalional risks

include losses resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems, or from external events.

Sundry provisions are set to € 310 million per year end 2022,
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Deutsche Bank Nolgs to the balance sheel
Annug! Finrancial Statements Instruments for Addivional Tier | Regulatory Caphal
of Deutsche Bank AG

Subordinated liabilities

Contractually subgrdinated liabilities are issued in the form of fixed rate and floating rate securities, registered and bearer
bonds and borrower's note loans and have original maturities mostly within ten and 20 years.

Deutsche Bank AG is not obliged to redeem subardinated liabilities in advance of the specified maturity date, however 1 some
cases early redemption at the issuer's oplion is possible. In the event of liquidation or insolvency, the receivables and interest
claims arising from these Habilities are subordinate lo the non-subordinated receivables of ail creditors of Deutsche Hank AG.
The conversion of these funds into equity or another form of debt is not anticipated under the terms of the notes. These
conditions aiso apply to subordinated liabilities not specified individually.

Material gubordinated liabilities above € 1.0 billion

Currancy Amount in million  Type Year of issuance Caupcn Maturity/Next call date'
uss 1,500  Registered bond 2013 4.286% 05/24/2023
€ 1.250 Bearer bond . 2015 2.750% 02/17/2025
Uus.3§ 1,500 Bearer bond 2015 4.500% 04/01/2025
€ 1,250 Bearer bond 2020 5.625% 02/18/2026
uss 1,250 - Bearer bond 2021 3.729% 401142030
U.s§ 1,250 Bearer bond 2022 3.742% 10/07/2031
€ 1.900 Bearer bong 2022 4.000% 03/24/2027

' Maturity date of bonds; bonds have same extraordinary call features. which are subject to approval by regulators or changes in lax laws

Expenses for all comraciually subordinaled habililies of € 12,8 biliion 10iaied € 320 million, including results from hedging
derivatives. Accrued but not yet matured interest of € 236 milhon included in this figure is reported in sundry liabilities.

In addition, certain habitities are subcrdinated by law according to section 46f para 6 German Banking Act, if their original

maturity is above one year and the redemption amount or interest amount is not dependent on events uncertain at the time of
issuance. These non-preferred liabilities amount to € 52 0 billion as of December 2022.

Participation rights capital

Currency Amgunt in milllon ~ Type Year of issuance Coupan FirsL calt date
€ 20 D1 Postbank Namensgenussschein Nr. 032 05.03 2007 5.250% 12/31/2026
€ 10 DL Postbank Namensgenussschein Nr. 038 03.05.2007 5.500% 12/3112022

Instruments for Additional Tier 1 Regulatory Capital

As of December 31, 2022 Additional Tier 1 Neotes (the "AT1 Nates™ or “Notes”) amounied to € 9.0 billion compared to
€ 8.5 hillion last year. Interest expense on the notes for 2022 totaled € 501 mdlion and included € 319 million of accrued
interest as of year-end 2022, which was recorded within other habilities.

The AT1 Notes constitute unsecured and subordinated notes of Deutsche Bank. The Notes bear interest on their nominal
amount from the issye date to the next re-set date at a fixed annual rate. Thereafter the interest rate will be resel al five year
intervais. The Noles contain features that may require Deutsche Bank and will permit Deutsche Bank in its sole and absolute
discretion at all times and for any reason to cancel any payment of interest. If cancelled, interest payments are non-cumulative
and will not increase to compensate for any shortfall in interest payments in any previous year. The Notes do not have a
maturity date. They are redeemabie by Deutsche Bank at its discretion on the respective next call date and at defined call
dates thereafter or in other limited circumstances. In each case, the Notes are subject to limitations and conditions as
described in the terms and conditions for example, the Notes can be redeemed by Deutsche Bank at its discretion, in whole
but not in part, for certain regulatory or laxation reasons. Any redemption is subject to the prior consent of the competent
supervisory autharity  The redemption amount and the nominal amount of the Notes may be written down upon the occurrence
of a trigger event. A trigger event occurs if the Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio of Deutsche Bank Group, determined on a
consclidated basis falis below 5.125%. The Notes may alsc be writien up, following a trigger event, subject 1o meeting centain
conditions



Deutsche Bank Motes to the balance sheel
Annual Financial Slatemnents Capiial and reserves
of Deutsche Bank AG

AT+ Notes outstanding as of December 31, 2022

Currency Amounl in million  Type Year of issuance Coupdn Next call date
Undated Non-cumulative Fixed to Reset Rata

uss 1,250  Addiiional Tier 1 Notes 2014 4.789% 4/30/2025
Undated Non-cumulative Fixed to Reset Rate

GBP 650  Addinonal Tier 1 Notes 2014 7.125% 413072026
Undaled Non-cumulative Fixed to Reset Rate

Uss 1,500  Additional Tier 1 Notes 2014 7.500% 4/30/2025
Undated Non-cumulative Fixed to Reset Rate

UsSs 1,250  Additional Tiar 1 Notes 2020 B.003% 10/30/2025
Undated Non-cumulative Fixed io Reset Rate

€ 1,250 Additional Tier 1 Notes 2021 4.625% 10/30/2027
Undated Non-cumulative Fixed to Reset Rate

€ 1,250 Additional Tier 1 Notes 2021 4 500% 11/36/2026
Undated Non-cumulalive Fixed to Reset Rate

€ 750  Additional Tier 1 Notes 2022 6.750% 10/30/2028
Undated Non-cumulatve Fixed to Resel Rate

[3 1,250  Additional Tier 1 Notes 2022 10.000% 12/01/2027

Foreign currencies

The total amount of assets denominated in foreign cufrencies was equivalent to € 432.7 billion at the balance sheet date; the
total value of liabilities was equivalent to € 292 4 bilion.

Capital and reserves

Own shares

In the course of 2022, the bank or its affiliated companies did not hold or acguire own shares pursuant to Section 71 (1) No
7 AKtG (trading purpose).

In addition, the bank was authorized to buy own shares by the General Meetings of May 19, 2022 (authcrization until April 30,
2027) and of May 27, 2021 (authorization until April 30, 2026) pursuant to Section 71 (1) No. 8 AktG including the withdrawal
of own shares according lo Sections 237, 238 and 239 AktG. The respective limitations (up to 10% of total number of common
shares) were adhered to for each purchase and sale transaction.

Additionally, the Annual General Meeting of May 19, 2022 authorized the Managerment Board pursuant to Section 71 (1) No.
8 AktG to execute the purchase of shares under the resolved authorization also with the use of put and call options or forward
purchase contracts. The limitations concerning the use of such derivatives were adhered to for each purchase and sale
transaction.

Its holdings pursuant to Section 71 (1) No. 8 AktG amounted to 28,931,618 shares, or 1.4% of its share capital. No own shares
were pledged to the bank and its affiliated companies as collateral for loans,

Changes in subscribed. authorized and conditional capital

The bank's subscribed capital is dwvided into 2,066,773,131 regislered no-par-value shares and gach share has a naminat
value of € 2.56. Excluding holdings of the bank's own shares, the number of shares outstanding at December 31, 2022 was
2,037,841,513 (end of 2021: 2,066,094,183). The average number of shares oulstanding in the reporting period was
2,039,833,718.

Condiicnal capital

"€ Subscribed capital’ Aulhonzed capilat (yel 1o be uidized}
Balance as of Dec 31, 2021 5,280,939,215 36 2,560,000,000.00 563,200,000 DO
falance as ol Usc 31, 2022 5,290,939,215 36 2,560,000.000.00 0

' Inctudes nominal vaie of reasury shares
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Details with regard to the authorized capital are presented in the combined managemenlt report congerning the Information
pursuant to Section 315a (1) of the German Commercial Code.

Changes in capital and reserves

in &€m.

Balance as of Dec 31, 2021 34,913
Distribution n 2022 (406)
Profit carried forward (562)
Treasury shares

- Change in nolional valye in reasury shares (T2}

~ Change of acquisition costs (253)

- Realized net gains (non-trading) (0}

— Realized resull {trading) 0

- Realized net losses (non-irading) (64) (389)
Addition 10 revenue reserve 2,500
Distributable profit (loss) for 2022 3,569
Balance as of Dec 31, 2022 39,625

Considering the addition to revenue reserves in the amount of € 2.5 billion, the remaining distributabte profit amounted to
€ 3.6 billion as of December 31, 2022. The bank will propose to the shareholders to pay a dividend of 30 € cent per share,
appropriate additional € 2.5 billion to revenue reserves and to carry forward the remaining distributable profit,

Off-balance sheet transactions

The bank discloses contingent liabilities and irrevocable loan commitments as off-batance sheet transactions as far as no
provisions have been established for them. The decision. whether the disclosure of the contingent liabilities and irrevocable
ioan commitments will be shown off-balance sheel or recognized as provisions is taken upon the resuit of the evaluation of
the credit nsk. Conlingent liabilities and irrevocable loan commitments are also reduced by the amount of cash coliateral
received, which is recorded as liability an the balance sheet.

The risk of losses from claims under contingent liabilibes is mihgated by the possibility lo recourse towards the respective
customer and hence is based predominantly on the credit risk of the customer.

The bank evaluates the risk of losses from claims under contingent liabilities and irrevocable credit commitments before
irrevacably entering into an obligation within a credit risk assessment of the customer or using an assessment of the customer's
expected compliance with the underlying obligation. Additionally the bank regularly assesses dunng the lifetime of the
commitment whether osses are expected from claims under contingent liabitities and irrevocable loan commitments. In certain
circumstances the bank requests the provision of collateral to reduce the risk of losses from claims, Loss amounts assessed
within such evaluations are recorded as provisions.

irrevaocable loan commitments

Irrevocable loan caommitments amounted lo € 158.1 billion as of December 31,2022 and included commitments of
€ 156 7 billion for loans and discounts in favor of non-banks.

Deutsche Bank AG enters into irrevocable loan commitments to meet the financing needs of its customers. Irrevocable loan
commitments represent the undrawn porticn of Deutsche Bank's obligation to grant leans which cannat be withdrawn by
Deutsche Bank. These commitments are shown with the contractual amount after consideration of cash collateral received
and provisions as recorded an the balance sheet. The amounts stated above do not represent expected fulure cash flows as
many of these contracts will expire without being drawn. Even though the irrevocable loan commitments are not recognized
on the balance sheet, Deuvische Bank AG considers them in monitoring the credit exposure. If the credit risk monitoring
provides sufficient indication about a loss from an expected drawing, a provision is established.
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Deutsche Bank AG is engaged in various business aclivities with certain entities, referred o as special purpose entities
("SPEs"), which are designed to achieve a specific business purpose. The principal uses of SPEs are to provide clients with
access lo specific portfolios of assets and risks and to provide market liquidity for clients through securitizing financial assets.
Typically, Deutsche Bank AG will benefit by receiving service fees and commissions for the creation of the SPEs, or because
it acts as investment manager, custodian or in some other function. SPEs may be eslablished as corporations, trusis or
pannerships. While the bank’s involvement with these entities can take marny different forms, it consists primarily of houidity
facilities, which are disclosed off balance sheet as irrevocable foan commilments within “other cbligations” below the line of
the balance sheet. Deutsche Bank AG provides financial support to SPEs in connection with commeicial paper conduit
prograrns, asset securitizations, mutual funds and real estate leasing funds. Such vehicles are critical 10 the funclioning of
several significant investor markets, inctuding the mortgage-backed and other asset-backed securities markets, since they
offer investors access to specific cash flows and risks created through the securitization process. As of December 31, 2022,
Deutsche Bank AG's expesure has not had a material impact on its debt covenants, capital ratios, credit ratings or dividends.

Cantingent liabilities

In the normal course of business Deutsche Bank AG enters regutarly into guarantees, letters of credit and credit liabilities on
behalf of its customers. Under these contracts Deutsche Bank AG is required to rmake payments to the beneficiary based on
third party’s failure 1o meet its othgations or to perform under an abligation agreement. For such coatingencies it is not known
to the bank in detail, if, when and to which extent ciaims will be made. If the credit nsk monitoring provides sufficient perception
about a loss from an expected drawing, a provision is recognized.

The foliowing table shows the total potential payments under guarantees, lefters of credit and credit liabilities after deduction
of cash collateral and provisions recorded on the balance sheet. It shows the maximum amount of the potential utilization of
Deutsche Bank AG in case all obligations entered into must be fulfilled and at the same time all recourse claims to the
customers are not satisfied. The table therefore does not show the expected future cash flows from these contracts as many
of these agreements will expire without being drawn or drawings will counterbalanced by recourse to the customer.

ne€m Deg 31, 2022 Dec 31, 2021
Guaraniees 51,855 43.840
Letters of credit 3,701 4.938
Credit liabikties 7,089 7.403

Sundry obtigations

Purchase obligations are legally enforceable and binding agreemenis to purchase goads or services al pre-defined terms
such as minimum quaniities or prices. When Deutsche Bark AG enters into such agreements there is the potemial risk that
terms and conditions of the contract are less favorable than terms and conditions at the time the goods or services are
delivered or thal relaled costs are higher than the economic benefit received. In case of an anticipated loss, Deutsche Bank
AG may set aside a provision for onerous contracts

Furghase gbligations for goods and services amount {o € 3.7 billion as of December 31, 2022, which include fulure payments
far, among others, services such as information technology and facility management.

Leases are contracts in which the owner of an asset {lessor) grants the right to use this asset to another party (lessee) for a
specific period of ime in return for regular payments, A léas]ng contract is classified as Operating Lease # the agreement
includes a limited ar unlimited right of termination for the fessee. All main risks and benefits linked with the ownership of the
asset remain with the lessor, the lessor remains economic owner. Operabing leases provide an alternative to ownership as
they enable the lessee to benefit from not having its resources invested in the asset. Deutsche Bank AG’s exisling obligations
arising from operaling leases involve rental and leasing agreements for buildings. office furniture and equipment. The majority
of these are leasing agreemernts for buildings, where Deutsche Bank AG is the lessee. As of December 31, 2022 payment
obligations under rental agreements and leases amounted to € 5 0 billion (thereof € 22 million were relaled to subsidiaries)
and had residual maturities of up to 25 years.

As of December 31 2022 unamortized deferred variable compensation costs amount 1o € 134 muillion,

Liabilities for possibie calls on not fully paid-up shares in public and private limited companies and other shares amounted to
€ 22 million at the end of 2022, of which € 15 million were related 1o a subsidiary,
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Pursuant to Section 5 (10} of the Statute of the Depasit Protection Fund Deutsche Bank AG has undertaken to indemnify
Bundesverband deutscher Banken e V., Berin, for any losses incwred through measures taken in favor of banks majority-
held or controlled by Deutsche Bank AG.

Irrevocable payment commitments for to bank levy related to the Single Resolution Fund (SFR) and German deposit protection
amounted to € 1.2 billion.

Obligations arising from transaclions on futures and options exchanges and towards clearing houses for which securities were
pledged ae collateral amounted to € 3.4 billion as of December 31, 2022

Additional other contingent liabilities are totaling € 73 million.
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Notes to the income statement

Income by geographical market

The totai amount of interest income, of current income from equity shares and other variable-yield securites, participating
interests and investments in affiliaied companies, of commission income, of net rading result and of other operating income
is originated across various regions as shown by the following breakdown pursuant to Section 34 (2} RechKredV.

in € my, 2022 2021
Germany 18621 13,810
Europe excl. Germany 18,065 6.131
Americas 5,491 3,060
AfricalAsialAustratia 3970 2,834
Total 44 146 25,885

The increase of income in Germany and Europe excluding Germany is mainly attributable to higher interest income and higher
income fram banking book derivatives as well as improved trading income. Commission incame was slightly lower. The ather
regiuns also benefitted from higher interest income, but recorded partly offsetting effects from othar incoma items.

Interest income and interest expenses

Interest income from lending and money market business included € 471 million of negative interest. i.e. interest expenses on
receivables which were mainly related lo receivables from banks and to trading assets. Interest expenses included
€ 1,123 million of negative interest, i.e. interest incame on liabilities which was mainly related to liabilities to banks.

Administrative and agency services provided for third parties

The following administratlive and agency services were provided for third parties: custody services, referral of morigages,
insurance policies and home savings contracts, adrmunistration of assets held in trust, and asset management, .

Other operating income and expenses

Other operating income of € 7.2 bilion includes the result from non-trading derivatives of € 5 5 billion, gains relating to foreign
currency translation of assets and liabilities of € 470 million and releases of provisions of € 154 millian,

Other operaling expenses of € 8 4 billion mainly include the result from nan-trading dervatives of € 6.0 bifhan, negative return

on plan assets and interest expenses from unwinding the discount for staff related provisions in the amount of € 1.4 billion as
well as expenses from currency transiation of assels and liabilities of € 524 million

Extracrdinary result

Extraordinary income of € 114 milfion relates to restructuring activities. (2021 gain of € 36 million). Extraordinary expenses of
€ 19 million reflect restructuring activities (2021 expenses of € 181 milion).

Extraordinary income and expenses nel to an exiraordinary resull of € 95 million (2021: negative € 145 miltion)
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Information regarding amount blocked according to sections

253 (6) and 268 (8) HGB

The fallowing table presents the amounts pursuant to sections 268 (8) HGB and 253 (6) HGB that should be considered for
profit distribution. Total distributable reserves plus the distributable profit are covering the amounts blocked as of
Oecember 31, 2022. The individual positions below include deferred tax liabilities, if applicable; therefore the amounts shown

in the table may deviate from the corresponding balance sheet positions.

in€m Dec 31, 2022 Dec 31, 2021
Deferred tax assels 5.895 3,853
Sell-developed inlangible assels 2,504 2,317
Vajualion difference relaled to discounting of provisions for pension obligations 328 451
Unrealized gains of plan assets 0 540
Total undistributable amount 8,728 7,162
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Shareholdings

29 Companies, where the holding exceeds 20%
38  Holdings in large corporations, where the noiding
exceeds 5% of voting rights

The following pages show the Shareholdings of Deutsche Bank AG pursuant to Section 285 Number 11 HGB
including information pursuant to Section 285 Number 11a HGB. Pursuant to Section 286 {3) Sentence 1
Number 1 HGB, Deutsche Bank AG does not disclose own funds and annual result of individual holdings ta
the exient that those disciosures are insignificant for the presentation of assets and liabilities, financiat
pasition, and results of operations of Deutsche Bank AG.

Footnotes:

1 Profit and loss transfer agreement, annual result is not disclosed.
Own funds and annual result of business year 2021, local GAAP figures for business year 2022 are
not yel available.

3 Own funds and annual result of the subgroup The following companies starting with a dash are part
of the subgroup; their own funds and annuai resuit are incarporated in the subgroup data.

4 Status as shareholder with unlimited hability pursuant to Section 285 Number 11a HGB.

5 Generail Parinership.
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Share

of Qwn Resun
Sernal Demicile Fool.  Capital funds in in €
No Name of campsany of company nete in % € million mdiion
1 ABATE Grundstiicks-Vermietungsg haft mbH Duesseldord 50.0
2 ABRI Beteiligungsgeselischaft mbH Duesseldorf 50.0
3 ACHTE PAXAS Trevhand- und Beteiligungsgeselischaft mbH Duesselgorf 30.0
4 ACHTZEHNTE PAXAS Treuhand- und Beleligungsgesellschaft mebH Duesseldorf 50.0
3 ACIS Beieiligungsgesellschaft mbH Duesseldorf 50.0
-] ACTHD Grundstiicks-Vermietungsg, haft mbH Duesseldorf 50.0
7 ADEQ Beteiligungsgesellschali mbH Dus Idor 50.0
2 ADLAT Beleiligungsgesellschaft mbH Duesseldorf 50.0
9 ADMANU Betetigungsgeseilschaft moH i L. D Idorf 50.0
10 AGLOM Beteiligungsgeselischaft mbH i.L Duesseldor? 50.0
t AGUM Beteilgungsgesellschaft mbH Duesseldorf 50.0
12 AKA Ausfuhrkredit-Gesellschah mit baschriinkier Haflung Frankiurn 26.9 2736 4.4
13 ALANUM Beleiligungsgeselischall mbH Ouesseldor’ 50.0
14 Alfred Herrhausen Gesellschaft mbH Bertin 100.0
15 ALTA Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH Duessetdorl 50.0
16 Amber Investments S.4 r.l.. en fiquidation volontaire Luxembaourg 100.0
17 ANDOT Grundslicks-Vermielungsgesellschaft mbH Duesseldart 50.0
18 Arabesque Al Ltd Londen 24.9 2.5 (2.4)
19 AVOC Belgiligungsgesellschafl mbH i.L. COuesseldarf 50.0
20 BAKTU Beleiligungsgeselischafl mbH i.L. Schoenefeld 50.0
21 Baldur Mortgages timited Landcn 100.0
22 BANKPOWER GmbH Personaldienstieistungen Frankfurt 30.0 3.6 3.3
23 Banks island General Pariner Inc. Toronto 50.0
24 Bayan Definquent Loan Recovery 1 (SPV-AMC). inc. Makati City 100.0
25 Benefit Trust GmbH Luetzen 1000 7,326.4 {40.5)
26 Beslra Gesellschall fir Vermbgensverwallung mis beschrankier Haliung Duesseldorf 48.0
27 Betriebs-Ceniter fir Banken AG Frankfurt 100.0 117.6 {54.7}
28 Better Financial Services GmbH Berlin 100.0
29 Better Payment Gemany GmbH Berlin 100.0
a0 BHW -G haft fir Wohnungswirischak mbH Hamehy i 1000 1.161.3 0.0
31 8HW Bausparkasse Akliengesellschafl Hameln 1 100.0 1.800.6 0.0
32 BHW Helding GmbH Hameln 1 .100.0 727.8 0.0
33 BIMES Beteiligungsgesellschalt mbH 1.L. Schoenefeld 50.0
34 BLI Beteiligungsgeseltschaft fur Leasinginvestitionen mbk Ouesseldorf 33.2
35 8L Internationale Beteiligungsgesellschafl mbH il Duesseldort 32.0
36 Borfield Sociedad Anonima Montevideo 100.0
37 Breaking Wave DB Limited London 100.0
38 BT Globenet Nominees Limited London 100.0
39 Cardea Real Eslale S.r,l. Mitan 100.0
40 Carpathian Investments Designated Activity Company Dublin 100.6
41 Cathay Advisory {Beijing} Co., Lid. Beijing 100.0
42 Cathay Assel Management Company Limiled Ebéne 100.0
43 Cathay Capital Company (No 2} Limited Ebéne 67.6 227.4 {17.7}
44 Cedar {Luxembouwrg) S.ar.l Luxembourg 98.2
45 City Leasing {Thameside} Limiled London 100.0
45 City Leasing Limited London . 100.0
47 Censume Srl in Liquidazione Milan 100.8
48 D B Investments (GB} Limiled Londan 2 1000 554.5 (7.8}
49 D&M Turnaround Partners Godo Kaisha Tokyo 100.0 0.0 3.4
50 Danube Properiies S.3 ¢l en faillite Luxembourg 25.0
51 DB (Barbados) SRL Christ Church 100.0
52 DB {Malaysia] Nominee (Asing) Sdn. Bhd. Kuala Lumpur 100.0
53 DB (Malaysia) Nominee (Tempatan) Sendirian Berhad Kuala Lumpur 100.0
54 DB Advisors SICAV Luxembourg 959 7.230.4 (263.9)
55 DB Agtearpa Invesiments Limited George Town 100.0
56 DB Asset Finance | 8.3 r.l. Luxembourg 2 96.9 56 121
57 DB Asset Finance 1 8.4 r.i. Luxembaourg 2 96.9 55 10.3
58 DB Beleiligungs-Holding GmbH Frankfun 1 160.0 6.303.9 00
59 DB Capital Markals {Deutschland) GmbH Frankfun 11000 330.2 0.0
&0 DB Cantera de Inmuebles 1, S.AU. Madiid 100.0
61 DB Chestaut Holdings Limited George Town 100.0
62 DB Corporate Advisory {Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd Kuala Lumpur 100.0
63 DB Covered Bond S.rl. Congglano $0.0
64 DB Credit Invesiments S.ar.l. Luxembaourg 2 1000 i3 10.9
65 DB Delaware Holdings (Europe) Limited (in voluntary hquidation} Camana Bay 100.0
66 DB Direkt GmbH Frankfurt 1 100.0
67 DB Equity Limited (in members’ voluntary liquidation) London 2 100.0 241 0.0
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68 DB Finance International GmbH Frankfurnt 100.0
69 DB Global Technology SRL Bucharest 100.0 50.2 8.3
70 D8 Greup Services (UK) Limiled London 100.0
71 OB HR Solutions GmbH Frankiurt 100.0 2.0 (2.1)
72 DB Immaobilienfonds 2 KGi.L. Frankfurt 74.0
73 DB Immobifienfonds 5 Wieland KG i.L. Frankfurt 936
74 DB Impact Investment (GP) Limited Landon 100.0
75 DB Impacl Invesiment Fund |, L.P. Edinburgh 100.C
78 DB industrial Holdings Beleiligungs GmtH & Co. KG Luetzen 1000 16618 7.9
77 DB Indusiriai Holdings GmbH Lueizen 100.0 14324 7.2
78 DB International {Asia) Limited Singapare 100.0 4288 {(2.3)
79 D8 Intemational Investments Limited Londen 100.0
80 DB Internatonal Trust {Singapore) Limited Singapora 100.0
281 OB Investment Partners Limiled Landon 100.0
a8z DB Investment Services GmbH Frankfurt 1 100.0 47.7 00
83 D8 Landon {Invesior Services) Naminees Limited Landgn 1Q0.0
B84 DB Management Support GrnbH Frankfurt 100.0
a5 08 Muynicipat Holdings LLC Wilrungton 100.0 280 875
85 DB Naminees (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 100.0
a7 08 Mominees {lersey) Limited St Helier 100.9
88 08 Nominees (Singapore) Pte Lid Singapore 100 0
a3 DB Operaciones y Senvicios interactives, SLU. Madnd 1000
90 0B Overseas Holdings Limited London 2 100.0 81.5 16.4
91 DB Placement. LLC Véiimingion 1900
92 0B Print GmbH Frankfun 1 100.0
3 0B RC Investments I}, LLC ‘Wilrnington $9.9
94 DBReS A, Luxembourg 100.0
95 DB Real Estats Global Opportunities 1B (Dffshore), L.P. Camana Bay 138
96 DB Service Cenlre Limited Dublin 2 100.0 21.6 {2.3)
o7 DB Senvices [Jersey) Limned 51, Heler 100.0
98 DB Servizi Armministrative S.ri. Milan 100.0
99 DB Strategic Advisprs. Inc. Makati City 100.0
100 0B Structured Hoidings Luxembourg S.4 .l Luxembourg 100.0
101 DB Trustee Services Limiled London 1000
102 DB Trustees (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 100.0 44 2.7
103 D& UK Barnk Limited London 2 100.0 721.3 {8.9)
104 D8 UK Holdings Limilad London 2 160.0 408.3 8.4
105 DB UK PCAM Holdings Limted London 100.0 2.1 (102.9)
106 DB USA Corporation {Sub-group) Wilmingtan 3 1000 12,6156 51.5
107 -ABFS | incorporated Lutherville-Timonium 1000
108 -Alex. Brown Financial Services Incorporaled Lutherville-Timonium 100.0
109 -Alex. Brown Investments Incorpgrated Lutherville-Timoniym 1000
110 -Argent incorporated Luthenville-Timonium 100 0
111 -China Recovery Fund. LLC Wimmngton 850
112 -DB Alex. Brown Holdings Incorporaled Wilminglon 1000
113 -DB Aster . LLC Wilminglon 100.0
114 -DB Aster Il LLC Wilmington 1000
115 -DB Asler, Inc. Wilminglon 1000
116 -DB Aster, LLC Wilmingion 1000
117 ° -DB Boracay LLC Witminglon 1000
118 -8 Elara LLC Wilenuaglon 1000
i19 -DB Energy Trading LLC Wilmington 1000
120 -0B Equipment Leasing, Inc. New York 100.0
121 -DB Finance (Delaware), LLC Wilmington 100.0
122 08B Global Technclogy 'nc Witmington 100.0
123 -CB Holdings {(New York), Inc New Yerk 1000
124 -DB intermezzo WO Wilmingion 10p
125 -D8 Investment Managers, Inc. Wilringlon 1000
128 OB invesiment Resowrces (US) Corporation Wilminglen 1000
127 -DB investment Resaurces Hoidings Cerp Wilmington 100.0
128 DBIoLP Wiimmgian T Thooa
120 -00 IROC Leasig Conp. MNew York iwuy
130 -DB Litigation Fee LLC wWilmingion 1000
131 -DB Omega Lid. George Town 1000
132 -DB Omega S.C.S. Luxembourg 100.0
133 -DB Overseas Finance Delaware, Inc. Wilmingion 100.0
134 -DB Privaie Clients Corp. Wilmingor 100.0
135 -DB Private Wealih Morigage Ltd New York — Tooo
136 -DB RC Holdings. LLC Wilmington 100.0
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137 -DB Services Americas, Inc. Wilmington 100.0
138 -DB Structured Derivative Products, LLC Wilmington 100.0
138 -DB Siruciured Producis, Inc. Wilmingion 100.0
140  -DB U.5. Financial Markels Holding Corporation Wilmington 100.0
141 -0B USA Core Corparation West Trenten 100.0
t42  -DBAH Capiial. LLC Wilmingtan 100.0
143 -DBrIC, Ine. Wilmington 10G.0
144 -DBNZ Overseas Invesiments {(No. 1) Limited George Town 100.0
145 -Deutsche Bank Americas Holding Corp. Wilmington 100.0
146 -Deutsche Bank Haldings, Inc. Wilmington 100.0
147 -Deutsche Bank Insurance Agency Incorporaled Witmington 100.0
148 -Deutsche Bank Nalional Trust Cempany Los Angeles 100.0
- 149 -Oeutsche Bank Secunbes inc Wilntington 100.0
150 -Deuische Bank Trust Company Amencas New York 100.0
151 -Deutsche Bank Trust Company Delaware Wilmington 100.0
152 -Deutsche Bank Trust Company, Natonal Association New Yock t30.0
153 -Deutsche Bank Trust Corgoralion New York 100.0
154 -Deutsche Leasing New York Carp., New York 100.0
1556 -Deutsche Mortgage & Asset Receiving Carporation Wilmington 100.0
186 -G Finance Hotding Corp. Wilmingtorn 100.0
157 -GAC-HEL, Inc. Wilmington 100.0
158  -German American Capital Corporalion Lutherville-Timanium 100.0
159 -GWC-GAC Corp. Wilmington 100.0
160  -Kelsey Sireet LLC Witmington 100.0
1561 -87 Lecnard Development LLC Witmington 100.0
162  -MIT Holdings. Inc. Baltimere 100.0
163  -MortgagelT Securities Corp Wilmingtgn 100.0
164  -MorigagelT. Inc. New York 100.0
165 -New 87 Leonard, LLC Wilmington 100.0
166 -PARTS Funding. LLC Wilmington 100.0
167 -OR Tower 2, LLC Wilmingten 100.0
168  -Route 28 Receivables, LLC Wilmingion 100.0
169  -Sharps SPILLC Wilmingten 100.0
170 -Singer Island Tower Suite LLC Wilmington 100.0
iTl -World Trading {Delaware) inc. Wilmington 100.0
172 -Zumirez Orive LLC Wilmingion 100.0
173 DB Valgren S.ar.l. Luxembourg 100.0 573.2 4.2
174 DB Value S.ar.l. Luxembourg 100.0 42.4 Q.1)
175 DB VersicherungsManager GmbH Frankfurt 1. _100.0
176 DB Vita 5.A, Luxembourg 84.0 45.2 1.8
177 DBCIB21 George Town 100.0
178 DBG Eastern Europe It L.P. St, Hetier 25.9
179 DBOI Global Services (UK) Limited tondon 2 1000 122 5.3
180 DBR Investments Co. Limita¢ George Town 100.0 2426 (91.5})
181 DBRE Global Real Estaie Management 1B, Lid. George Town 100.0 -
182 DEBRE Global Real Estale Management US 1B, L.L.C. Wilmington 100.0
183 DBRMSGP1 George Town 4.5 1000 378.7 8.8
184  DBUK PCAM Limited London 2 100.0 {108.1) (0.1}
1BS  DBUSBZ2, S.4rl. Luxembourg 100.6
186 DBX Advisors LLC Wilmington 100.0 13.0 6.3
187 DEBEKQ immobilien GmbH & Co Grundbesilz OHG Eschbarn 4 100.0 78.4 {16.4)
188  DEE Deutsche Erneverbare Energien GmbH Frankfurt 100.0
18¢% DEUKONA Versicheruags-Vermittlungs-GmbH Frankfurt 100.0
190 Deutsche (Aotearoa) Capilal Holdings New Zealand Auckland 160.0
191 Deutsche {Aatearoa) Foreign Invesimenis New Zealand Auckland 100.0
192 Deutsche Aeolia Power Produclion Société Anonyme Athens 85.6
193 Deutsche Ajternalive Asset Management (UK) Limited London 100.0 11.2 {4.4)
i94 Deutsche Asia Pacific Holdings Pte Lid Singapore 160.0 3126 31.0
195 Deulsche Asset Management {India) Private Limited Mumbai 100.0 10.9 0.1
196 Deutsche Australia Limited (Sub-group} Sydrey 2,3 100.0 185.9 1.9
497 -Deutsche Access Invesimenls Limited Sydney 160.0
198 -Deutsche Capital Markets Australia Limiled Sydney 100.0
99 -Devutsche Group Services Pty Limited Sydney 100.0
200 -Pan Australian Nominees Pily Ltd Sydney 100.0
201 -R.B.M. Nominees Pty Lid Sydney 100.0
202 Deutsche Bank {Cayman) Limited George Town 100.0 69.1 1.2
203 Deutsche Bank (China) Co., Lld. Beijing 100.0 1,261.8 69.9
204 Deutsche Bank [Malaysia) Berhad Kuala Lumpur 100.0 404 2 45.5
205  Deutsche Bank {Suisse) SA Geneva 100.0 599.3 .7
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Deutsche Bank (Uruguay} Sociedad Andnima Instilucion Financiera Exierna Montevideo 100.0
DEUTSCHE BANK A.S. Istanbui 100.0 91.1 42.5
Deutsche Bank Europge GrrbH Frankfurd 1 100.0 10.0 0.0
Deutsche Bank Financial Company George Town 100.0 20.5 _(8.7)
Deutsche Bank Luxembourg S.A. Luxembourg 1000 4.859.8 164.9
Deuische Bank Mutui S p.A. Milan 100.0 21.9 (6.0}
Deutsche Bank México, S5 .A.. Institucion de Banca Multiple Mexico City 100.0 68.1 1.1
Deutsche Bank Polska Spalka Akcyjna Warsaw 100.0 355.6 {95.6)
Deutsche Bank Representative Office Nigeria Limited Lagos 1000
Deutsche Bank S.A. - Banco Alemao San Paulo 100.0 3936 45.4
Deutsche Bank Sacurities Limited Taronlo 100.0 98.7 1.3
Deutsche Bank Societd per Azioni Milan 99.9 23275 2551
Deutsche Bark, S dad Andnima Esp Madrid 100.0 954.5 9.6
Deultsche Capital Finance (2000} Limited George Tawn 100.0
Deutsche Capital Partners China Limited Camana Bay 100.0
Deutsche Cayman Ltd. Camana Bay 100.0
Deuische CIB Centre Privale Limited Mumbai 100.0 42.6 89
Deutsche Colombia S.A.5. Bogota 100.0
Oeulsche Custody N.V, Amslerdam 100.0
Deutsche Equities India Private Limited Mumbai 100.0 42 5 15.4
Deutsche Finance No 2 Limited George Town Z 1000 11.0 0.4)
Deutsche Geselischaft filr immobilien-Leasing mit beschrankier Haftung Dy {dor 100.0
Deutsche Glohal Markets Limited Tel Aviv 100.0 12.8 0.2
Deutsche Group Holdings {SA) Proprietary Limited Johannesburg 100.0 16.4 {4.7)
Deutsche Grundbesilz-Anlagegeselischaft mit beschrénkier Haflung Frankiurt 1 59.8
Deutsche Holdings (Grand Duchy) Luxembourg 100.0
Deutsche Haidings (Luxembourg) 5.3 rl Luxembourg 100.0 1.8709 301.6
Deulsche Holdings Limited London 2 100.0 443.0 0.0
Deutsche Holdings No. 2 Limited t.ondan 2 100.0 24¢.1 (0.2)
Deutsche Hoidings No. 3 Limied London 2 16040 1791 (1.3)
Deutsche Holdings Ne. 4 Limited Lendon 100.0 117.8 18
Beutsche Immobilien Leasing GmbH Duesseldort 1 100.0 6.5 0.0
Deutsche india Holdings Private Limited Mumbai 100.0 92.8 17.2
Deutsche India Private Limiled Mumbai 100.0 164.0 423
Deulsche International Corporate Services (ireland) Limited Dubtin 100.0
Deutsche International Carporate Services Limited St. Helier 100.0
Deulsche Intarnalional Custodial Services Limiled St, Helier 100.0
Deulsche Investmenis (Nethertands) N.V. Amslerdam 100.0
Deutsche Invesiments India Privaie Limileg Mumbai 100.0 108.5 2.2
Deutsche Investor Services Private Linuled Mumbai 100.0
Deutsche Knowledge Services Pte. Ltd. Singapore 100.0 83.3 (4.4)
Ceutsche Mexico Holdings S.3 ¢.J. Luxembourg 100.0
Deutsche Margan Grenfell Group Limited Landon 2 100.0 38.1 (0.5}
Deutsche Nederland N.V. Amsterdam 100.0
Oeutsche New Zealand Limited (Sub-group} Auckiand 3 1000 1.2 0.0
-Deutsche {New Munsler} Holdings New Zealand Limited Auckland 106.0
-Deutsche Domus New Zealand Limiled Auckland 100.0
-Deutsche Foras New Zealand Limited Auckland 1000
-Deutsche Overseas Issuance New Zealand Limited Auckland 100.0
Deutsche Nominees Limited London 100.0
Deutsche Oppenheim Family Office AG Cologne 1 100.0 518.8 0.0
Deutsche Postbank Finance Centar Objekt GmbH Schueltringen 100.0
Ceutsche Postbank Funding LLC [ Wilminglon 100.0
Deutsche Pastbank Funding LLC 1 Wilmington 100.0
Deulsche Postbank Funding Trust Wilmington 100.0
Deutsche Fostbank Funding Trust il Wilmington 100.0
Deutsche Private Assel Management Lirited (in members' voluntary London 1000
liquidatior}
Deutsche River Investment Management Company S.a vl en faillite clblurée  Luxembourg 49.0
Deutsche Securities (Inda) Private Limited New Dethi 100.0 113 0.3
Deutsche Securities (Proprietary) Limited Johannesburg 100.0 25.0 0.8
Doutcohe Scounties (EA) [Praprictary) Limited Julianesbuy 1060
Qeutsche Sacunties Asia Limited Hong Kong +00.0 114.1 1.6
Deutsche Securities Inc. Tokyo 2 100.0 616.5 (53.9)
Oeulsche Securities israel Lid. Tel Aviv 100.0 8.7 26
Deutsche Secunlies Korea Co. Seaul 100.0 75.6 3.6
Deuische Securilies Saudi Arabia (a closed joinl stock company) Riyadh 100.0 80.0 _{2.1)
Deutsche Secunlies. S A. de C.V_ Casa de Bolsa Mexico City 100.0 113 8 (8.6}
Deutsche Services (Cl) Liited 51 Heher 100.0 161 & 1.6
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274 Deuische Sernces Polska Sp. z ¢.0. Warsaw 100.0
275 Deutsche StiftungsTrust GmbH Frankfunt 1 100.0
276 Deulsche Stralegic Investment Holdings Yugen Kaisha Tokyo +00.0
277 _ Deutsche Trustee Company Limited London 100.0 15.8 (1.1
278 Deutsche Trustee Services {India) Private Limited Mumbai 100.0
279 Deulsche Trustees Malaysia Berhad Kuala Lumpur 100.0
280 Dautsche Wealth Manigemenl S.G.IILC., S._QA; i Madrid 160 O
281 D he Zurch Pensi Enlidad Gestora de Fondes de Pensi . S.A Barcelana 30.0
282 Deutscher Pensionsionds Akliengesellschafli Cologne 25.1 11.9 0.7
282 Deutsches Institul fiir Allersvorsorge GmbH Franklurt 78.0
284 Ol Deulsche immobilien Treuhandgeselschaft mbH Frankfurt 1 100.0
285 DIL Internalionale Leasinggeselischaft mbH [»] Idorf 50.0
286 DIP Management GmbH Frankfurt 100.0
287 DISCA Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH Duesseidorf 1 100.0
288 Domus Beteiligungsgeselischaft der Privaten Bavsparkassen mbH Berlin 21.1
289 DONARUM Halding GrbiH Buesselderf 50.0
290  OREIUNDZWANZIGSTE PAXAS Treuhand- und Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH  Duesseldorf 50.0

i.L.

291 DREIZEHNTE PAXAS Treuhand- und Beleiligungsgesellschaft mbH Duesseldarf 50.0
292 DRITTE Fonds-Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH Duesseldord 50.0
293 DRITTE PAXAS Treuhand- und Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH Duesseldorf 20.0
204 Dunan (Luxembourg) S.ar.l. tuxembourg 100.0
285 DWS Alternatives France Parig 100.0
296  OWS Ahernatives Global Limited kondon 100.0 133.4 {20.0)
297 DWS Aliernatives GmbH Frankiurt 1 100.0 19.5 0.0
298 DWS Asset Management (Korea) Company Limited Seoul 100.0 16.1 04
299  DWS Beteiligungs GmbH Frankfurt 1l 98.7 336.4 0.0
300 DWS CHAG Zyrich 100.0 18.7 4.7
301 OWS Distnbulors, Inc, Wilmington 100.0 46.3 4.6
302 DWS5 Far Eastern Investments Limiled Taipei 60.0 2.4 19
303 DWS Global Business Services Inc. Taguig City 99.9
304 DWS Group GmbH & Co. KGaA Frankfurt 725 8311.2 413.5
305 DWS Group Services UK Limited London 100.0 46.8 9.3
306 DWS Grundbesitz GmbH Frankfurt 4 98.9 27.7 0.0
307 DWS India Private Linnled Mumbai 10C.0
308 DWS tnternational GmbH Frankiurt 1 100.0 82.3 0.0
309  DWS Investment GmbH Frankiurt 1 100.9 393.6 0.0
310 DWS Invesiment Management Americas, Inc. Wilmington 100.0 795.3 (4.3)
311 DWS Invesiment 5.A. Luxembourg 100.0 389.2 24.1
312 DWS Invesiments Australia Limited Sydney 100.0
313 DWS Invesiments Hong Kong Limited Hong Keng 100.0 44.1 6.9
314 DWS Investmants Japan Limited Tokyo 100.0 23.7 29
315  DWS Invesiments Shanghai Limited Shanghai 100.0
316 OWS Invesimenls Singapare Limited Singapore 100.0 3836 5B.6
317 . DWS Investments UK Limited Landon 100.0 184.6 825
318 DWS Managemeni GmbH Frankfurt i00.0
318 DWS Offshore Infragtruclure Debl Opportunities Feeder LP George Town 26.3 34.1 2.5
320 DWS Real Estate GmbH Frankturt 1 9.9 52.7 0.0
kg DWS Service Company Wilmington 100.0 37 {B.1)
322 DWS Shanghai Privale Equity Fund Management Limited Shanghai 100.0
323 DWS Trust Company Concord 100.0 258 04
324 DWS USA Corporation Wilmington 100.0 1,645.0 133.3
325 EC EUROPA IMMOBILIEN FONDS NR. 3 GmbH & CO KGil. Hamburg 65.2
326 EINUNDZWANZIGSTE PAXAS Treuhand- und Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH  Duesseldorf 50.0
32y Eisler Capital {TA) Ltd London 34.7
328  Elbe Progerties 8.3 r.l., en faillite cldturée Luxembourg 25.0
328 ELC Logrsiik-Centrum Verwallungs-GmbH Erfurt 50.0
330 ELFTE PAXAS Treuhand- und Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH Duesseldorf 50.0
33t Elizabethan Holdings Limited George Town 160.0
332 Elizabethan Management Limited George Town 100.0
333 Elm (Luxembourg) 5.4 .l Luxembourg 100.0
334  Emeraid Asset Repackaging Designated Activily Company Dublin 100.0
335 Erste Frankfurter Hoist GmbH Frankfurl 100.0
336 European Value Added | [Alternale G.P JLLP Longon 100.0
a7 Evroenargeiaki Anonymi Eiaireia Athens 40.0
338 Fiduciana Sanl Andrea S.rl Milan 1000
3138 Finanzberatungsgesellschafl mbH der Deutschen Bank Berlin 100.0
30 Fir (Luxembourg) S.arl Luxembaurg 100.0
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Franz Urbig- und Oscar Schiitter-Stifturg Geselischalt mit beschrankler Frankfurt 100.0
Haflung
FSDB Merchant Services GmbH Frankfurt 49.0
FUNFYE PAXAS Treuhand- und Beleiligungspeselischall mbH Duessealdorf 50.0
funfie SAB Treuhand und Verwaltung GmbH & Co. "Leipzig-Magdeburg” KG Bad Homburg 41.2
Finfie SAB Treuhand und Verwaliung GmbH & Co. Oresden "Louisensirate”  Bad Momburg 0.6
KG
Finfte SAB Treuhand und Verwallung GmbH & Ca. Subl "Rimbachzentrum” Bad Homburg 748
KG
FUNFZEHNTE PAXAS Treyhand- und Beleiligungsgesellschalkt mbi Quesseldort s0Q
C.0. iB-US Management, L.L.C. Wilmington 100.0
G Ischaft fur Kreditsicherung mit beschrankter Hafiung Berlin 367 82 6.2
gixyZ Abwicklungs GmbH i.L. Frankfurt 33.3
Glor Music Produclion GmbH & Co. KG Rottach-Egern 295
GLOR Music Production i GmbH & Co. KG Roltach-Egem 28.6
Greenhean (Luxembourg) 8.4+ . Luxembourg 1000
Grundstircksgesellschafi Frankfurt i Lar e GbR Troisdort 98.7
Grundsticksgesellschaft Karsruhe Kaiserstralie GER Troisdorf 40.1
Gr dcksgesellschali Kerpen-Sindorl Vogelrutherfeld GbR Troisdod 94.0
Geundsliieksgesellschaft Kiin Oppennheimstrate GhR Troisdorf 100.0
Grundsticksgesslschalt Koin-Merheim Winterbarger Stralte GoR Froisdort 418 —
Grundsticksgesellschal Leipzig Petersstrale GbR Trotsdorf 62.1
Grundstich lischaft Mietwohnhéuser Leipzig-Gohlis GbR Troisdor! 25.0
Grundstiicksgesellschaft Minchan Synagogenplatz GbR Troisdorf 26 0
Grundsticksg lischafl Wiesbaden LuisensiraRe/Kirchgasse GbR Troisdorf 7.7
Harvest Fund Management Co., Lid, Shanghai 300 1,067 1 320.3
HR "Simone"” GmbH 8 Co. KG il Jork 243
Huarong Rongde Asset Manggemeni Company Limited Beijing 40.7 692.8 {31.2)
ILV immobitien-Leasing Verwaltungsgesehlschalt Disseldorf mbe Duesseidort 50.0
immobilien-Vermietungsgesellschaft Schumacher GmbH & Co. Objekt Berlin 205
Rolandufer KG i.k. —_—
Immgbilienfonds Buro Center Erfurt am Flughafen Bindersleben I GR Chemnitz 20.7
Immobilienfonds Biro-Center Erfurt am Flughafen Bindersleben | GbR Traisdord 90.0
Immobilenfonds Blroraus Dusseldorf Gralenberg GbR Troisdorf 39.0
Immaobilienfonds Burohaus Dusseidor! Parsevaisiraile GbR Cologre 30.5
Immaobilienfonds Kéin-Deutz Arena und h jung GbR Troisdorf 23.9
immabilienionds K&in-Ossendord | GbR Troisdorf 40.3
Immobilienfonds Wohn- und Geschéfishaus Kdin-Blumenberg V GbR Troisdorf a9 0
ingrid S.ar.). Luxembourg 238
inn Properiies $.a r.l., en failiite Luxembourg 250
imermodat Finance | L. George Town 49.0
Isaac Newton S.A. Capellen 98.2
isar Propenies S.4 71, an faitite Luxembourg 25.0
ISTRON Beteiligungs- und Verwaltungs-GmbH Cologne 106.0
WAF | Manages, S.artl Ludembourg 100.0
1ZI Dusseldor Informations-Zentrum Immaobilien Geselischafl mit beschrénkter  Duesselgorf 29
Haftung LL,
12l Busseldorf Informations-Zenirum Immebilien GmbH & Co. Duesseldorf 229
Kommanditgeselischaft i L. —_
J R Norninegs (Pty) Lid Johannesburg 100.0
Joint Stock Company Deutsche Bank DBU Kiev 100.0 13.2 4.7
Jyogaghima Godg Kaisha Tokyo W00 0.1 12.9
KEBA Gesellschaft fir interne Services mbH Frankfurt 1 100.0
Kidson Ple Lid Singapore 1000 - 179 0.4
Kinneil Leasing Company London 350
KOMPASS 3 Beteiligung flschaft mbH i.L. Duesselcort 500
Konsul Inkassa GmbH Essen 1 o
KVD Singapore Pe. Lid Singapore 258 8317 {230.0}
LA Waler Holdings Limited George Town 750
LAWL Pte Lid Singapore 100.0 258 09
Leasing Verwallungsgesellschalt Waltersdorf mbH Schoenefeld 100.0
Leonarde W Intticl GP Limited London 100.0
Lindseli Finance Limited 51 Julian's 100.0
London Industrial Leasing Limited London 100.0
2755LvBILLC Witrmington 100.0
M Cap Finance Miltelstandsfonds GmbH & Ca. KG Frankfurt 771 184 28
M Cap Finance Mi 1dsfonds tl GmbH & Co. KG Frankiun 357 11.8 0.2
Maher Terminals Heldings (Toronte) Limited Vancouver 100.0 281 2.9
MCT Sudafrika 3 GmbH & Co. KG il Hamburg 38.0
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404 MEF | Manager, 5. & r.l. Munsbach 100.0
405  Metro plus Grundsticks-Vermietungsgesellschallt mbH i L. Duesseldor 40.0
406  MorgenFund GnbH Frankfurl 30.0
407 Motion Piclure Produclions One GmbH & Co. KG Frankfurl 100.0
408 MPP Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH Frankfurt 100.0
409  MT “CAPE BEALE" Tankschifiahrtg GmbH & Co. KG il Hamburg 34.0
410 MT "KING DANIEL" Tankschiflahrts UG (haftungsbeschrankl) & Co. XKG i.L. Hamburg 328
411 MT "KING DOUGLAS" Tankschifiahris UG {haftungsbeschrénkt) & Co. KG 1.LL.  Hamburg 33.0
412 Navegaior - SGFTC. 3.A. Lisbon 100.0
413 NBG Grundstiicks-Vermigtungsgesellschaft mbH L. Duesseldorf 50.0
414 NCW Holding (ne. Vancouver 100.0 .
415 NEUNTE PAXAS Treuhand- und Belgiligungsgeselischalt mbH Duesseldorf 50.0
416 NEUNZEHNTE PAXAS Treuhand- und Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH Duesseidorf 50.0
417 Nexus Infrastruktur Beteigungsg haft mbH Duesseidorf 50.0
418 NOFA Grundsticks-Vermielungsgesellschaft mbH Duesseidorf 50.0
419 nonsbank GmbH Bonn 1 100.0 433.9 040
420  North Coast Wind Energy Corp. Port Moody 50.0
421 Cder Properties 5.2 r.l., en faillite Luxembourg . 25.0
422 QOO0 "Deulsche Bank TechCentrg” Moscow 100.0 26.1 9.1
423 00O "Deutsche Bank” Moscow 100.0 3000 726
424 QPB Verwaltungs- und Treuhand GmbH Cologne 100.0
425  OPB-Oklava GmbH Cologne 100.0
426  OPPENHEIM Buy Dut GmbH & Co. KGi.L. Cologne 27.7
427  QPPENHEIM Capital Agvisory GmbH Cologne 100.0
428 OPPENHEIM PRIVATE EQUITY Verwaltungsgeselischafl mbH Cologne 100.0
429  PADEM Grundstucks-Vermietungsgeselischaft mbH Buesseidod 50.0
430 PADUS Grundstiicks-Vermietungsgeseilschaft mbiH Duesseidorf 100,08
431 PALDO Grundstucks-Vermietungsgesellschaft mioH Duesseidorf 50.0
432 PAXAS Treuhand- ung Beteihgungsgesellschal mbH Duesseidorf 50.0
433 PB Factoring GmbH Bann 1 100.0 326 0.0
434 PB Speaal-invesimentakliengesellschaft mit Teilgesellschaftsvermbgen i.L. Benn 100.0
435  PCC Services GmbH der Deutschen Bank Essen 1 100.0 324 0.0
436 PEIF Il SLP Feeder 2 LP Edinpurgh 100.0
437  PEIF ) SLP Feeder, 5CSp Senningerberg 55.1
438  PENDCIS Grundsiicks-Vermietungsgeselischaft mbH Duesseldorf 50.0
439 PENTUM Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH Duesseldorf 30.0
440  PERGUM Grundsidcks-Vemietungsgesellschaft mbH i.L. Duesseldord 50.0
441 PERILLA Beleiligungsgesellschafl mbH Duesseldod 50.0
442 PERL{T Mobtlien-Vermietungsgeselischaft mbH Duesseidorf 50.0
443 PERLU Grundslicks-Vermietungsgesellschaft mbH Duesseidorf 50.0
444 PERNIO Grundsticks-Vemvelungsgeselischaft mbH Duesseldorf 0.0
445  Peruda Leasing Limitad London 100.0
446  PERXIS Beteiligur lischaft mbH Duesseldorf 50.0
447 PETA Qrundslicks-Vermietungsgeselischaft mbH Duesseldorf 50.0
448 Philipptne Opportunilies for Growth and Income {SPV-AMC), INC. Makali Cily 95.0
449 Plantalion Bay, Inc. St. Thomas 100.0
450 PONTUS Grundsticks-Vermietlungsgeselischaft mbH Duesseldorf 50.0
453 Posibank Betedigungen GmbH Bonn 1 10D.0 7820 0.0
452  Posibank Direkt GmbH Born 1 _100.0 158 0.0
453  Posibank Filialvertrieb AG Bonn 1 100.0 371 0.0
454 Postbank Finanzheralung AG Hameln 1 100.0 85.8 0.0
455  Posibank Immobilien GmbH Hameln 1 1600
456  Postbank Leasing GmbH Born 1 100.0
457 PRADUM Beteiligungsgeseilschaft mbH Duesseldorf 50.0
458  PRASEM Heteitigungsgesellschaft mbH Duesseldart 50.0
459  Presipay 5.p.A. Udine 40.0 231 1.1
460  PRISON Grundsticks-Vermielungsgesellschaft mbH Schoenefeid 50.0
461 Pnvale Equity Invest Beteiligungs GmbH Duesseldorf 50.0
462  Privale Equily Life Sciences Belelfigungsgeselischaft mbH Dyesseldarf 50.0
463  PT Deutsche Sekuritas Indonesia Jakarta 98.0
464 PUDU Grundslucks-Vermielungsgesellschafl mbH Duesseldorf 50.0
465  PURIM Grundstucks-Vermietungsg haft mbH iL. Duesseldorf 50.0
466  QUANTIS Grundslicks-vermietungsgesellschaft mbH Schoenefeld 50.0
467 QUELLUM Grundsticks-Yermietungsgesellschaft mbH i.L. Duesseldort 50.0
468  QUOTAS Grundstiicks-Vermietungsgeselischaft mbH Duesseldorf 50.0
489 REDUS DTHG, LLC Wilmington 49.9
470 Reference Capilat Invesimenls Limited (in members’ voluniary liquidalion) London 100.0
471 Rhine Properties $.a rL., en faillite Luxembourg 25.0
472  Riviera Real Eslate Paris 100.0
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RePro U.S. Halding. Inc. Wilrningion 100.0 253.8 1314
RREEF America LL.C. Wilmingion 100.0 2618 156.3
RREEF China REIT Managemeni Limited (in members” volunlary winding up) _ Hong Kong _ 10¢.0
RREEF DCH, L.L.C. Wilmington 100.0
RREEF European Vatue Added | (G.P.) Limiled London 100.0
RREEF Fund Helding Co. George Town 100.0 65.9 10.1
RREEF India Advisors Private Limited Mumbai 1000
RREEF Managemen( L.L.C. Wiintinglor: 100.0 {27 .4) 10.6
5AB Real Estate Verwaltungs GmbH Hameln 1 100.9
SABIS Grundsticks-Vermi llschaft mbH D |dorf 50.0
SAGITA Grundstijcks-Vermietungsgesellschaft mboH Duesseidorf 100.0
Sal. Dppenheim . & Cie. Beleiligungs GmbH Cologne 100.0 45.8 0.2
SALIX Grundstucks-Vermietungsgeselischaft mbH i.L. Duegseldorf 50.0
SALLS Grundsticks-Vermigtungspeseilschait bt Duesseldorf 50.0
SALUS Grundstiicks-Vermietungsgesellschaft mbH & Co. Objekt Dresden KG  Duesselgorf 58.5
L.
SANCTOR Grundsticks-Vermistungsgesellschaft mbH Duesseldord 50.0
SANDIX Grundsticks-Vermiglungsgesetischafi mpbH Duesseldor 50.0
SANOQ Grundstiicks-Vermietung: llschaft mbH i.L. Ouesseldort 50.0
SAMD Grundaticha Vermiciur Il i mbH Dugetsldort 100 n
SARIO GrundsiUcks-Vermietungsc D) ft mioH D jor! 50.0
SATINA Mobilien-Vermielungsgesellschakt mbH i.L. Duesseidort 50.0
SCANDO Grundsticks-Vermietwngsgesallschaft moH Duesseldorf 50.0
Schumacher Beteiligungsgeselischalt mbH Duesseidort 33.2
SCITOR Grundstiicks-Varmietungsgeselischalt mbH Duesseldor! 50.0
SCITOR Grundstiicks-Vermieturigsgeseilschaft mbH & Co. Objekt Duesseldorf 711
Heiligenstadl KGi.L.
SECHSTE Fondgs-Beleiligungsgesetischan mbH Duesseldori 50.0
SECHSTE PAXAS Treuhand- und Beleiligungsgesellschatt mbH Duesseldorf 50.0
SECHZEHNTE PAXAS Treuhand- und Beleiligungsgesellschaft mbH ] Idor! 50.0
SEGES Grundstiicks-Vermietungsgeselischalt mbH Duesseldorf o 50.0
SEGU Grundsti Vermietungsgeseilschall mbH Duesseldor! 50.0
SELEKTA Grundstucksverwalt lischaft mbH Duesseldorf 50.0
SENA Grundstiicks-Vermietungsgesellschait moH Duesse!dorf 50.0
SENA Grundstir -V iefl, aftmbH & Co. Objekt Xamenz KG Duesseldort 100.0
SERICA Grundstiicks-Vermietungsgesellschaft mbH i.L. Duesseldort 50.0
SIBA Grundsliicks-Vermiglungsgesellschalt mboH ol o 50.0
SIEBTE PAXAS Treuhand- und Beteiligungsgeseiischaft mbH Duesseldorf 50.0
SIEBZEHNTE PAXAS Treuhand- und Beledigungsgesellschaft mbH D i 50.0
SIFA Grungslicks-Vermistungsqeselischaft mbH Duesseldorf 100.0
SILEX Grundstiicks-Vermistungsgesellschafi mbH D \dorf 50.0
SILUR Grundstiicks-Vermietungsgesellschall mbH Duesseldorf 50.0
SOLATOR Grundsiicks-Vermietyngsgeaselischaft mbH Duessetdorf 50 0
SOLIDO Grundsiicks-Yermietungsgesaiischaft mbH 4 Cuesseldort 100.0
SOLON Grundslicks-Vermietungsgesellschall mbH i.L Schoenefeld 50.0
SOLUM Grundstacks-Vermietungsgesellschalt mbH Duesseldorf 50.0
SOMA Grundsticks-Vermietungsgesellschaft mbH Duesseldorf 50.0
Somkid Immbiliare S.r.i Conegliano 100.0
SOREX Grundslucks-Vermielungsgesellschali mbH DQuesseldort 50.0
SOSPITA Grundstiicks-Vermietungsgeseltschaft mioH Duesseldor! 50.0
SPLENDOR Grundsticks-vVermi elischaf mbH L. Schoenefeld 50.0
5PV i 1 Angnima Cerraga Lima 99.9
SPV |l Saciedad Angruma Cerrada Lima 99 8
SR Security Research & Consulting GmbH Bonn 22.5
STAGIRA Grundsiiicks-Vermietungsgesellschaflt mbH Duesselderd 50.0
Starpool Finanz GmbH Berlin 49.9
STATOR Heizkraftwerk Frankiurt (Qder) Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH i.L. Schoenefeld 100.0
Stelvio Immobiliare S.r.i. Bolzano 100 0
SUPERA Grundsticks-Vermietungsgeselischafi mbH Duessetdord 500
SUPLION Beteiigungsgesefischafi mbH Duesseldor 50.0
SUSA Mobilien-Varmielungsgesellschait mboH L. Duesseldord 50.0
SUSIK Grundstucks-Vermietungsgesellschafl mbH 1L Uuesseldort SU.U
Swabia 1. Vermdgensbesitz-GmbH Frankiyrt 100.0
Suddeutsche Vermagensverwaltung Gesellschaft mit beschrankter Haftung Frankfurt 100.0
TABA GrundsiUcks-Vermigiungsgesellschafl mbH Schoeneleld 50.0
TACET Grundslucks-Vermiglung. chaft mbH Duesseldorf 500
TAGC Grundslicks-Vermietungsgesellschaft moH Duesseldort 500
Tagus - Sociedade de Titulanzagio de Creditos. S.A. Liskon 100.0
TAGUS Beatewi g schaft mbH Duesseidost 300

'
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540  TAKIR Grundsticks-Vermictungsgesellschaft mhH Duessetdord 100.0

541 Tech Venture Growth S.C.R., S.A. Madrid 100.0

542 TELO Beleitigungsgesellschall mbH Schoeneield 100.0

543 Tempurrite Leasing Limited London 100.0

544 TESATUR Beteiligungsqgesellschaft mbH Duesseldorf 50.0

545 TESATUR Beteiligur hafi mhH & Co. Objekl Halle | KG 1L, Duasseldort 100.0

546 TESATUR Beteiligungsgeselischaft mbH & Co. Objekt Nordhausen | KGi.l. Duesseldort 100.0

547 Thai Asset Enforcement and Recovery Asset Management Company Limited Bangkok 100.0

248 TIEDO Grundsiiicks-Vermielungsgesellschalt mbH Ouesseldort 50.0

549 TCSSA Grundstucks-Vermietungsgesellschafl mbH Duesseldorf 100.0

550 TRAGO Grundsticks-Vemietungsgesellschafi mbH Duesseldorf 50.0

551 Trave Properties S.ar.l., en failite Luxembourg 25.0

582 TREMA Grundstilcks-Vemietungsgesellschaft mpH Berlin 350.0

553 TRENTQO Grundsticks-Vermielungsgesellschaft mbH Duesseldorf 50.0

554 Treuinvest Service GmbH Frankfurt 100.0

555 TRIPLA Grundstiicks-Vermietungsgesellschaft mbH Duesseldorf 100.0

556 Triplereason Limited Landon 160.0 330.1 0.7
557 Triton Beteiligungs $.4 r.l., en liquidation volontaire Luxembourg 331

5568  TRS Aria LLC Wilminglon 100.0

359  TRS Leda LLC Wilmington 100.0

560  TRS ScompioLLC Wilmington 100.0

561 TRS SVCOLLC Wilmington 100.0

562 TRS VencrLLC Wilmington 100.0

563  TYRAS Beteifigungsgesalischaft mbH i.L, O Idarf 50.0

564  US.AITCF XCiL.P. New York 98.9

£65 VCJ Lease 5.ar.). Luxembourg 100.0

£66  VIERTE Fonds-Beteiligungsgeselschaft mbH Duesseldorf 500

567 VIERTE PAXAS Treuhand- und Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH D ldod 50.0

568  VIERUNDZWANZIGSTE PAXAS Treuhand- und Seteiligungsgesellschaft mbH  Duesseldord 56.0

568  VIERZEHNTE PAXAS Treuhand- und Beteiligungse lischaft mbH Duesseldorf 50.0

370 Volbroker.com Limited Rochfard 225 125 0.9
571 VOB-ZvD Processing GmbH Bonn 11000 2886 0.0
572  WEPLA Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH Frankiurt 100.0 172.9 18.0
573 Weser Properties £.a r.l., en faillite cléturée Luxembourg 25.0

574 5353 WHMR LLC Wilminglon 100.0

575 WIS JV LLC Wilmington 50.0

576 Wood NewCo S arl., en liquidation volontaire Luxembourg 521

577 XELLUM Grundsticks-Vermietungsgesellschaft mibH Duesseldorl 50.0

578 XENTIS Grundsticks-Vermietungsgeseilschaft mbH Ouesseldod 50.0

576  XERA Grundsticks-Vermielungsgesellschali mbH Buesseldor! 50.0

580  ZABATUS Grundsticks-Vermietungsgesellschaft mbH Buesseldorf 50.0

581 ZAKATUR Grundstucks-Vermietungsgesellschaft mbH it Duesseldorf 50.0

582  ZALLUS Beleiligungsgesellschaft mbH i.L. Duesseldor 50.0

583 ZARAT Beteiligungsgeselischaft mbH i.L. o] Idorf 50.0

584  ZARGUS Grundstircks-Vermielungsgesellschall mbH Duesseldorl 50.0

585 ZEA Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH Schoenefeld 25.0

586 ZEHNTE PAXAS Treuhand- und Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH Duesseldorf 50.0

587  zelinvesl-Service GmbH Eschbom 250

588  ZELAS Beteiligung Ischaft mbH i.L. Duesseldorf 50.0

589  ZENO Grundsiicks-Vermietungsgesealischaft mbH Duesseidorf 50.0

3 ZEREVIS Grundstucks-Vermiglungsg raft mbH Duesseldorf 50.0

591 ZERGUM Grundsliicks-Vermietungsgeselischaft mbH L. Ol idorf 50.0

592 Zhong De Securities Co., Lid Beijing 333 164.5 0.2
593  ZIDES Grundsticks-Vermielungsgeselischalt mbH Schoenefeld 50.0

594  ZIMBEL Grundsticks-Vermietungsgesellschaft mbH iL. Schaenefeld 50.0

5956 ZINUS Grundstiicks-Vermietungsgesellschaft mbH iL. Schoenefeld 50.0

596  ZIRAS Grundslicks-Vermialungsgeselischalt mbH Schoenefeld 50.0

587  ZITON Grundstilcks-Vermietungsgesellschaft mbH =] fdorf 50.0

588  ZITUS Grundstucks-Vermietungsgesellschaft moH L. Schoenefeld 50.0

599  2ZONTUM Grundsticks-Vermietungsgesellschaft mbH Duesseldorf 50.0

600  ZORUS Grundslicks-Vermietungsgeselischaft mbH L. D tdorf 50.9

601 ZURET Beteiligungsgeselischaft mbH i.L Duessetdorf 50.0

602  ZWANZIGSTE PAXAS Treuhand- und Beleiligungsgesellschaft mbH Quesseldorf 50.0

603 ZWEITE Fonds-Beleiligung lischaft mbH Duesseldor! 50.0

604 ZWEITE PAXAS Treuhand- und Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH Duesseidort 50.0

605 ZWEWNDZWANZIGSTE PAXAS Treuhand- und Beteligungsgesellschaft mbH Duesseidorf 50.0

il
606  ZWOLFTE PAXAS Treuhang- und Beteiligungsgesellschati mbH Ouesseldorf 50.0
607 ZYLUM Beleiligungsgesellschafl mbiH Schoenefeld 25.0
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Share
of [= 0] Rasult
Serial Domicile Fool-  Capilal funds in in€
No. Name of company of company note in % € milkan miltion
608 2YRUS Beleiligungsgesellschaft mbH Schoeneleld 250
Holdings in large corperations, where the holding exceeds 5% of vating rights
Share
of Cnems Reswlt
Serial Fool-  capilal tunds in ing
No. Name of company Domicite of note in % € million million
609 A.C.N. 603 303 126 Piy Lid Melbourne 18.5
6810 ABRAAJ Holdings (in offtcial fiquidation) Camana Bay 8.8
611 BURGSCHAF TSBANK BRANDENBURG GmbH Palsdam 8.5
512 Burgschahsbank Hamburg GmbH Hamburg 8.7
613 Birgschaktshank Mecklenburg-Varpommern GmbH Schwerin 8.4
614 Biurgschafisbank Sachsen GmbH Dresden 63
B15 Birgschafisbank Sachsen-Anhalt GmbH Magdeburg B2
816 Burgschaftsbank Schieswig-Holstein Geseitschaft mit beschrinkler Haflung Kiel 56
817 Birgscl k Thiringen GmbH Erfunt B.7
518 MTS Sp.A. Reme 5.0
819 Prader Bank S p A Balzano 9.0
620 Privale Export Funding Corporatian Wilmington 6.0
621 Saarlandische Investiionskreditbank Aktiengesellschaft Saarbruecken 11.8
622 Yensai.com Co., Lid. Tokyo 7.8
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Other information

Declaration of backing

Other informatian
Declaratian of backing

Deutsche Bank AG ensures, except in the case of political risk, that the following subsidiaries are able to meet thewr

contractual liabilites:

D B Investments {GB) Limited, London

OB International (Asia) Limited, Singapore
Deutsche Australia Limited, Sydney

DEUTSCHE BANK A.S., Istanbul

Deutsche Bank Americas Holding Corp., Wilmington
Deutsche Bank (China) Co., Lid., Beijing

Deutsche Bank Europe GmbH, Frankfurt am Main

Deutsche Bank Luxembourg S.A., Luxembourg
Ceutsche Bank (Malaysia} Berhad, Kuala Lumpur
Ceutsche Bank Polska Spdlka Akcyjna, Warsaw
Beutsche Bank S5.A. — Banco Alemao, Sdo Paulo
Deutsche Bank, Sociedad Andnima Espanola, Madrid
Deutsche Bank Societa per Azwoni, Milan

Deutsche Bank (Suisse) SA, Geneva

Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, New York
Deutsche Holdings (Grand Duchy), Luxembourg
Deutsche Immobilien Leasing GmbH, Dusseldorf
Deutsche Morgan Grenfell Group Limited, London
Deutsche Securities inc., Tokyo

Deutsche Securities Asia Limited, Hong Kong

Deutsche Securities Saudi Arabia (a ciosed joint stock
campany), Rivadh

norisbank GmbH, Bann

Joint Stock Company Deutsche Bank DBU, Kiev

’ QOO "Deutsche Bank”, Moscow

Deutsche Opeenheim Family Office AG. Cologne
BHW Bausparkasse Akliengesellschaft, Hameln

PB Factoring GmbH, Bonn
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Disclosures according to section 28 of the Pfandbrief Act

Disclosures according o seclion 28 of the Pfandbrief Act

The foliowing tables show the disclosures required by Section 28 of the Pfandbrief Act. These disclosures contain information
10 Mortgage Pfandbriefe which Deutsche Bank AG held as per December 31, 2022.

Overall exposure (section 28 (1) nc. 1 Pfandbrief Act)

Martgage Pfandbriefe

Dec 31, 2022

Presem Value -

Prasant Valua - Present Value - Worsl Case

High Interest Low Inleresi Interesi and FX

Rale Siress Rale Stress Rate Siress

#n€m, Nominal Value Presenl Valua Seenario $cenano Scenarip
Mortgage Pfandonele 13.038.0 12,199 2 110294 13.674.2 11.029.4
Cover Assets 16.192.8 14.550.3 12.637.9 17.023.8 12.637.9
Cover Assels acc. to section 12 (1) 15,530.3 14,038.7 12,2154 16,399.4 12,2154
Cover Assels acc. to section 19 (1) No. 1 0 0 Q Q o]
Cover Asseis acc. to section 19 (1) No. 2! 0 0 0 0 Q
as % of Morigage Pfandbriefe 0 ) 0 0 0
Cover Assels acc. lo section 19 (1) No. 32 662.5 511.5 4226 6294 4226
as % ot Morigage Ptandbnele 5.1 4.2 44 45 £
Cover Assels acc. to section 19 (1) Ne. 4 {Claims) 1] o 0 0 0
as % of Total Covar Assels 0 0 ] g [+]
Cover Assets acc. to seclion 19 (1) No. 4 (Liabilities) Q 0 0 0 [
as % of Mortgage Plandbriefe 0 Q 0 0 )
Over-C izaticn 3.154.8 2.351.% 1.608.5 33496 1.608.5
as % of Mortgage Pfandbriele 24.2 193 146 245 146

According ko section 5 (1) No, 1 and section 6 {2) No. t PfandBarwerlV static approach
' Excluding Cover Assels accord:ng to seclion 4 |1) sentence 2 No t and Na 2 PiandBG

T Including Cover Assels accurdlﬂq to section 1% (1} No. 2 PlandBG and i ing Cover Assels ing (o section 4 (1) sentence 2 No, 1 and No. 2 Pfand8G
Dec 31, 2021
Present Vaiue -
Presem Vatue - Present Valye - Worst Case
High Interast Law Interest Interest and FX
Rate Stress Rale Siress Rate Suess
in€m. Nominal Value Present Value Scenang Scenario Scenaria
Mortgage Pfandbriefe i3,112.0 13,853 6 12,7496 15.629.4 12,7496
Cover Assels 15,709.4 17.631.5 150495 21,0532 15,056.5
Cover Assels acc. Lo section 12 (1} 15,111.9 170317 14,555 8 20,302 9 14,5628
Cover Assets acc. to section 19 {1) Ne. 1 1] 0 0 0 O
Cover Assels acc. ic section 19 (1) No. 2! 0 0 1] 0 a
as % ol Morigage Pfandbriele 0 Q 0 Q 0
Cover Assets acc. to section 19 {1) No, 37 597.5 599 8 493 7 750.3 493.7
as % of Mortgage Plaridbriefe 4.6 43 349 4.8 39
Cower Assets acc. lo section 19 {1) No. 4 {Claims} 0 o o Q 0
as % of Tota! Cover Assels 0 0 a 0 0
Cover Assets acc. 1o section 19 (1) No. 4 (Liabilities) Q 4] 0 a 0
as % of Mortgage Pfandbnefe 0 0 0 0 0
Over-Collateralization 2,587.4 3777.9 2,285.9 5,423.8 2,306.9
as % of Morigage Plangpriele 198 273 180 4.7 18.1

Accarding to seclion $ {1) Mo_ 1 and section 6(2) No 1 PfandBarwertV stalic approach
' Excuding Cover Assels according lo section 4 (1) sentence Z No, 1 and No. 2 Pfand8G

* Including Cover Assets according to seclisn 19 {1) Na. 2 PlandBG and i ing Cover Asseis

g to section 4 (1) sentence ? No. 3 and No, 2 PlandBG

All cover assets are reéceivables from customers which are secured by mortgages and further cover assets are bonds and

other fixed income securities as per Pfandbrief Act.
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Public-Sector Pfandbriefe

Disclosures according to section 28 of the Plandbrief Act

Riskadjusted Riskadjusted

Neminat Nominat Net present Nel presen| nel prasent nel presem

vate value value value' value® value?

in€ Dec 31, 2022 DOec 31. 2021 Dec 31, 2022 Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2022 Dec 31, 2021
Cover assets’ 142.8 131.0 125.1 1333 102.5 136.6
Of which derivatives [i] 1] <] 1) 4] o
Public-sector Piandbriefe 50.0 90.0 93.5 112 5 73.5 119.1
Over-collateralization (%) 58.7 45.6 138 185 395 14.7

* Prior year's comparatives akgned i0 Prasenthunn in ing cunenl yes
2 Dynamic method
' Inctuding further cover assels according 1o section 20 {2) PlandBG

Maturity profile (section 28 (1) no. 2 Pfandbrief Act)

Maturity Structure of the Mortgage and Fixed Interest Periods of the Cover Assets.

Mortgage Pfandbriefe

Maturity profile

Maturily structure of
outsianding Plandbnele

Fixed rala lermns lor cover poal

m€m. Dec 31, 2022 Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2022 Oec 31, 2021
less than 6 months 533.0 555.0 526.0 562.8
from 6 to 12 months 160.0 0 509.8 307.2
from 12 10 18 months 1,184.5 533.0 535.6 361.6
from 18 months to 2 years 55.0 160.0 S04.9 548.0
from 2 to 3 years 1,207.0 2.264.5 864 .4 1,106.6
from 3 to 4 years 1631.0 1.207.0 780.2 9557
from 4 to 5 years 2683.0 2.656.0 1,031.9 9221
from 5 to 10 years 3,552.0 4534.0 6,112.3 5.962.8
mare than 10 years 2,022.5 1,102.5 5,325.6 4,982.5
Taotal 13,033.0 13,112.0 16,192.7 15,709.4
Maturity Structure of the Public-Sector Pfandonefe and Fixed Interest Periods of the Cover Assets.
Public-Sector Pfandbriefe

Publie-seclor Pimiic-secior
Maturily profile Cover asseis Cover assetst Plandbriele Pfandbrefe
in€ Dec 3%, 2022 Dec 31, 2021 Dac 11, 2022 Dec 35, 2021
less than & months 0 30.0 0 0
from 6 to 12 months 0 25.0 Q 0
from 12 1o 18 menths 0 Q 0 0
from 18 months (o 2 years 7.0 0 ] 0
from 2 {o 3 years 58.5 37.0 50.0 0
from 3 1o 4 years 0 33.5 0 30.0
from 4 to 5 years 1.3 a 0 0
trom S to 10 years 46.0 "] 400 25.0
more than 10 years 0 55 0 15.0
Total 142.8 131.0 50.0 30.0

! ncluding further cover asseds accanding 10 sacuon 20 {2) PlandBG

Portion of derivatives included in the cover pool (section 28 (1) no. 3 Pfandbrief

Act)

As of December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, there were no derivalives in the cover pool

Cover assets by nominal value (section 28 (2} no. 1a Pfandbrief Act)

Single cover assets included in the total amount of € 15.5 bilkon {2021: € 15.1 billion) with a nominal value of tess than € 0.3
million amounted to € 12.4 billion (2021: € 12.1 tillion}, with a nominal value between € 0.3 million and € 1 miflion amounted
to € 2.4 billion (2021: € 2.2 bithon), with a nominal value between € 1 million and € 10 million amounted to € 748 million (2021:
€ 796 million) and with a nominal value of more than € 10 million amounted to € 0 million (2021: € O million}.
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Additional cover of Pfandbriefe (nominal value) by country / registered office

(section 28 Abs. 1 Nr. 4 und Nr. 5 Pfandbrief Act)

As of December 31, 2022 and Decernber 31, 2021, there were no additions! cover of Plandbriefe.

Loans used as cover for mortgage Pfandbriefe by country in which mortgaged re-
ai estate is based and by type of use {section 28 {2) no. 1b and 1c Pfandbrief Act)

Mortgage Plandbriefe

Oec 31, 2022 Residengal Comrercal
Other
cam- Land
Single Muki- mercially held
Aparl- Family famity Office Ragtait  industrial used for
in&m. ments Houses Hausas Qiher Tolal Budings Buddings  buildings  buikings Todad euilding. Total
Gemany 2.108.1 87189 2.684.3 0 14,5124 52740 150.3 144.2 196.4 10179 0 155303
United
Kingdom 0 0 c 0 [} 0 0 [4] 0 0 0 0
Swilzertand 0 0 1] 0 a 0 0 q 0 0 1] 0
France 9 0 0 ] [ o 4 0 a 0 1] [¢]
Relogmam 0 o o ) o Q 0 Q 0 Q Q 0
Netherands '] o 0 0 0 0 0 Q 0 0 0 Y]
Tatal 3.10841 87189 26853 0 125124 5270 150.3 1442 196 .4 10178 0 155303
Qec 31, 2021 Rasidential Commarciat
Owner
com- Land
Single Multi- mercially hetet
Apart- Family family Ditice Relail tndustnal used fer
in€m, ments Houses Houses Other Tatal building: it ilding buiidings Total building Tolal
Germany 28438 83225 28216 0 139878 8652 1723 1824 224 4 1,1241 G 151119
United
Kingdom o Q o 0 0 [} 0 ] a o 0 0
Swizerand 0 a Q 0 o] 0 Q 0 1] 1] 0 Y
France 0 0 Q 0 o Q Q <] 0 a Q ]
Betgium 4] ] 0 0 Q [y 0 4] 0 ] 0 0
Nethertands Q [ ] Q a [ [ G Q O a ]
Total 28436 83225 28218 0 139878 565.2 1723 162.1 224 4 1,124.1 0 151119

Payments cutstanding on mortgage loans used as cover for mortgage Pfand-

briefe (section 28 (2) no. 2 Pfandbrief Act)

As of December 31, 2022 and as of December 31, 2021 there were no payments 90 days ar more past due on maortgage

loans used as cover for Mortgage Pfandbriefe.

Additional information on mortgage loans (section 28 (2) no. 4 Pfandbrief Act)

Al year end 2022 and 2021 there were no foreclosures pending. in 2022 and 2021 no foreciosures were performed and
Deutsche Bank AG did not take over properties to prevent losses on the mortgages. Furthermore, there were no arrears on

interest payable by the morigagors.
Fixed interest share comparison (section 28 (1) no 9 Pfandbrief Act)

Martgage Pfandbriefe

Nominal Value

in&m,

{it not s1aled otherwise} Oec 31, 2022 Dec 31 2021
Fized interest Morigage Pfandbriefe 10.807 7.862
As % of Mengage Plandbnefe a3 80
Fixed interes| Cover Assets 16.092 15,597
As % ot Total Cover Assels 99 99
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Net present value per currency (section 28 (1) no. 10 Pfandbrief Act)

As of December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, there were no foreign currencies mortgage loans used as cover for

Morigage Pfandbriefe.

Additional characteristic factors {section 28 {1} no. 7, section 28 (1) no. 11, sec-

tion 28 (2) no. 3 Pfandbrief Act)

'{t:h’:'_.s siated olfvorwise) Dec 31. 2022 Dec 31,2021
Average Loan-to-Value Ratio weighled using the Morigage Lending Value (in %) 54 54
Volume-weighted Average in Years of the Maturity

Ihat has passed since the Mortgage Loan was granied® 5 5
Total Claims exceeding the Limits of section 13 (1) PfandBG (Counlries without preferential righty? o] 0

' According to section 28 (2} No. 3 Plandbrief Acl
? Acoording o section 28 (1) No. 11 Plandbsief Act
3 According to section 28 (1) Ne. 7 Plandbriet Act

Receivables applied to cover public-sector Pfandbriefe issued, categorized by size

{nominal value) (section 28 Abs. 3 Nr. 1 Pfandbrief Act)

in€m, Cec 31, 2022 Dac 31. 2021
up and incleding € 10 million 0.0 0.0
€ 10 milhon to € 100 million 125.50 125.50
maore than € 100 million 0.0 0.0
Total 125.50 125.50

Receivables applied to cover public-sector Pfandbriefe issued (nominal value). by
type of debtor respectively guaranteeing body and its registered office (country)

(Section 28 (3} no. 2 Pfandbrief Act)

Dec 31, 2022 Oee 31, 202t
in€m, awed guaranieed owed Quaranteed
Germany
Country 0 0 0 0
Regional authorities 37.0 0 820 0
Local autharities 0 0 0 0
Other debtors. 0 0 0 0
Taotal for Germany ar.o 1] 92.0 0
Guaranteed resp. guaranees granted for reasons of exgorn promaltion 4] 3} 4] 0
EU institutions
Counltry 1] 0 o] 0
Regicnal authorities 0 0 0 0
Local authorities ] 0 0 0
Qiher debtors a 0 0 0
Total for EU institutions 0 0 0 0
Guaranleed resp guarantees granted for reasons of export promotion o 0 0 0
Netherjands
Counitry 88.5 0 335 0
Regional authorities a o] o] 0
Local authorities 0 0 0 0
Other debtors 0 0 0 0
Total for the Netherlands 88.5 0 335 0
Guaranteed resp. guarantees granted for reasons of export promaolion 0 Q 0 1}
Total for owed / guaranteed 0 I 0 ]
Total 125.5 0 125.5 [\
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Characteristics of outstanding public-sector Pfandbriefe issued and cover assets
applied (Section 28 (1) no. 9 to no. 10 Pfandbrief Act)

in €m. Dec 31, 2022 Bec 31, 2021
Fixed interest share compansan acc. to section 28 {1) no, § PfandBG

Fixed interest public-sector Pfandbriafe (in %) +00.00 100.00
Fixed interest cover assels {in %) ‘ 100.00 100.00

Net present value acc. lo section & of the Plandbriel- Barweriverordnung by foreign currencies (€ m)

(section 28 (1) no_ 10 PfandBG) 28.00 17.50

Information pursuant to section 160 (1) number 8 AktG

As of December 31, 2022, Deutsche Bank was aware of the following shareholders who reported a share of at least 3% in the
voling rights each pursuant to Section 33 of the German Securities Trading Act (Wertpapierhandelsgesetz):

BlackRock, Inc.. Wilminglon, DE, has notified Deutsche Bank that as of December 31, 2020 il held 5.23% of our shares.
Deutsche Bank has received no further notification by BlackRock, Inc., Wilmington, DE, through December 31, 2022.

Dougias L. Braunstein (Hudson Executive Capital LP), has notified Deulsche Bank that as of November 20, 2020 he held
3.18% of our shares. Dewlsche Bank has received no further nolification by Douglas L. Braunstein (Hudson Executive Capital
L P}, through December 31, 2022.

Amundi S A, France, has notified Deutsche Bank that as of October 19, 2022 it held 3.07% of cur shares. Deutsche Bank
has received no further notification by Amundi S.A.. France, through December 31, 2022.

Paramount Services Holdings Lid., Brilish Virgin Islands, has notified Deulsche Bank that as of August 20, 2015 it held 3.05%
of our shares. Deutsche Bank has received no further notification by Paramount Services Holdings Ltd., British Virgin islands,
through December 31, 2022.

Supreme Universal Holdings Ltd., Cayman Islands, has natified Deutsche Bank that as of August 20, 2015 it held 3 05% of
our shares. Deutsche Bank has received no further notification by Supreme Universal Holdings L1d., Cayman Isiands, through
December 31, 2022.

Management Board and Supervisory Board

The members of the Management Beard collectively received in the 2022 financial year a total compensation of € 52,870,209
(2021: € 49,984 668). The number of share awards granted to the members of the Management Board for the 2022 financial
year was 1,765,280 shares. The cormesponding vaiue, based on the relevant share price of € 11.80 per share, totaled €
20,830,415, Former members of the Management Board of Deulsche Bank AG or their surviving dependents received €
22,974,014 and € 38,737,800 for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Provisions for pension abligations to former members of the Management Board and their surviving dependents amounted to
€ 187,137,298 and € 173,184,590 at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respeclively

The compensatian principles far Supervisary Board members are sel forth in the bank’s Articles of Association. The members
of the Supervisory Board receive fixed annual compensation. The annual base compensation amounts to € 100,000 for each
Supervisory Board member. The Supervisory Board Chairman receives twice that amount and the Deputy Chairpersan one
and a half times that amount. Members and chairs of the committees of the Supervisory Beard are paid additiona! fixed annual
compensation. 75% of the compensation determined is disbursed to each Supervisory Board member after submitting invoices
within the first three month of the following year. The other 25% is converted by the company at the same time inte company
shares {notional shares) according to the provisions of the Articles of Association. The share value of this number of shares
is paid to the respective Supervisory Board member in February of the year folipwing his departure from the Supervisory Board
or the expiration of his term of office according to the provisions of the Articles of Association, provided that the member does
not leave the Supervisory Board due to important cause which would have justified dismissal. In case of a8 change in
Supervisary Board membership during the year, compensation for the financial year will be paid on 3 pro rata basis, rounded
up/down to fult months. For the year of departure, the entire compensation is paid in cash; a forfeiture regulation applies to
25% of the compensation for that financial year. The members of the Supervisory Board received for the financial year 2022
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a total remuneration of € 6,833,333 (2021: € 6,520,833). of which € 5,260,417 will be paid out in 1% quarter 2023 (1% quarter
2022: € 4,965,625) according to the provisicns of the Articles of Association.

Loans and advances granted, and contingent liabilities assumed for members of the Management Board amounted to €
4,514 404 and € 6,476,340 and for members of the Supervisory Board of Deutsche Bank AG 1o € 939,889 and € 1,559,179
for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Members of the Supervisory Board repaid € 93,153 loans in
2022.

The members of the Management Board and the Supervisory Board are listed on pages 46 o 47.

Employees

The average number of fuli-time equivalen! staff employed during the reporting year was 35,325 (2021: 35,848), 15,002 of
whom were women (2021: 15,369). Part-time employees are included proportionately in these figures based on their working
hours. An average of 13,108 (2021: 13,736) staff members worked at branches oulside Germany.

Corporate governance

The Management Board and Supervisory Board of Deutsche Bank AG in QOctober 2022 issued the declaration of conformity
with the German Corporate Governance Code pursuant to section 161 of the Stock Corporation Act (AktG) and made it
permanently accessible on its website (www.db.comfir/fen/documents.htm).

The Managing Direclors of the General Partner and the Supervisory Board of DWS Group GmbH & Co. KGaA also issued
their declaration of conformity with the German Corporate Governance Code pursuant to section 181 of the Stock Corporation
Act {Akt) and made it permanently accessible on its Internet website (bttps:/igroup.dws.com/corporale-
governance/declaration-of-conformity-pursuant-to-ss 1 61-german-stock-corporation-act-aktg/).”

Additional services rendered by the auditor

Deutsche Bank AG and its subsidiaries have received certain audit-related and tax-related services by Deutsche Bank AG's
auditor of the annual financial statements, Emst & Young GmbH Wirtschaftsprofungsgesellschaft ("EY").

The Audit fees include fees for professional services for the audit of our annual financial statements and consolidated financiat
statements and do not include the audit fees for DWS and its subsidiaries that are not audited by EY, The Audit-related fees
include fees for other assurance services required py law or regulations, in particular for financial service specific attestation,
far quarterly reviews, as well as fees for voluntary assurance services, like voluntary audits for internal management purposes
and the issuance of comfort letters. Our Tax-related fees include fees for services relating to the preparation and review of tax
returns and related compliance assistance and advice, tax consultation and advice relating to Greup tax planning strategies
and initialives and assistance with assessing compliance with tax regulations.

For information on the fees paid to Deutsche Bank AG's auditor please refer to the Group's Annual Report.

Events after the reporting period

Having fulfilled its de-risking and cost reduction mandate from 2019 through end 2022, the Capital Release Unit will cease to
be reported as a separate segment with effect from the first quarter of 2023. lis remaining portfolio, resources and employees
will be reported within the Corporate & Other segment. In line with that change, the Core Bank, which represents the Group
excluding the Capital Release Unit, will cease (o be reported as well, and from the first quarter of 2023 the Group will consist
of the segments Corporate Bank, Investment Bank, Private Bank, Asset Management and Corporate & Other.

The Group will implement additionai Driver-Based Cost Management allocations from the first quarter of 2023. The new
methodology aims to provide greater transparency over the drivers of infrastructure costs and links costs more closely to
servige consumptlion. While the Group's costingome ratio and return on tangible equily metrics will be unaffected by the
change in internal allocations, the respective divisional metrics will change going forward.
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Management bodies

Management Board

In the year 2022 the following members belonged
to the Management Board:

Christian Sewing
Chief Executive Officer

James van Moitke
President (since March 25, 2022)

Karl von Rohr
President

Fabrizio Campelfi
Bernd Leukert

Stuart Lewis
{until May 19, 2022)

Alexander von zur Mihlen
Christiana Riley

Rebecca Short

Prof. Dr. Stefan Simon

Olivier Vigneron
(since May 20, 2022)
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Supervisory Board

In the year 2022 the fellowing members belonged to the Supervisory Board.
in addition, the place of residence of the memhers of the Supervisory Board is specified.

Alexander Wynaendts
— Chairman

(since May 19, 2022)
Ommen

Netherlands

Dr, Paul Achleitner

- Chairman

(untit May 19, 2022)
Munich

Germany

Cetief Polaschek”
— Deputy Chairman
Essen

Germany

Prafessor Dr. Norbert Winkefohann

— Deputy Chairman
(since July 20, 2022)
Osnabrick
Garmany

Ludwig Blomeyer-Bartenstein*®

Bremen
Germany

Mayree Clark
New Canaan
Usa

Jan Duscheck”
Berlin
Germany

Manija Eifert

(since April 7, 2022}
Berlin

Germany

Dr. Gerhard Eschelbeck
(until May 19, 2022)
Cupertino

USA

Sigmar Gabriel
Goslar
Germany

Tirno Heider*
Emmaerthal
Germany

Martina Klee*
Frankfurt am Main
Germany

Gabiiele Platscher”
Braunschweig
Germany

Bernd Rose™
Menden
Germany

Yngve Slyngstad
{since May 19, 2022)
Cslo

Norge

John Alexander Thain
Rye
usa

Michele Trogni
Riverside
Usa

Dr. Dagmar Valcarcel
Madrid
Spain

Stefan Vierte!*
Kelkheim im Taunusl
Germany

Dr. Theodor Weimer
Wiesbaden
Germany

Frank Wermeke”
Berlin
Germany

Frank Witter
Braunschweig
Germany

Henrieite Mark*

until March 31, 2022
Munich

Germany

‘Employees’ representatives
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Committees

Chairman's Commiltee
Alexander Wynaendts, Chairrnan {since May 19, 2022), Dr. Paul Achieitrer, Chairman (until May 19, 2022)
Detlef Polaschek®, Frank Werneke®, Professor Dr. Norbert Winkeljohann

Nomination Committee

Alexander Wynaendts, Chairman (since July 28, 2022), member {since May 19, 2022 till July 28, 2022), Mayree Clark,
Chairperson {until July 28, 2022), member (since July 28, 2022)

Dr. Paul Achleitner {until May 19, 2022), Detlef Polaschek*, Frank Werneke*, Professor Or. Narbert Winkeljohann,

Audit Committeg

Frank Witter, Chairman (since July 28, 2022), member (until July 28, 2022), Professor Dr. Norbert Winkeljohann, Chairman
{until July 28, 2022}, mamber (since July 28, 2022

Dr, Paul Achleitner (untit May 19, 2022), Manja Eifert (since July 28, 2022}, Henriette Mark* (until March 31, 2022), Gabriele
Platscher®, Detlef Polaschek* Bernd Rose”, Dr. Dagmar Valcarcel. Stefan Viertel- Dr. Theodor Weimer, . Alexander
Wynaendis (sinoe Moy 10, 2022)

Risk Commiltee

Mayree Clark, Chairperson

Dr. Paul Achleitner (until May 19, 2022), Ludwig Blameyer-Bartenstein®, Jan Duscheck®, Michgle Trogni. Stefan Vienel®,
Prafessor Dr, Norbert Winkefjohann, Alexander Wynaendls (since May 19, 2022)

Regulatory Oversight Committee (since July 28, 2022) (formerfy Integrity Committee}

Dr. Dagmar Valcarcet, Chairperson ’

Dr. Paul Achleitner (uniil May 19, 2022). Ludwig Blomeyer-Barntenstein®, Sigmar Gabriel, Timo Heider*. Gabriele Platscher®,
Alexander Wynaendts {since May 19, 2022)

Compensation Control Committee

Professor Dr. Norbert Winkeljohann, Chairman (since July 28, 2022), Alexander Wynaendts, Chairman (since May 19, 2022
Uit Juiy 28, 2022}, member {since July 28, 2022}, Or. Paul Achleitner, Chairman (untit May 19, 2022)

Dr. Gerhard Eschelbeck (until May 19, 2022), Dellef Polaschek’, Bernd Rose”, Dr. Dagmar Valcarcel. Frank Werneke®,

Strategy and Sustainabitity Committee (since December 15, 2022) (formerly Strategy Committee)

John Alexander Thain, Chairman

Dr. Paul Achleitner (until May 18, 2022), Mayree Clark, Timo Heider® Henrielte Mark® (until March 31, 2022), Detlef
Polaschek*, Michele Trogni, Stefan Viertel” (since July 28, 2022), Frank Werneke®, Alexander Wynaendts (since May 18,
2022)

Technalogy, Data and Innovation Committee

Michele Trogni, Chairperson

Or. Paui Achleitner (until May 12 2022), Jan Duscheck®, Dr. Gerhard Eschelbeck (until May 19, 2022, Timo Heider*. {until
July 28, 2022), Martina Klee*, Bemd Rose*, Yngve Slyngstad {since July 28, 2022), Frank Witter (until July 2B, 2022
Alexander Wynaendls (since May 19, 2022)

Mediation Commitiee
Alexander Wynaendts, Chairman {since May 18, 2022, Or. Paul Achileitner. Chafrman {until May 19, 2022)
Detlef Polaschek®, Frank Werneke*, Professor Dr. Nerbent Winkeljohann

*Employees’ represenialives

48



Deutsche Bank

Anaual Financial Statermens

of Deulsche Bank AG

List of mandates

Supecvisacy Board

List of mandates

Supervisory Board

Mandates according to section 285 No. 10 German Commercial Code (HGB) in
conjunction with section 125 (1} sentence 5 Stock Corporation Act (AktG)

Memberships in statutory supervisory boards of German corparations and in comparable supervisory bodies of German and
forgign business enterprises. Changes in memberships during the year are noted with the date of joining andior leaving.

Ag of: February 2023

Far Supervisory Board members wha left eadier, the mandates are shown as of the date they left. For new Supervisory Board
members, the mandates shown are 53 of the date they joined.

embess of the Superwscry Boasd

Mandale-Holder

Posiion

D+, Paul Achleiiner
{until May 19, 2022)

Chairman of the Supervisory Board.

Deuische Bank AG

Company Mandate
External mandates
Bayer AG Member of the Supervisory Board

Alexandec Wynaendis
{since May 19, 2022)

Chaitman of the Supervisary Board,

Deulsche Bank AG

External mandales

Air France-KLW Group 5.A.

Memer of the Board of Directors

Puissance Hoiding B.V.

Non-Executive Director, Chairman

Uber Teehnglogies, ng.

Member o the Board of Directacs

Ludwig Blomeyer-Barnensien

Spokesperson of the Management

Bremen, Dautsche Bank AG

External mandates

Biivyschaftsbank Bremen GmbH

Member of the Board of Directors
(unil December 2¢22)

Frowein & Co. Beteifgungs AG

Member of the Supervisory Board

Mayree Clark

Supenisory Board member

External mandates

Ally Financial, Ing.

Member of the Board of Direclors

Alivuz Systems Holdings, Inc.

Member of the Board of Directors

Jan Duscheck

Manja Eifert
{since Apiil 7, 2032}

Head of Mational Working Group
Banking, trade union ver.di

{vereinie Dienstigistungsgewerkschaft)

No memberships or direcinrships
subject to disclosure

Staff Cauncil member

No memberships or directorships
subject to disclosure

Or. Gerhard Eschelbeck
(until May 19, 2022)

Chuet information Security Officer,
Adurora nnovation, tnc.

External mandates

Onapsis Inc

Member of the Board of Direciors

WoolCloud Ine

Member or Ihe Bogrd of Directors

Sigmar Gabriel

Former German Federa! Government

Minisiar

Exlernal mandates

GP Ginter Papenburg AG

Mermber of the Supervisory Board
{untd April 2022}

Siemens Energy AG

Mermber of the Supervisory Board

ThyssenKrupp Steel Euroge AG

Chairman of the Supervisary Board
(since April 2022}

Timo Heiger

Siaft Counoit membper

Mangales in the Group

BMW Bausparkasse AG

Cepuly Chairman of the Supervisory Board

PCC Services GmbH der Deulschen

Bank

Depuly Chawman of the Supervisory Board

Pensionskasse der BHW
Bausparkasse AG VWaG

Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Martina Klee

S18ff Council member

External mandates

Sterbekasse fir die Angestellten der

Deuische Bank-Gruppe VVaG

Member of the Supervisory Board

Henneite Mark
{untii March 31, 2022)

Stafi Councit member

No memberships or direclorships
subject 0 disclosure

Gabrigle Platscher

Bank Employee

External mandates

BYY Pensionsfonds des
Bankgewerbes AG

BVV Versicherungsverein des
Bankgewerbes a.G.

BVV Versargungskasse des
Bankgewerbgs e V.

Deputy Chairperson of the
Supervisory Board {until July 2022)
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Mambers of the Supervisory Board

Ligt of mandates

Supervisory Board

Mandale-Halder

Position

Detlef Polasthek

Deputy Chairman of the Supervisary

Beard, Stafl Council member

Company

Mandate

Nao membershigs of direclorships

subject to disclosures

Bemnd Rose

Siaff Councii member

External mandates

ver.di Vermogensverwaitungs-
gesellschaft m.b.H.

Geguty Chairman of the Supervisory
Board -

Mandates in the Group

Postbank Filialvertrieb AG

Member of the Supervisory Board

Yngve Slyngstad
(since May 19, 2022)

Chief Executive Officer, Aker Assel
Management AS

No memberships or directorships
subject o disclosure

John Alexander Thain

Supervisory Soard member

External mandates

Apenure Investars LLC

Mernber of the Board of Direstors

Pine Island Acgquisition Corp.

Chaimman of the Board of Directors
{unti) Qctaber 2022)

Fine Island Capilal Pariners LLC

Chairman

Uber Technologies, Inc.

Member of the Board of Directors

Michele Trogm

QOperating Partner, Eldridge

External mandates

Zinnia Corporate Maldings LLC (formerly
SE2 LLC)

Chiefl Executive Qfficer (since May 2022)
ang Chairperson of the Board of Direclers

Dr Dagmar Valcarcel

Supervisory Board member

External mangates

amedes Holding GmbH

Member of the Supervisary Board

Antin Infrasiructure Partners $.A,

Member of the Soarg of Directors

Siefan Viertel

Staff Council membar

No memberships or directorships
subject to disclosure

Or. Thecdor Weimer

Chief Executive Officer,
Deutsche Bivse AG

External

Knorr Bremse AG

Member of the Supenvisory Board

Frank Werneke

Chairman of the trade union ver di
(Verewnte Oienstleisiungsgewerkschafl)

External mandates

Television Councit of the Zweites
Deutsches Fernsehen (ZDF)

Member

ver.di Vermigensverwaltungsgesell-
schaft m.b.H

Member of the Supervisory Board

ZDF Swdios GmbH (formerty ZOF
Enterprises GmbH)

tember of the Supervisory Board

Professor Dr. Norben
Winkeljahann

Deputly Charman of the Supervisory
Board of Deutsche Bank AG (snce
July 2022); Sell-employed Corporate
Consullant Norbent Winkeliohann
Advisory & Investments

External mandates

Bayer AG

Chairrman of the Supervisory Board

Bohnenkamp AG

Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Georgsmarngnbiilie Holding GmbH

Member of the Supervisory Board

Sievert SE

Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Frank Witler

Supervisory Board member

External mandates

CGlinc,

Member of the Board of Directors

Tralon SE

Member of the Supervisory Board

VIL Wolfsburg-Fulbali GmbH

Chairman of the Supervisory Board
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Management Board
Mandates according to section 285 No. 10 German Commercial Code (HGB) in
conjunction with section 125 (1) sentence 5 Stock Corporation Act {(AktG)

Memberships in statutory supervisory boards of German corparations and in comparable supervisory bodies of German and
foreign business enterprises. Changes in memberships during the year are noted with the date of joining and/or leaving.

Memberships in statutory supervisory bodies of large German and foreign corporations according to Section 340a (4) No. 1
of the German Commercial Code (HGB) are marked with *.

As of: February 2023 .

For Management Board members who left earlier, the mandates are shown as of the date they left. For new Management
Board members, the mandates shown are as of the date they joined.

Member of the Management Board

Mandale-Holder Position Company Mandaie

Christian Sewing Chaimmans of the Management Board No memberships or directorships

subjecl to disclosure

James von Moitke

President (since March 2022)

No memberships or directorships
subject Lo disclosure

Karl vor Rohr

President

Mandates in the Group

DWS Group GmbH & Co. KGaA’

Chairman of the Supervisary Board

Fabrizio Campelli

Member of the Management Board

Extermnal mandates

BVV Versicherungsverein des
Bankgewerbes a.G.”

Member of the Superviscry Board

BVV Versorgungshasse des
Bankgewerbes eV,

Member of the Supervisory Board

Bemnd Leukert

Member of the Management Board

External mandates

Bertelsmann SE 8 Co.KGaA~

Member of \he Supervisory Board

Mandates in the Group

DWSE Group GmbH & Co. KGaA*

Member of Ihe Supervisory Board

Stuart Lewis
{until May 19, 2022)

Member of the Management Board

No memberships or directorships
subject 1o disclosure

Alexander von zur Midhlen

Member of the Management Board

No memberships or direclorships.
subject o disclosure

Christiana Riley

Member of the Management Board

Extemal mandates

The Clearing House Paymenls Company

LLC

Member of the Supervisory Board

Mandates in the Group

DB USA Cerporation

Chief Execulive Officer

Rebecca Short

Member of the Management Board

No memberships or directorships
subject lo disclosure

Professor Dr. Stefan Simon

Olivier Vigneran
[since May 20, 2022)

Member of the Management Board

Extemnal mandaies

Leop. Krawinkel GmbH & Co. KG

Chairman of the Advisory Council

Member of the Management Board

No memberships or directorships
subject to disclosure
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Employees of Deuische Bank AG

Employees of Deutsche Bank AG

Mandates according to Section 340a (4) No. 1 of the German Commercial Code

(HGB)

Memberships in statutory supervisory bodies of large German and foreign corporations.

As of: December 31, 2022

Employses of Deuische Bank AG

Mandate-Rolder

Company

Mandate

Martin Ball

Mandates in the Group

nerisbank GmbH

Member of the Supervisory Boasd

Ina Bandemer

Mandates in the Group

Deulsche Bank Polska Spdika Akcyina

Member of the Supervisory Board

Jorg Bonganz

Mandates in the Group

Deulsche Bank Polska Spolka Akcyjna

Chairman of the Supervisary Board

000 "Deutsche Bank”

Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Signd Bowenkamp

Mandates in the Group

BHW Bausparkasse AG

Member of the Supervisory Board

Rudiger Bronn

Mandates in the Group

Deutsche Bank Luxembourg 5 A.

Member of the Supervisory Board

Anita Dierickx

External mandates R

FRB — Fonds Minie-Laura-Chipie

Member of the Supervisory Board

Boudewijn Dornseiffen

Mandates in the Group

000 Deutsche Bank”

Member cf the Supervisary Board

Sameen Farooqui

Mandates int the Group

000 ,Deutsche Bank”

Member of the Supervisary Board

David Feldmann

Exlernal mandales

Eurex Cleanng AG

Member of the Supervisory Board

Eva Frank Mandates in the Graup
P8 Factoring GmbH Member of the Supervisory Board
David Gary External mandates

CLS Group Holdings AG

Non-Executive Director

Jan-Philipp Gillmann

Mandates tn the Group

Deutsche Bank. Sociedad Andrima Espanola

Member of the Supervisory Board

000 Deutsche Bank™

Member of the Supervisory Board

Philipp Gassow

Mandales in the Group

norisbank GmbH

Member of the Supervisary Board

Postibank Filialvertrieb AG

Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Postbank Finanzberaiung AG

Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Carola Ginther

External mandates

BVV Pensionsfonds des Bankgewerbes AG

Member of the Supervisory Board

BVV Versichertungsverein des Bankgewerbes a.G.

Member aof the Supervisory Board

Britta Hercher

External mandates

Bankpower GmbH Personaldiensileisiungen

Member of the Supervisory Board

Juna Herzog

Mandates in the Group

Postbank Filialveririeb AG

Member of the Supervisory Board

Jennifer HéA

Mazndates in the Group

Postbank Finanzberalung AG

Member of the Supervisary Board

Marissa Horvalin

Mandates in the Group

Deuvtsche Bank Societd per Azian:

Member of the Supervisary Board

Dr. Alexander ligen

Mandales in the Group

Deutsche Bank Luxembourg S.A

Chairman of the Supervisory Board

DWS [nvestment GmbH

Meinber of the Supervisory Board

Angelika Kaever-Schroeder

Mandates in the Group

norisbank GmbH

Member of the Supervisory Board

Anke Kirn Mandates in the Group
Betriebs-Center fur Banken AG Member of the Supervisory Board
PCC Services GmbH der Deulschen Bank Member of the Supervisory Board
Stefan Knoll Mandates in the Group

DWS Grundbesitz GmbR

Member of the Supervisory Board
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Employees of Deutsche Bank AG

Frank Kiings

Mandates in the Group

Deutsche Bank (Suisse) SA

Member of the Board of Directors

Deutsche 8ank Luxembourg S.A.

Mernber of the Supervisory Board

Achim Kuhn Mandates in the Group
BHW Bausparkasse AG Member of the Supervisory Board
Postbank Filialvertrieb AG Member of the Supervisory Board
Postbank Finanzberatung AG Member of the Supervisory Board
Manuel Loos Mandates in the Group

Betriebs-Center fir Banken AG

Chairman of the Supervisory Board

PCC Services GmbH der Deutschen Bank

Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Anna Lucarelli

External mandates

MTS Spa Mercato Telematico dei Titoli d¢i Stato

Non-Executive Directar

Chandra Mallika

Mandaltes in the Group

Deuische CIB Cenlre Privats Limited

Member of the Board of Directors

Deuische India Private Limited

Member of the Board of Directors

Bas Marteijn

Mandates in the Group

Deutsche Bank Luxembourg S.A.

Member of the Supervisory Board

Ole Matthiessen

Exiernal mandates

SWIFT.5C

Member of the Board of Directors

Leonhard Felix Miller

Mandales in the Group

norisbank GmbH

Chairman of tha Supervisory Board

Postbank Direkl GmbH

Chatmman of the Supervisory Board

Christinan Malting

Mandates in the Group

Deutsche Bank. Sociedad Andnima Espadicla

Non-Executive Direclor

Henning Qidenburg

External mandates

Beutin AG

Member of the Supervisory Board

Kirsten Qpgentdnder

Mandates in the Group

Deutsche Bank, Sociedad Anonima Esparfiola

Nen-Execulive Director

Beaux Pontak

Externai mandates

Latitude Group Holdings Lirnited {formerly KVD Austratia Holdco Pty
Lid}

Member of the Board of Directors

Reiner Ramacher

Mandates in the Group

Betriebs-Center fir Banken AG -~

Member of the Supervisary Board

Okver Resovac

Mandales in the Group

P8 Facloring GmbH

Member of the Supervisory Board

Barbara Roerig

External mandates

AGR Abfallentsorgungs-Gesellschaft Ruhrgebiet mbH

Member of lhe Supervisory Board

Thaater + Phitharmonie Essen GmbH

Chairperson of the Supervisory Board

Roland Sahr

Exlernal mandales

investilionsbank Sachsen-Anhall - Anstalt der Norddeutschen
Landesbank Girozenlirale

tember of the Board of Directors

Alexandre Sallavuard

Mandates in the Group

Deutsche Bank (China) Ca., Lid.

Member of the Board of Directors

Torsten Sauer

Mandates in the Group

PCC Services GmbH der Deutschen Bank

Member of the Supervisory Board

Nicole Scheidt

Mandates in (he Group

Betrigbs-Center lir Banken AG

Member of the Supervisory Board

Dr. Tayana Schierack

Mandates in the Group

BHW Bausparkasse AG

Member of the Supervisory Board

Posibank Direkt GmbH

Member of the Supervisory Board

Oaniel Schmand

Mandates in the Group

P8 Facloring GmbH

Chairman of the Superviscry Board

Werner Schmidt

External mandates

AKA Ausfuhrkredit-Geselischait mbH

Depuly Chzirman of the Supervisory
Board

Frank Schillz

External mandates

AKXA Ausfuhrkredii-Geselischaft mbH

Member of the Supervisory Board

Kaushik Shaparia

Mandaies in the Group

Deutsche CI8 Centre Private Limiled

Member of the Board of Directors

Deutsche India Private Limiled

Member of the Board of Direclors

Eric-M Srmith

Mandates in Lhe Group

Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas

Member of the Board of Directors

Dr. Arke Steenbock

Mandates in the Group

Betriebs-Center fur Banken AG

Member of the Supervisory Board

norisbank GmbH

Member of the Supervisory Board

PCC Services GmbH der Deutschen Bank

Member of the Supervisory Board

53



Deuts¢he Bank i
Annual Financial Statements.
of Deutsche Bank AG

Fabian Steinhoff

Ligi of mandates
Employees of Deulsche Bank AG

Mandaies in the Group

PCC Services GmbH der Ceulschen Bank

Member of the Supervisary Board

Postbank Direkt GmbH

Member of the Supervisory Board

Lars Stoy

Mandates in the Group

BHW Bausparkasse AG

Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Jana Symmossek

Mandates in the Group

Postbank Filialveririeb AG

tdember of the Supervisory Board

Jirgen Togel

Mandates in the Group

BVV Versicherungsverein des Bankgewerbes a.G.

Member of the Supervisory Board

Meike Webler

Mandales in the Group

Pastbank Filialvertneb AG

Member of the Suparvisory Board

Darugla Weeth

Mandates in the Group

BHVY Bausparkasse AG

Member of the Supervisory Board

Sandra Wirfs Mandates in the Group
Deulsche Bank Societa per Azioni Member of the Supervisory Boarg
Kay Wolf Mandates in the Group

Dautsche Bank Luxembourg 5.A

Member of the Supervisory Board
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Frankfurt am Main, March 9, 2023
Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft

The Management 8card

“N

Christian Sewing

=

Fabrizio Campelli

C@M’,hm L’W

Christiana Riley

Y

Olivier Vigneron

- - O/

James von Maoltke

LA

Bernd Leukert

DS

Rebecca Short

Kar| van Rohr

ﬂ/%

Alexander von zur Miblen

e

Stefan Simon
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Responsibility Statement by the Management Board

Responsibility Stalement by the Management Board

To the best of our knowledge. and in accordance with the applicable reporting principies, the financial statements of Deutsche
Bank AG give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Deutsche Bank AG and the
management report of Deutsche Bank AG, which has been combined with the Group management repart, includes a fair review
of the development and performance of the business and the position of Deutsche Bank AG. together with a description of the
principal opportunities and risks associated with the expecled development of the Deutsche Bank AG.

Frankfurt am Main, March 9, 2023

tto."l.J
Christian Sewing
Fabrizio Campelli
Lhristiana Riley
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Rebecea Shoet Stefan Simon
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

To Deutsche Bank Aktiengeselischaft, Frankfurt am Main

‘Report on the audit of the annual financial statements and of
the management report

Opinions

We have audited the annual financial statements of Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft, Frankfurt am Main, which comprise
the balance sheet as at 3t December 2022, and the income slaterent for the fiscal year from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
2022, and notes to the financizal statements, including the recognition and measurement policies presented therein. [n addition,
we have audited the management report of Deutsche Bank Akliengesellschaft, which is combined with the group management
report, for the: fiscal year from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022. In accordance with the German legal requirements, we
have not audited the last paragraph of the section "Risk management principles (chapter risk report)’ of the management
report regarding management’s statement on the risk management framewcrk and internal control system, the report on equal
treatment and equal pay contained in the management report and the content of the combined Corporate Governance
Statement pursuant to Sec. 289f and 315d HGEB which is published on tha website stated in the management report and is
part of the management repori.

In our opinion, on the basis of the knowledge obtained in the audit,

~ the accompanying annual financial statemenlis comply, in all material respects, with the requirements of German
commercial law applicable to institutions and give a true and fair view of the assels, liabilities and financial position of the
Institution as at 31 December 2022 and of its financial perfarmance for the fiscal year from 1 January 2022 to 31 Cecember
2022 in compliance with German legally required accounting principles, and

- the accompanying management report as @ whole provides an appropriate view of the Institution’s position. In all materiaf
respects. this management report is consistent wilh the annual financial statements. complies with German legaf
requirements and appropriately presents the opportunilies and risks of future development. We do not express an opinion
on the last paragraph of the section risk management principles (chapter “risk report”) of the management report regarding
management's statement on the risk management framework and internal control system referred to above. on the report
on equal treatment and equal pay referred to above and on the content of the combined statement on corporate governance
referred to above.

Basis for the opinions

We conducted our audit of the annual financial statements and of the management report in accordance with Sec. 317 HGB
and the EU Audit Regulation (No 537/2014, referred to subsequently as "EU Audit Regulation") and in compliance with German
Generally Accepled Standards for Financial Statement Audits promuigaled by the Insttut der Wirtschaftsprifer [Institute of
Pubiic Auditors in Germany] (IDW). Qur responsibilities under those requirements, principles and standards are further
described in the "Audilor's responsibilities for the audit of the annual financial statements and of the management report”
section of our auditor's report. We are independent of the institution in accordance with the requirements of European law and
German commercial and professional law, and we have fulfilied our other German professional responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements. In addition, in accordance with Art. 10 (2) f) of the EU Audit Reguiation, we declare that we have not
provided non-audit services prohibited under Art. 5 (1) of the EU Audit Regulation. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions on the annual financial statements and on the
management repor.

Key audit matters in the audit of the annual financial statements

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the annual
financial statements for the fiscal year from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the annual financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon; we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Below, we describe what we consider to be the key audit matters:

57



Deutsche Bank Independent Auditor's Report
Annual Financial Statemenis
of Deutsche Bank AG

1. Valuation of financial instruments with related inputs not quoted in active markets

Reasons why the matter was deiermined to be a key audit matter

Management uses valuation techniques tc estabiish the fair value financial instruments with related inputs not guoted in active
markets. The Bank held trading assets and trading liabilities of EUR 234,670 million and EUR 178,394 million as of
31 December 2022. Both accounts alsc contain financial instruments whose valuation is based on unobservable inputs

Financial instruments and related inputs that are not quoted in active markets include structured derivatives valued using
complex modeis; more-complex OTC derivatives: distressed debt; highly-structured bonds: illiquid loans; credit spreads used
to determine valuation adjustments (Credit Valuation Adjustment); and other significant inpuls which cannol be cobserved for
instruments with longer-dated maturities.

As the valuation of financial instruments with related inputs not quoted in aclive markets is based on a high degree on
management’'s assumptions and judgments due to the complex nature of the valuation techniques and models being utilized
and the unobservability of the significant inputs used, this is a key audit matter.

Auditor's response

We abtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of the controls over
management’s processes Lo determine fair value of financial instiuments and determination of significant unobservable inpuls
therein. This includes controls relating to independent price verificatton; independent validation of vatuation models, inciuding
assessment of model limitalions; monitering of valuation model usage; and calculation of fair value adjustments.

We evaluated the valualion techniques. madels and methodologies, and tested the significant inputs used in those models.
We performed an independent revaluation of a sample of derivatives and other financial instruments at fair value that are not
quoted in active markets, using independent models and inputs. We also independently assessed the reasonableness of a
sample of proxy inputs used by comparing to markel dala sources.

In addition, we evaluated the methodology and nputs used by management in determining fair value adjustments against the
requirements of Sec. 340e HGB and performed recalculations for a sample of these valuation adjustments using cur own
independent data and methodology.

We involved internal financial instruments valuation specialists in the procedures related to valuation models, independent
revaluation and fair value adjustments.

Our procedures did not lead to any reservations relating to the valuation of financial instruments with related inputs not quoted
in active markets.

Reference to related disclosure

Information on the valuation technigues, models and methodologies used in the measurernent of fair value is provided in the
sections "General Information, Basis of Presentation” and "Notes to the Balance Sheet, Trading Assets and Liabilities™ in the
notes to the annual financial statements. :

2. Inctusion of forward-looking information in the model-based calculation of expected credit
losses

Reasons why the matter was determined to be a key audit matter

Management has adopted the requirements of IDW AcP BFA 7 and recognizes a credit loss atlowance in accordance with
IFRS 9 for financial assets which are considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

The estimated probabiliies of default (PD) used in the model-based calculation of expected credit losses on non-defaulted
financia! instruments (IFRS 9 stage 1 and stage 2} are based on historical information, combined with current economic
developments and forward-looking macroeconomic forecasts (e.g., gross domestic product and unemployment rates)
Statistical techniques are used to transform the base scenario for future macroeconomic developments into multiple scenarios
These scenarios are the basis for deriving multi-year PD curves for different rating and counterparty classes. which are used
in the calculation of éxpected credit losses.

Given the economic uncertainties from the war in Ukraine, potential energy shortages in Europe, rising inflationary pressures
and related nsks lo the global economy, the estimation of forward-looking infarmation requires significant judgment To reflect
these uncertainbies, management rmus! assess whether to make adjustments to its standard process for inclusion of
rmacroeconomic variables into the expected credit loss model and forecasting methods, either by adjusting the macroeconomic
vanables or through the inclusion of management overlays
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In view of the significant holdings of non-defaulted financial instniments and the economic uncerainty and significant use of
judgment, we consider the inclusion of forward-locking information in the modei-based calculation of expected credit losses,
any adjusiments thereof, to be a key audit matter.

Auditer’s response

We cbtained an understanding of the processes implemented by management, assessed the design of the controls over the
selection, determination, monitoring and validation of forward-tocking information in respect of the requiremems under IFRS 9,
and tested their operaling effectiveness.

We evaluated management's review of its expected credit loss model and forecasting methods condutted through the modet
validation process. Furthermore, we evaluated the methods used to include the selected variables in the baseline scenario
and the derivation of the muitiple scenarios.

We assessed the baseline macroeconomic forecasts by comparing them with macroeconomic forecasts published by external
sources.

We also gvaluated the methodoiogy applied by management to determine whether to adjust its standard process for inclusion
of macroeconomic variables or to adjust the model resulls through management overlays. In doing so, we assessed the results
of management's sensitivily analysis and compared the macroeconomic variables used ta our own benchmark analysis. We
also assessed that the adjustments were included in the calculation of expected credit losses according to management's
methodology.

To assess the inclusion of forward-looking information in the model-based calculation of expected credit losses, we involved
internal credit risk modeliing specialists !0 assist us.

Our procedures did not lead to any reservations relating to the inclusion of forward-looking information in the model-based
calculation of expected credit losses.

Reference to related disclosures
Information on the inclusion of forward-looking information in the model-based calculation of expected credit losses is provided
n section "General Information, Basis of Presentation” in the notes to the annual financial statements.

3. Valuation of investments in affiliated companies

Reascns why the fatter was determined to be a key audit matter
As of 31 December 2022, the Bank reported investments in affiliated companies of EUR 30.774 million.

Investments in affilisled companies are carried at acquisition cost or, in the case of 3 permanent impairment. at the lower fair
value. The fair value 1s determined using a discounted cash flow model for the respective affiliated company. In this context,
significant assumptions are made regarding, the eamings projections, the discount rale and the long-term growth. The
discount rate is derived using the Capital Assel Pricing Madel.

As the measurement of investments in affiliated companies invoives a high degree of judgment due to the earnings projections,
discount rate and long-term growth rate contained in the discounted cash Row model this is a key audit matter.

Auditor's response

We cblained an undersianding of the process for preparing the earnings projeclions and calculating the fair value of
investments in affiliates in this respect, we also oblained an understanding of management’s controls regarding the earnings
'proiectr‘ons‘ the discount rate and the long-term growth rate, assessed the design of such controls and lested their operating
effectiveness.

We analyzed the significant assumptions described above with a focus on significant changes compared with the prior year.
In this regard, we assessed the consistency and reasonableness of the significant assumptions used in the discounted cash .
flow model by comparing thern with external market expectations.

In analyzing the expected future cash flows of the investments in affiliates, we compared the earnings projections with the
prior fiscal year's projections and with the actual results achieved and evaluated any significant deviations. Furthermore, we
assessed lhe significani valuation parameters used for the estimate of the Fair Value such as the discount rate and long-term
growth rate to the extent they are within a range of externally available forecasts.

To assess the above assumptions made in the recoverability of invesiments in affiliated companies we invelved internal
business valuation specialists.
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Our procedures did not lead to any reservations relaling to ithe valuation of investments in affiliated companies

Reference to related disclosures .

Infarmation on the valuation of investments in affiliated companies is provided in the notes to the annual financial statements
in the sections "General Information, Basis of Presentation” and in the "Notes ta the Balance Sheet, Information an Affiliated,
Associated and Related Companies”.

4. Recognition and measurement of deferred tax assets

Reasons why the matter was deterrmined to be a key audit matiter
As of 31 December 2022, the Bank reported deferred taxes of EUR 5,366 million.

The recognition and measurement of deferred tax assets is based on the estimation of the ability to utilize unused tax losses
and deductible temporary differences against potential future taxable income. This estimate is hased, among others, on
assumplions regarding forecasted operating results based upon the approved business plan.

in light of the use of judgmenl.in estimation of future taxable income and the atuhty o use lax logses the recognition and
measurement of deferred tax assets is a key audit matter.

Auditor's response

We obtained an understanding of the process to determine whether deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses
are denlified in different jurisdictions and measured in accorgance with the provisions of tax law and rules for accounling for
deferred taxes under Sec. 274 HGB, evaluated the design and tested the operating effecliveness of the related controls.

We tested the assumptions used to develop and allocate elements of the approved business plan as a basis for estimating
the future taxable ncome of the relevant controlied companies and tax groups

Furthermore, we evaluated the recognition of deferred tax assets by analyzing the key assumptions made in estimating future
taxable income. We assessed Ihe estimales made in the forecasted operating results by comparing the underlying key
assumptions with hislorical and prospective data available extemally. We compared the historical forecasts with the actual
results. In addition, we assessed the estimaled tax adjusiments and we performed sensitivity analyses on the utilization
periads of the respective deferred tax assets.

To assess the assumplions used in the recoverability of the deferred tax assets, we involved our tax professionals and internal
business valuation specialists.

Our procedures did not lead to any reservations refating tc the recognition and measurement of the deferred tax assets.

Reference to related disclosures
Information on the recognition and measurement of deferred taxes 15 provided in the sections "General Information, Basts of
Presentation” and "Notes {o the Balance Sheet, Deferred Taxes" in the notes to the annual financial statements.

5. IT Access and Change Management in the financial reporting

Reasons why the matter was determined to be a key audit matter
The accuracy of the Bank's financial reporting is highly dependent on the reliability and the conhinuity of the used information
technology due to the significant number of transactions that are processed daily.

Given the high dependency on reliable and continuing data processing and given the pervasive nature of IT controls on the
internal control system, we consider IT Access and Change Management in the Bank's financial reporting as a key audit
matter. :

Auditar's response
We assessed the IT control environment including the IT general controls as well as the |T application controls relevant to the
Bank's financial reporting. Our procedures also covered the changes during the year on the current [T control environment,

Moreover, we tested the operaling effecliveness of prevent and detect IT general controls related (o user access management
and change management across applications, dalabases and operaling systems. Additionally, we tesled T applicalion
contro's over automated data processing, data feeds and interfaces. Our audit procedures related fo T access management
included, but were not fimifed to, user access pravisioning and removal, privileged user access, periodic access right
recertifications. system security settings and user authentication controls,
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Our avdit procedures relaled to IT change management included, but were not limited te, evaluating if changes in the
productive enviranment were tested and approved prior to impiementation and the ability to deploy changes was restricted to
authorized users.

To assess the IT Access and Change Management in the Bank's financial reporling process, we involved internal professionals
who have particular expertise in the area of IT audits.

Qur procedures relating to the T access and change management did not lead to any reservations in the Bank's tinancial
reporting.

Reference to related disctosures :
For a general description of internal controls over the financial reporting, we refer to the management report in section "Internal
Control over Financial Reporting”.

Other information
The executive directors are responsible for the other information. The other infarmation comprises

- the last paragraph of the seclion nsk management principles (chapter "risk report’) of the managemenl report regarding
‘management’s statement on the risk management framewark and internal control system,

- the repart on equal treatment and equal pay included in the management report,

- the combined Corporate Gavernance Statement pursuant to Sec. 289f. and 315d HGB published on the website referred
to in the management report,

and the following other parts lo be included in the annuat report, of which we abtained a version prior to issuing this auditor's
report:

~ the Non-financial Report,
- the Responsibility Statement pursuant to Sec. 264 (2) Sentence 3 HGB in ¢onjunction with Sec. 289 (1) Sentence 5
HGE.

but not the annual financial statements, not the management report disclosures whose content is audited and not our auditor's
report thereon.

Qur opinions on the annual financial statements and on the management report do not cover the other information, and
consequently we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in'so doing, 1o consider whether the other
information

- is materiatly inconsistent with the annual financial statements, with the management report or our knowledge cbtained in
the audit, ar
- otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

11, based on the work we have perfermed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other infarmaticn. we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the executive directors and the Supervisory Board for the
annual financial statements and the management report

The executive directors are responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements that comply. in afl material
respects, with the requirements of German commercial law applicable to institutions, and that the annual financial statements
give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and financial performance of the institution in compliance
with German legally required accounting principles. In addition, the executive directors are responsible for such intemal control
as they, in accordance with German legally required accounting principles, have determined necessary o enable the
preparation of annual financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud (i.e., fraudulent
financial reporting and misappropriation of assets) or error.

In preparing the annual financial statements, the executive directors are responsible for assessing the Institution's ability to
contnue as a going concern. They also have the respensibility for disclosing, as applicable, matiers related to going concern.
In addition, they are respansible for financial reporling based on the going concern basis of accounting, provided no actual or
tegal circumstances conflict therewith.
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Furthermore, the executive directors are responsible for the preparation of the management report that, as a whole, provides
an appropriate view of the Inslitution's position and is, in all material respects, consistent with the annual financial statements,
complies with German legal requirements and appropriately presents the opportunities and risks of fyture development. In
addition, the executive directors are responsibie for such arrangements and measures (Systems) as they have considered
necessary to enable the preparation of a management report that is in accordance with the applicable German legal
requirements, and to be able to proavide sufficient appropriate evidence for the assertions in the management report.

The Supervisory Board is responsible for overseeing the Institution’s financial reponing process for the preparation of the
annual financial statements and of the management report. ’

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the annual financial statements and of
the management report

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and whether the management report as a whole provides an appropriate
view of the Institution's pasition and, in all malerial respects, is consistent with the annual financial statements and the
knowledge obtained in the audit, complies with the German legal requirerents and appropriately presents the opportunities
and risks of fulure development, as well as to issue an auditor's report that includes our gpinions on the annual financial
statements and on the management report.

Reasonable assurance 15 a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Sec. 317 HGB and the EU Audit Regulation and in compliance with German Generally Accepted Standards for Financial
Statement Audits promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprifer {IDW) will always detect 3 material misstatement.
Misslatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered malenal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these annual financial statements
and this management repont.

We exercise prolessional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the annual financial statements and of the management report,
whether due o fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resuiting from fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting a material misstatement resuiting from error, as fraud may involve
callusion, forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control refevant to the audit of the annual financial slatements and of arrangements
and measures (systems) relevant to the audit of the management report in order lo design audit procedures that are
appropriale in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of these systemns
of the Institution.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used by the executive directors and the reasonableness of estimates
made by the executive directors and related disclosures.

- Coanclude on lhe appropriateness of the execulive directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Institution's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conciude that a material uncertainly exists, we are
required to draw attention in the audilor's report to the related disclosures in the annual financial statements and in the
management report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our respective opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence oblained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Institution to cease to be able to continue as @ going congermn.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the annual financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the annual financial statements present the underlying transactions and events in @ manner that the annual
financial staterments give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and financial performance of the
Institution in compliance with German legally required accounting principles

- Evaluate the consistency of the management report with the annual financial statements, its conformity with [German] law,
and the view of the Institution’s position it provides.

- Perform audit pracedures on the prospective information presented by the executive directors in the management repart.
On the basis of sufficient appropriate audit evidence we evaluale, in particular, the significant assumptions used by the
executive directors as a basis for the prospeclive information and evaluate the proper derivation of the prospective
information from these assumptions. We do not express a separale opinion on the prospective information and on the,
assumplions used as a basis. There is a substantal unavoidable nsk that future events will differ matenally from the
prospective infarmation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among cther matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significanl audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contrcl that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with the relevant independence
requiremeants. and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thoughl to bear on our
independence and where applicable, related saleguards.

From the matters communicated with lhose charged with governance, we determine those malters thal were of most
significance in the audit of the annuai financial statementis of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation preciudes public disclosure about the matter.

Other tegal and regulatory requirements

Report on the assurance on the electronic rendering of the annual financial statements and the
management report prepared for publication purposes in accordance with Sec. 317 (3a) HGB

Opinion

We have performed assurance work in accordance with Sec. 317 {3a) HGB 1o obtain reasonabie assurance about whether
the rendering of the annuat financial statements and {ne management report {(hereinafter the “ESEF docurnents™) contamed
in Deutsche_Bank_AG_JA+LB_ESEF-2021-12-31 and prepared for publication purposes complies in all material respects
with the requirements of Sec. 328 (1) HGB for the electronic reporting format ("ESEF format"). In accordance with German
legal requirements, this assurance work extends only to the conversion of the information contained in the annual financial
statements and the management report into the ESEF format and therefore relates neither to the information contained within
these renderings nor to any other information contained in the file identified above.

tn our epinion, the rendering of the annual financial statements and the management report coMained i the file identified
above and prepared for publicalion purposes complies in all material respects with the requirements of Sec. 328 (1) HGB for
the electronic reporting format. Beyond this assurance opinion and our audit opinions an the accompanying annual financial
statements and the accompanying management report for the fiscal year from 1 January 2022 10 31 December 2022 contained
in the “Report on the audit of the annual financial statements and of the management report” above, we do not express any
assurance opinion on the information contained wilhin these rendenngs or on the other informalion conlained in the fife
identified above.

Basis for the opinion

We conducted our assurance work on the rendering of the annual financial statements and the management report contained
in the file identified above in accordance with Sec. 317 (3a) HGB and the IDW Assurance Standard: Assurance on the
Electronic Rendering of Financial Statements and Management Reports Prepared for Pubiication Purposes in Accordance
with Sec. 317 (3a) HGB (IDW AsS 410} (06.2022) and the International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised).
Qur responsibilily in accordance therewith is further described in the “Audilor's responsibilities for the assurance work on the
ESEF documents” section. Our audit firm applies the IDW Standard on Quality Management 1: Requirements for Quatity
Management in the Audit Firm (IDW QS 1). -

Responsibilities of the executive directors and the Supervisory Board for the ESEF documents
The executive directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the ESEF documents including the electronic
rendering of the annual financial statements and the management report in accordance with Sec. 328 (1) Sentence 4
No. 1 HGB. ’

In addition, the executive directors of the Company are responsible for such internal control as they have determined
necessary to enable the preparation of ESEF documents that are free from material intentional or unintentional non-

comgliance with the requirements of Sec. 328 (1) HGB for the electronic reponting format.

The supervisory board is respansible for overseeing the process for preparing the ESEF documents as part of the financal
feporting process.

83



Deutsche B8ank tndependent Auditar's Report
Annugi Financial Statements
of Deutsche Bank AG

Auditor's responsibilities for the assurance work on the ESEF documents

Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the ESEF documents are free from material intentional or
unintentionat non-compliance with the requirements of Sec. 328 (1) HGB. We exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the assurance work. We also.

- Idenlify and assess the risks of material intenttonal or unintentional non-compliance with the requirements of Sec. 328 {1)
HGB, design and perform assurance procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain assurance evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our assurance opinion.

- Dbiain an underslanding of internal conlrol relevant 1o the assurance on the ESEF documents in order to design assurance
arocedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an assurance opinion on the
effectiveness of these controls.

- Evaluate the technical validity of the ESEF documents. i.e., whether the file containing the ESEF documents meets the
requirements of Commission Delegaled Regulation (EU) 2019/815, in the version in force at the date of the financial
statements, on the technical specification for this file.

- Evaluate whether the ESEF documents enable an XHTML rendering with content equivalent to the audited annual financial
statements and to the audited management report.

Further information pursuant to Art. 10 of the EU Audit Regulation

We were elected as auditor by the Annual General Meeting on 19 May 2022. We were engaged by the Supesvisory Board on
26 September2022. We have been the auditor of Deutsche Bank Aktiengeseflschaft uninterrupled since fiscal year 2020.

We declare thal the opinions expressed in this auditor's report are consistent with the additional report to the Audit Committee
pursuant to Art. 11 of the EU Audit Reguiation (long-form audit report),

Other matter — use of the auditor’'s report

Our auditor's report must always be read together with the audited annual financial stalements and lhe audited management
report as well as the assured ESEF documents, The annual financial statements and the management report converted to the
ESEF format — including the versions to be published in the Unternehmensregister—[ German Company Register] are merely
electronic renderings of the audited annual financial statements and the audited management repert and do not take their

place. In particular, the ESEF report and our assurance opinion contained therein are to be used solely together with the
assured ESEF documents made available in electronic form

German Public Auditor responsible for the engagement
The German Public Auditor responsible for the engagement is Mr. Holger Lasken.
Eschbarn/Frankfurt am Main, 13 March 2023

Ernst & Young GmbH
Wintschaftsprifungsgeselischaft

Lésken Mai
Wirtschaftsprifer Wirtschaftsprufer
[German Public Auditor] [German Public Auditor]
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